
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Approval of staff's request to utilize $2,188.30 from Stormwater Management's Repair and Maintenance Service Account for the 
employment of a temporary intern who will perform 280 hours of infrastructure inventory and GIS data manipulation.


Over the summer, Stormwater Management's staff has worked with an unpaid intern for approximately 240 hours in order to collect 
infrastructure data using GIS technology.  The intern's work performance and skill level in GIS data manipulation, and his ability to 
understand and complete work assignments with minimum oversight, has allowed staff to stay on track with the planned three-year 
infrastructure inventory process. 
 
Current construction inspections, coupled with submitting a new National Pollutant and Discharge Elimination System's (NPDES) permit 
to the Environmental Protection Department's (EPD) for approval by November 12, 2012, and performing utility billing customer service, 
will consume the majority of staff's resources for the next few months.  Staff is requesting that the intern be paid at hourly minimum 
wages 
 
It is expected that the intern will continue his work by performing 280 hours of inventory data collection and GIS manipulation with the end 
goal of forming a first draft of the Stormwater Master Plan, at a total cost of $2,188.30. This cost is the aggregate of  hourly minimum 
wages and FICA expenses.  Funding is available in Stormwater Management's Repair and Maintenance Service Account 
(50840320-522230).


Approval of staff's request to transfer $2,188.30 from Stormwater Management's Repair and Maintenance Service Account Budget to 
Personnel Cost Budget for the employment of a temporary intern who will perform 280 hours of infrastructure inventory and GIS data 
manipulation.


The aggregate cost for this request is $2,188.30.  Budgeted funds for this cost would be transferred from Stormwater Management's 
Repair and Maintenance Service Account (50840320-522230) to Stormwater's Personnel Cost budgeted line items. 


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Approval of staff's request to insert an annual septic system maintenance flyer into Stormwater Management's annual utility bills.


As part of both the National Pollutant and Discharge Elimination System's (NPDES) permit requirements, and the Metropolitan North 


Georgia Water Planning District's (MNGWPD) educational requirements; the Fayette County Stormwater Management Department must 


mail a septic system maintenance flyer to Fayette County residents. 


 


Staff is asking for the Board's approval to insert the annual septic system maintenance flyer into Stormwater Management's annual Utility 


bills.   


Approval of staff's request to insert an annual septic system maintenance flyer into Stormwater Management's annual utility bills.


Funds for this request have been budgeted in Stormwater Management's Public Relations Services (50840320-521217) account


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012







Septic Systems Safely Recycle Wastewater – Wastewater flows from your house into the tank 
where heavy solids or sludge settles to the bottom.  Scum made up of hair, grease, and soap float to 
the top of the tank and wastewater in the middle is pushed out into the drainfield.  Baffles attached to 
the outlet of the tank keep scum from entering the drainfield. 


A leachfield is a perforated-pipe network buried 1-3 ft. deep in gravel channels. –  Dissolved 
waste and bacteria is then decomposed by microorganisms and nutrients and absorbed into the soil. 


Treated wastewater or effluent leaves the leachfield and percolates down through the soil.  As 
effluent continues to seep down through the soil, waste not removed in the drainfield are further     
removed by natural process in the soil before meeting up with groundwater. 


DID YOU KNOW YOUR SEPTIC SYSTEM IS “GREEN?” DO YOU KNOW YOUR SEPTIC SYSTEM IS “GREEN?” 


Septic Systems Safely Recycle Wastewater – Wastewater flows from your house into the tank 
where heavy solids or sludge settles to the bottom.  Scum made up of hair, grease, and soap float to 
the top of the tank and wastewater in the middle is pushed out into the drainfield.  Baffles attached to 
the outlet of the tank keep scum from entering the drainfield. 


A leachfield is a perforated-pipe network buried 1-3 ft. deep in gravel channels. –  Dissolved 
waste and bacteria is then decomposed by microorganisms and nutrients and absorbed into the soil. 


Treated wastewater or effluent leaves the leachfield and percolates down through the soil.  As 
effluent continues to seep down through the soil, waste not removed in the drainfield are further     
removed by natural process in the soil before meeting up with groundwater. 


DID YOU KNOW YOUR SEPTIC SYSTEM IS “GREEN?” DO YOU KNOW YOUR SEPTIC SYSTEM IS “GREEN?” 


Septic Systems Safely Recycle Wastewater – Wastewater flows from your house into the tank 
where heavy solids or sludge settles to the bottom.  Scum made up of hair, grease, and soap float to 
the top of the tank and wastewater in the middle is pushed out into the drainfield.  Baffles attached to 
the outlet of the tank keep scum from entering the drainfield. 


A leachfield is a perforated-pipe network buried 1-3 ft. deep in gravel channels. –  Dissolved 
waste and bacteria is then decomposed by microorganisms and nutrients and absorbed into the soil. 


Treated wastewater or effluent leaves the leachfield and percolates down through the soil.  As 
effluent continues to seep down through the soil, waste not removed in the drainfield are further     
removed by natural process in the soil before meeting up with groundwater. 


DID YOU KNOW YOUR SEPTIC SYSTEM IS “GREEN?” DO YOU KNOW YOUR SEPTIC SYSTEM IS “GREEN?” 







Perform Regular Maintenance - Solids must eventually be pumped from the tank. Experts advise 
pumping a 1,000 gallon septic-tank used daily for a family of four every 3-5 years.  


Do Not Pour Grease Down the Drain - Grease can clog the septic drainfield, making it impossible 
for soil to absorb liquids. If that happens you'll need a new drainfield.  


Avoid Hazardous Chemicals - Varnish, paint thinners, motor oils, gasoline and other similar chemi-
cals can ruin your system and are a hazard to groundwater. Dispose of them properly. 


Protect the System from Damage - Do not drive over or build a structure on top of the drainfield, or 
cover it with concrete or asphalt.  Do plant grass on top to  minimize erosion. 


DID YOU KNOW YOUR SEPTIC SYSTEM IS “GREEN?” SEPTIC SYSTEM MAINTENANCE IS THE MOST IMPORTANT CHECK 
YOU CAN MAKE TO PROTECT YOUR HOME 


Perform Regular Maintenance - Solids must eventually be pumped from the tank. Experts advise 
pumping a 1,000 gallon septic-tank used daily for a family of four every 3-5 years.  


Do Not Pour Grease Down the Drain - Grease can clog the septic drainfield, making it impossible 
for soil to absorb liquids. If that happens you'll need a new drainfield.  


Avoid Hazardous Chemicals - Varnish, paint thinners, motor oils, gasoline and other similar chemi-
cals can ruin your system and are a hazard to groundwater. Dispose of them properly. 


Protect the System from Damage - Do not drive over or build a structure on top of the drainfield, or 
cover it with concrete or asphalt.  Do plant grass on top to  minimize erosion. 


DID YOU KNOW YOUR SEPTIC SYSTEM IS “GREEN?” SEPTIC SYSTEM MAINTENANCE IS THE MOST IMPORTANT CHECK 
YOU CAN MAKE TO PROTECT YOUR HOME 


Perform Regular Maintenance - Solids must eventually be pumped from the tank. Experts advise 
pumping a 1,000 gallon septic-tank used daily for a family of four every 3-5 years.  


Do Not Pour Grease Down the Drain - Grease can clog the septic drainfield, making it impossible 
for soil to absorb liquids. If that happens you'll need a new drainfield.  


Avoid Hazardous Chemicals - Varnish, paint thinners, motor oils, gasoline and other similar chemi-
cals can ruin your system and are a hazard to groundwater. Dispose of them properly. 


Protect the System from Damage - Do not drive over or build a structure on top of the drainfield, or 
cover it with concrete or asphalt.  Do plant grass on top to  minimize erosion. 


DID YOU KNOW YOUR SEPTIC SYSTEM IS “GREEN?” SEPTIC SYSTEM MAINTENANCE IS THE MOST IMPORTANT CHECK 
YOU CAN MAKE TO PROTECT YOUR HOME 





		Stormwater- Septic Tank Mailer Agenda Request File

		Stormwater- Septic Tank Mailer Backup





<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have the right to request a refund under O.C.G.A. 48-5-380.  This request is given to the Tax Assessor's Office in order to be 


reviewed in detail, and the appropriate recommendation(s) are then forwarded to the Board of Commissioners for their final approval of 


said requests.


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had been previously and erroneously assessed and taxed and have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


Yes Periodically


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


The last time a similar request came to the Board was on July 26, 2012.


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012





		Tax Assessors- Refunds Agenda Request File

		Tax Assessors- Refunds Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water System's request to insert a letter about payment options, and about the ENERGY STAR and WaterSense Sales 


Tax Holiday in October, into customers' September water bills.


The Water System is ready to begin e-mailing water bills to its customers.  In order to do so, the Water System needs to collect 


information from the customers, and that information will be entered into the system's Utility Billing software.  The Water System has 


drafted a letter to be included in each water bill that will be mailed in September 2012.  The letter informs customers of the Water 


System's ability to e-mail the monthly water bills and of how to register to be billed through e-mail.  The letter also reminds customers of 


other payment abilities that are available. 


 


The Water System would also like to include information on the upcoming ENERGY STAR and WaterSense Sales Tax Holiday.  


ENERGY STAR is a joint program of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the U.S. Department of Energy that encourages the 


use of energy efficient products and practices.  WaterSense is a partnership program by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency that 


desires to protect the future of the nation's water supply by suggesting simple ways to use less water with water-efficient products.  The 


State of Georgia will have an ENERGY STAR and WaterSense Tax Holiday from October 5 through 7 for the purchase of specified items 


that meet these programs' approval.  Providing this information to the customers will provide credit with the Metropolitan North Georgia 


Water Planning District's (MNGWD) educational program.


Approval of the Water System's request to insert a letter about payment options, and about the ENERGY STAR and WaterSense Sales 


Tax Holiday in October, into customers' September water bills.


Funding to print the letters is included in the Water System's Office Supply Budget.  The cost of mailing will not change since the letter 


will be inserted with the water bills when they are mailed.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012













		Water System- Customer Water Bill Insert Agenda Request File

		Water System- Customer Water Bill Insert Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of staff's request for the Board to declare 31 Trace transponders as unserviceable, to sell said items through the GovDeals 


website, and for proceeds from the sales to return to the Water System's Sale of General Fixed Assets account.


The Fayette County Water System has a total of 31 Trace transponders with registers that are of no further use to the County.  (The sizes 


of the transponders vary:  fourteen of the transponders are 1 1/2"; thirteen transponders are 3/4"; and the remaining four transponders 


are 1".)  These items are county property. 


 


In order for these items to be disposed of, the Board must declare these items to be unserviceable and disposable.  Staff is requesting 


that the Board take this action. 


 


Staff is also requesting the Board's authorization to sell the unserviceable and disposable items through the GovDeals website, with 


proceeds from the sales to return to the Water System's Sale of General Fixed Assets account.


Approval of staff's request for the Board to declare 31 Trace transponders as unserviceable, to sell said items through the GovDeals 


website, and for proceeds from the sales to return to the Water System's Sale of General Fixed Assets account.


Not applicable.  Sales proceeds will be placed in the Water System's Sale of General Fixed Assets (50540001-392100) account.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


    August 1, 2012


 3:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette


County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then


“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single


topic can be heard.


                       


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on August 1, 2012 at 3:30 p.m. in the


Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman


Steve Brown


Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator


Floyd Jones, County Clerk


Staff Absent: Scott Bennett, County Attorney
________________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order.


Chairman Frady called the August 1, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting to order at 3:30 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No


discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Further discussion of amending the County’s Land Use Plan on State Route 138 between State Route
279 and State Route 314 near the Clayton and Fayette County line.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina updated the Board concerning a request, which was discussed


by the Board at the June 6, 2012 Workshop, to amend the County’s Land Use Plan on State Route 138


between State Route 279 and State Route 314.  He informed the Board that staff had discussed the request


with the Planning Commission, that they had reviewed several approaches to the request, and that the Planning







Minutes
August 1, 2012
Page Number 2


Commission and staff were seeking direction from the Board on whether they could continue with amendments


to the Future Land Use Plan for State Route 138 as a Commercial area.  Mr. Frisina then answered questions


from the Board. Discussion followed.


The consensus of the Board was to continue with amendments to the Future Land Use Plan for State Route


138 as a Commercial area, and for Mr. Frisina to return to the Board later with recommendations on amending


the Future Land Use Plan and Overlay Zone for State Route 138.  The Board did not take formal action on this


request. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part


hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Discussion of the Final 2012 Tax Digest and Proposed Millage Rates.


Finance Director Mary Holland reported that the Fiscal Year 2012 Tax Digest had been finalized and submitted


to the County by the Tax Commissioner. She reminded the Board that the next step was to advertise for the


August 23, 2012 Public Hearing for consideration to adopt the millage rates.  Ms. Holland then briefed the


Board on the new Tax Digest and available options for adjusting the millage rates, before both she and Interim


County Administrator Jack Krakeel answered questions from the Board and asked direction on how to proceed.


Discussion followed.


The Board directed staff to advertise for a 3.03 mil increase to the Fire Fund, and to use the current millage


rates for the remaining funds. Commissioners Brown and McCarty did not support the direction.  The Board


took no formal action on this request.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes


and is made an official part hereof.


2. Discussion by Buildings Permits and Inspections Director Joe Scarborough concerning his recent
invitation to represent Fayette County, on a national level, by serving as an alternate on the International
Code Council’s (ICC) 2012 Building Exam Development Committee, for a three-year term beginning
January 1, 2012 and expiring December 31, 2014.


Buildings Permits and Inspections Director Joe Scarborough informed the Board that he had been appointed


by the International Code Council’s Board of Professional Standards to be an alternate on the 2012 Building


Exam Development Committee.  He explained the importance of the appointment and said “to be recognized


by one’s peers at the highest level is a significant accomplishment”, before he asked permission to represent


Fayette County, at a national level, at periodic meetings. Discussion followed.


The Board consented to Mr. Scarborough’s request to represent Fayette County as an alternate on the 2012


Building Exam Development Committee.  The Board took no formal action on this request.  A copy of the


request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Update on Stormwater Management’s Utility billing progress.


Stormwater Management Director Vanessa Birrell updated the Board on Stormwater Management’s current


Utility billing progress, and the remaining steps to complete before bills could be mailed in the next four to six


weeks.  The Board gave no direction and took no formal action on this issue.  A copy of the request, identified


as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
August 1, 2012
Page Number 3


4. Discussion by the County Clerk concerning the production of the County’s minutes.


County Clerk Floyd Jones spoke to the Board concerning the passage of House Bill 397 as it pertains to Open


Meetings and Open Records, highlighted problems associated with producing lengthy minutes, gave four


recommendations on how to produce efficient minutes, and answered questions from the Board.  Commissioner


Brown expressed concerns about the recommendations.  Discussion followed.


The Board directed the County Clerk to proceed with the four recommendations as presented.  Commissioner


Brown did not support the direction.  The Board took no formal action on this request.  A copy of the request


and recommendations, identified as “Attachment 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Resumes for the County Administrator’s Position: Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel reminded the Board


that several days ago he had submitted a packet of resumes, along with a memo, for the position of County


Administrator.  He then informed the Board that he had received two more resumes and placed both of them in the


Commissioners’ in-boxes.  He also reminded the Board that, in his memo, he had requested that the Board have a


discussion at today’s meeting on how to proceed with the appointment proceed.


The Board directed staff to continue advertising for the position of County Administrator until the completion of the August


21, 2012 run-off elections, and to form a committee to review available resumes at that time. The Board took no official


action on this request.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


There was no Attorney’s Report.


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:


There were no Commissioners’ Reports.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the August 1, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting.  Commissioner


Horgan seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned the August 1, 2012 Workshop meeting at 4:18 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


       Floyd L. Jones ,County Clerk                                      Herbert Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 23rd day of August 2012.


___________________________________


      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of a Joint Funding Agreement between Fayette County and the U.S. Geological Survey, beginning October 1, 2012 and ending 


September 30, 2013, in the amount of  $90,600.00, to provide for the monitoring of water flow at four sites, and authorization for the 


Chairman to sign the agreement and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The Georgia Department of Natural Resources requires that Fayette County's Water System (as well as all other water systems) 


monitors the flow of water in its raw water sources, below where Fayette County takes out water for storage, treatment and distribution.  


The U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), Water Resources Division, performs this type of work, so Fayette County contracts with the USGS 


for their services.  Some sites are also monitored for water quality.   


 


There are four "monitoring stations" throughout Fayette County.  One is on the Flint River, two are on Line Creek, and the fourth is on 


Shoal Creek.  Monitoring ensures adequate water flow below the County's facilities.  The volume of water in a stream affects plant and 


animal life. 


 


The cost of the monitoring this year is $90,600.00.  These funds are budgeted annually in the Water System's operating budget.


Approval of a Joint Funding Agreement between Fayette County and the U.S. Geological Survey, beginning October 1, 2012 and ending 


September 30, 2013, in the amount of  $90,600.00, to provide for the monitoring of water flow at four sites, and authorization for the 


Chairman to sign the agreement and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funds are budgeted annually in the Water System's Maintenance and Operating Budget.


Yes Annually


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012

















		Water System- USGS Joint Fund...ement Agenda Request File

		Water System- USGS Joint Funding Agreement Backup






MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


August 9, 2012
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners,” then
“County Commission Meetings,” and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on August 9, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Chairman Frady called the August 9, 2012 Board of Commissioners’ meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation and led the Audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Randy Ognio: Mr. Randy Ognio thanked the staff who “put together” Consent Agenda Item 5.  He said it was well put
together, got the account numbers, shows where the money is coming from and going to, and that was something he
looked forward to seeing on all of the agenda items in the future.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner McCarty moved to accept Consent Agenda Items 1-6.  Commissioners Hearn and Brown seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Minutes
August 9, 2012
Page Number 2


1. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2012 Overtime Budget for the Criminal
Investigations Division by $637.39 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various
federal agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


2. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2013 Overtime Budget for the Criminal
Investigations Division by $1,035.89 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various
federal agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of staff’s request to submit an application to the Georgia Emergency Management Agency
(GEMA) for a 2012 Emergency Management Performance Grant, in the amount of $17,848.00, for the
purchase and installation of a weather warning siren, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the
application and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  A copy of the
request and grant application, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


4. Approval of staff’s request to submit an application to Coweta-Fayette Trust, Inc. for a Coweta-Fayette
EMC Operation Round Up Grant, in the amount of $2,007.83, for the purchase of a mobile sound system,
and authorization for the Chairman to sign the application and any related documents contingent upon
the County Attorney’s review.  A copy of the request and grant application, identified as “Attachment
4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s request to transfer $1,480.00 from the Warning Siren- Safety Equipment CIP Account
to the Public Safety- Operating Equipment Service Account for the purchase and installation of batteries
for four weather warning sirens.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of the July 26, 2012 Board of Commissioners’ Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to transmit a request to the Atlanta Regional Commission to
reallocate PLAN 2040 federal funds from the West Fayetteville Bypass, Phase 3 (FA-235C) to the East
Fayetteville Bypass (FA-236A and FA-236B).


[The following is a full transcript of the discussion of this agenda item, as requested by Commissioner Steve


Brown.  This transcript begins at 7:03:47 of the recording.] 


Chairman Herb Frady: Under Old Business, consideration of staff’s recommendation to transmit a request to
the Atlanta Regional Commission to reallocate PLAN 2040 federal funds from the West Fayetteville Bypass,
Phase 3 (FA-235C) to the East Fayetteville Bypass.  Mr. Mallon?


Public Works Director Phil Mallon: Good evening.  I’ll say with that complement that it’s kind of thrown the
gauntlet down for the rest of us preparing agenda requests (laughter). {Mr. Mallon distributes paper documents
to the Board, Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel, and County Clerk Floyd Jones.} This is a follow-up
to discussion we have had. (Pause)  This is a follow-up to a discussion that was started, I think; at least twice







Minutes
August 9, 2012
Page Number 3


we’ve talked about it.  And the issue is, how to address the potential insufficient funding for these bypass.  I’ve
met with each of you individually, and there seemed to be a lot of interest in taking the $12.8 million that is
currently programmed long-range for Phase Three of the West Bypass and moving it to the East.  I was, at one
point, thinking we needed to have some action by the Board in July.  It turns out ARC plans have been
completely delayed or rescheduled because of failure of the TIA as well as passage of these federal legislation.
So right now, there is no rush at all to do this.  ARC would appreciate our input at any time, but it is unlikely they
would make major changes to the plan, which this would be part of until spring or possibly even next summer,
[but again] months before all that is finalized.  Nonetheless, if you’ll allow me, I would like to present what I
have, and then y’all can decide if you want to take action tonight or if we just want to put it on the shelf and bring
it back at an appropriate time.  The three pages I handed to you are to kind of just set the stage to be certain
we all are looking at this the same way.  The first page, with the title “Existing PLAN 2040" up top, is just a
rewrite of what you would see if you went to the ARC’s PLAN 2040 today.  It shows $7 million of federal funding
in year 2015 for Phase One.  It has $5.92 million long-range for Phase Two in construction.  And all the design
and right-of-way and utilities borne by the County.  Page Two, what I titled “Pending PLAN 2040" reflects where
I think we’re really at today.  The difference between page one and page two is, I have to send in updates to
ARC periodically to revise things as our schedule and scope gets refined.  Depending on the type of change,
they can either make them with their quarterly updates or sometimes I have to wait for a larger change, so there
is a handful of comments I sent to ARC that had been in the queue, in some cases for months now, and I will
get to them when they make that major update.  But this reflects where we really should be.  What it shows is
a total project cost for Phase One of $34.8 million.  Total project cost for Phase Two of $13. 4 million.  I want
to stress to the Board and the public for the record that, keep in mind, as of today, we still don’t have an official
alignment that’s been accepted by FHWA.  And I know the Board has a preferred alignment, but the alignment
hasn’t been set, even the design criteria is still preliminary, so these numbers, I can’t stress how preliminary
they are at this point.


Commissioner Steve Brown: Sure . . . 


Mallon: So, that, they will change.   What this shows, though, is of the total project cost, the County’s bearing
the vast majority of it.  We would be paying for nearly $28 million out of the $34.8 of Phase One, and over half
of the $13.4 of Phase Two.  So, one option is to take, and now I’m going to page three, or what I’m calling the
“Option for Future Plan 2040".  It’s to take the $12.8 million out of the West Bypass Phase Three, that’s long-
range money, meaning it’s sometime after 2018, there no really saying for certain when.  And to move that
money, all $12.8 of it into the construction for Phase One.  That’s the phase the currently has some TIP money
available to it.  And what I’m suggesting is we take that TIP money, and the TIP money means, it’s a, it’s
programmed in the next few years.  It’s more real than the long-range money.  I’m suggesting we take that $7
million that’s currently in construction and ask that it be reallocated to right-of-way in a traditional 80(%)-20(%)
split, and then there would be a small remainder of about $600,000, for now, we’d say we will use that for
utilities.  In reality, our right-of-way costs may go up or down, so that number may evaporate, or it may grow.
One drawback to doing this, is it takes the schedule for construction for Phase One, which currently we’re
showing at 2017, and it moves it into that 2018 or beyond timeframe.  And we don’t have a lot of control over
when that money would truly be available to us.  However, it seems to me, and ARC staff kind of agrees, if you
project is ready, if we reach 2017 and we have the design done, right-of-ways acquired, you stand a good
chance of getting that money at that point.  They reward those who deliver.  So, there is a potential delay in
construction, but the good news here, with this increase in federal funding, it would reduce the County’s total
cost of the two phases to just under or around $23 million, which currently could be funded with our available
SPLOST dollars.  I went over that kind of quick.  Do you understand the general suggestion, I guess?  And
then, I’m open for comments or questions.







Minutes
August 9, 2012
Page Number 4


Commissioner Lee Hearn: Phil is, (interrupted), I’m sorry go ahead.  In terms of the negatives of doing this,
I mean, what are the negatives.  I mean, the negatives, as I understand it, would be, any improvements we
make on the Phase Three of the West Fayetteville Bypass would, including the bridge, would be with SPLOST
funds.  


Mallon: Well, I think the bridge could be treated differently.  The bridge, and we are talking about Ebenezer
Church Bridge over Whitewater, that is a separate program in the, in PLAN 2040.  So I think we could,
essentially, eliminate Phase Three from the RTP, but ask that the bridge project stay as is.  So I think we could
keep that project in there, but you’re right on, we are, kind of eliminating any chance of federal aid for Phase
Three.  


Hearn: But with, and I understand staff hadn’t had an opportunity at this point to come up with a cost estimate
for the scale-down version of the, of this Phase Three, which would include an intersection improvements and
some turn lanes and that sort of thing.  Not massive realignments and that sort of thing.  So, I mean, are there
other negatives to this.  I mean would this tend to push out the Phase One of the East Fayetteville Bypass if
we piggybacked with this federal money.  But I mean we are already kind of programmed to go that way
anyway, aren’t we?  


Mallon: Well, it does push it out, as I said, but the draw, the other side to look at that is if you don’t do
something, it may be delayed because of lack of funding.  


Hearn: Right . . .


Mallon: You know as the Board, whether it’s this Board or whatever Board is sitting here in 2018, going to be
willing to start a project that they can’t, don’t have enough money to finish.  So, to me, it’s a drawback of a loss
of a year, possibly two in construction.  But more importantly, if we can get that right-of-way acquired using
some federal aid, to me, that’s a big win.  We’ve had this federal aid money sitting out on the horizon for a lot
of years now.  It would be nice to actually get some of it and use it since we’ve been going through the federal
process.


Hearn: One thing too, if the right-of-way is purchased, and it’s ours, we’ll build that road at some point in time.
It may not be this Board, but at some point in time that road will get built.  If we don’t ever buy that right-of-way,
then the chances, I mean, it will be up to the next group or the next one or the next to make that determination,
so I think it’s a good approach, Phil.


Commissioner Robert Horgan: Phil, what is the $12.8 million.  Would that complete Phase Three of the West
Fayetteville Bypass?  


Mallon: It all depends what, what the scope of Phase Three is.  The alignment that the Board approved, boy
I just put all this together in an email this morning, and I’m so bad with dates.  But I think that they approved
in December 2009, does that sound right?  That cost estimate was right around $12 million.  But it did not take
into account, it was really what I’ll say, what the County, what the locals wanted to do.  If you use that $12
million of federal, suddenly you have to meet all the federal requirements.  And the starting in any point of the
project may change; they may insist we do certain widening that we don’t think is necessary.  So, I guess what
I’m asking, or my answer to you is we had an estimate of about $12 million to complete that project without
federal fundings.  If we kept the federal funding, the scope has the potential to increase on us.







Minutes
August 9, 2012
Page Number 5


Horgan: And then the other things that concern me on the East Fayetteville part is one, it never comes up in
any conversations on the cost is the wetlands that might have to be dealt with, as well as a golf course.  And,
I understand, you know, we just possibly have a plan that just cuts right through a golf course, but, you know,
we don’t know if that’s the case.  You know, you may have to, ending to have to buy a complete golf course
or whatever, and those are some numbers that, you know, I can only imagine how much that is.  So, soon as
we move this money into a project where we are going to run into a bunch of different dead-ends, you know,
through wetlands, and golf courses, and where, you know, we have the money right now that could complete
West Fayetteville Bypass.


Mallon: Just in response, the right-of-way estimates are based on a parcel-by-parcel basis at this point.  We
assumed a certain value for a nonresidential use associated with the golf course, and we put in a certain
amount, we called it cost to cure, but it definitely requires more analysis, probably beyond staff’s experience
to determine really what that cost would be.  So, it is a big unknown that could sway these numbers a little bit.


Chairman Herb Frady: Well, I was thinking that a, with a scaled-down version of the Phase Three, that I don’t
have a problem with moving the federal funds over to the East Bypass.  But, after scaling that down, I think
there were some estimates that for it, you could probably finish that with the bridge from between $5 and $7
million.  Is that something you worked on?  Lee was alluding to that a little while ago.


Mallon: Yes, the scaled-down version, we could really design it to whatever budget the Board sets.  There’s
a three or four intersections that could be improved, you have the bridge, do we keep it as part of the project,
or do you keep it as a stand-alone federal aid project.  So, I do not have a cost estimate for exactly what that
would be, because it’s a matter of, we could almost make it as large or as small . . . 


Frady: I would like to see us do that, cause use existing roads and just improve intersections.  And even if it
takes roundabouts, something like that.  I would like to see that happen, and if you want to move the federal
funds over to the East Bypass that’s fine.  But I think we we’d have enough in our SPLOST to finish the south
part.  At least we’d get one of the roads finished.  And buy property for the other one.  


Mallon: Well, I, truth, I just hear different guidance on Phase Three of the West.  I just need a . . . 


Frady: Well, I’d like to make a motion . . .


Mallon: You give me a majority from the Board and I’ll get it done.


Frady: I’d like to make a motion to do that if it’s in order to do so . . . 


Brown: Well, I don’t particularly want to do the Phase Three of the West Fayetteville Bypass.  I’ve made that
pretty clear.  The bridge, I think, we could do the bridge.  Like you said, it’s already programmed individually.
I am astounded by the sheer lack of funding that we, Fayette County has allotted in the regional TIP anyway,
so I think we ought to be pounding the table over at ARC asking where’s our share of those funds, because,
if you look at what the other counties are getting in the TIP and you look at what Fayette County is getting in
the TIP, there is no comparison.  I mean, we are just getting whitewashed on this thing.  So, I think we could
get that bridge money really, really quick.  I think, you know, if you’re looking at the East Fayetteville Bypass,
you better buy that right-of-way as soon as you can.  We’ve got money in that fund, and it would behoove us
to buy the right-of-way, because you are never going to find real estate prices as low as you are going to find
them today.  And the market is starting to tighten up a little bit, the housing market, and you’ve gotta pray that







Minutes
August 9, 2012
Page Number 6


things are eventually going to get better.  So, those market rates are going to go up.  But, in terms of right-of-
way, you are never going to find a better market than what you’ve got right now.  So, I would take every dime
we have in that SPLOST, before they dedicate it for the West Fayetteville Bypass Phase Three, and I would
start looking at right-of-way purchases, and secure some of that property at record low rates.


Mallon: The problem with that is, as long as we stay in the federal program, we can’t even talk to people about
right-of-way until we reach a hurdle that we are really over a year away from still.


Hearn: Phil, I would make a motion, or Chairman, I would make a motion that we reallocate the federal funds
from the West Fayetteville Bypass to the East Fayetteville Bypass.


Frady: What about the (indecipherable) . . . 


Hearn: About Phase Three, I would say that we take the federal funds from Phase Three and reallocate them
to the East Fayetteville Bypass.


Mallon: If I could, for point of clarity, we obviously can’t do that at the local level, it will be a request that I make
of ARC to get them and GDOT to buy into.  


Frady: But you can make a motion to do a study down there to see what it costs to do Phase Three with
roundabouts and what have you.


Hearn: Well, I would amend my motion to, you know, I think it would be appropriate, Phil, if staff would come
up with a revised estimate for Phase Three of the Bypass with intersection improvements and kind of a scaled-
down version like we’ve talked about several times.


Frady: I second that, oh . . .


Hearn: And, as part of that, you know, I guess at that time, we could decide whether to reallocate the funds
over to the East Fayetteville Bypass once we see those, what those dollars are for the scaled-down version.
Because we don’t necessarily have to do that tonight.


Frady: So you motion would be that we would . . .


Hearn: Direct staff to come up with a estimate . . . 


Frady: Local option sales tax rather than federal funds . . . 


Hearn: Yes.  


Mallon: And is that something you would, uh, for us to do in-house, or hire a consultant to do?


Hearn: In terms of an estimate, Phil, I, I mean, with an estimate that we’ve got for some of the work at on the
West Fayetteville Bypass, on Phase Two, I believe, perhaps, some of that could be pretty applicable, apples
with apples sort of thing.  And, I just assume get the staff to do that.  







Minutes
August 9, 2012
Page Number 7


Mallon: Yeah, I’m comfortable with staff doing it, I didn’t know if the Board had a preference.  A consultant
would be faster, but not necessarily after you go through the bidding element.


Hearn: So I guess there is two parts to my motion.  One, is I would ask staff to come up with an estimate on
scaled-down version of the Phase Three of the West Fayetteville Bypass.  And part two of that motion would
be that we would go ahead and authorize staff to submit the necessary paperwork at ARC on reallocating the
funding for the West Fayetteville Bypass Phase Three- federal dollars to the East Fayetteville Bypass.


Frady: Second.


Hearn: Is that clear?


Frady: Is that straight enough for you?


Mallon: Yes.  


Frady: I made a motion, seconded it.  Any comments?


Brown: If I could.


Frady: You certainly may.


Brown: I just don’t think we should be pursuing more of the West Fayetteville Bypass, a road the people have
made ultimately clear they just don’t want to pursue.  And, we are doing it, still, and I think those monies could
be better used in many other ways.  


Frady: Anything else?


Commissioner Allen McCarty: Well, I want to be sure that we don’t count the cost of that bridge in there since
you mentioned that we had other ways of taking care of that bridge.  So that should not count into part of the
cost of doing the West Fayetteville Bypass Phase Three.


Mallon: Yeah, I will keep that as a separate project.


McCarty: And, frankly, it wouldn’t hurt me if we put all the bypasses on hold for a year or two until the economy
got better.  


Frady: Is there any more comments?  All in favor signify by saying “Aye”. (Chairman Frady, Commissioner


Horgan, and Commissioner Hearn voted in favor of the motion by saying “Aye”).  Those opposed likewise.
(Commissioner Brown and Commissioner McCarty voted in opposition to the motion by saying “Nay”.)


Mallon: Okay, thank you.


Frady: You got your instructions.  


Mallon: Yes, sir.







Minutes
August 9, 2012
Page Number 8


Frady: Alright, thanks.


Horgan: Thank you.


Hearn: Thank you, Phil.


[This transcript ends at 7:23:20 of the recording.]


Commissioner Hearn moved to direct staff to prepare a cost estimate for a scaled-down version of Phase III
of the West Fayetteville Bypass and to authorize staff to submit the necessary paperwork to the Atlanta
Regional Commission (ARC) reallocating federal funding for the West Fayetteville Bypass– Phase III to the East
Fayetteville Bypass– Phase I.  Chairman Frady seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  The motion passed
3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


There was no Administrator’s Report.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


There was no Attorney’s Report.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Lee Hearn: Commissioner Hearn commented on recent allegations from Commissioner Brown, and he
asked the people to make a decision on the veracity of those allegations.


Commissioner Allen McCarty: Commissioner McCarty said he had no comment other than he though the
Commissioners were not supposed to talk about each other during the Commissioners’ Reports. 


Commissioner Steve Brown: Commissioner Brown responded to Commissioner Hearn’s comments.  He also spoke
about Georgia House Bill 1200 and Georgia Senate Bill 474 by saying those bills call for all ten counties in the Atlanta
Regional Commission to be involved in a regional transit system under regional transit governance. 


Chairman Herb Frady: Chairman Frady replied to Commissioner Brown’s comments, and he insisted that buses and
transit would not come to Fayette County unless the people voted for it.    


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


There was no Executive Session.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Hearn moved to adjourn the August 9, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Minutes
August 9, 2012
Page Number 9


The Board of Commissioners’ adjourned their August 9, 2012 meeting at 7:39 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
         Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                       Herbert Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 23rd day of August 2012.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


August 23, 2012
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PUBLIC HEARING:


1. Consideration of Petition No. 1224-12, James L. Dixon and Maria Dixon,
Owner / Agent, request to rezone 0.93 acres from A-R to C-H.  This property
is located in Land Lot 154 of the 7th District and fronts on 349 Senoia Road.


2. Public Hearing and submission of Resolution 2012-18 for the adoption of the
proposed 2012 Property Tax Millage Rates.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax
Assessor’s Office.


2. Approval of staff’s request to utilize $2,188.30 from Stormwater
Management’s Repair and Maintenance Service Account for the employment
of a temporary intern who will perform 280 hours of infrastructure inventory
and GIS data manipulation.


3. Approval of staff’s request to insert an annual septic system maintenance
flyer into Stormwater Management’s annual utility bills.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to modify the awarding of Bid #P828
Emergency Generator by adding the purchase and installation of a manual
bypass switch for the Uninterrupted Power Supply (UPS) from Queen Capital
Group, LLC., in the amount of $3,588.00, and to authorize the Chairman to
sign the contract and related documents contingent upon the County
Attorney’s review.


5. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2012
Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $992.78 for
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.


6. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2013
Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $2,603.79 for
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
August 23, 2012
Page Number 2


7. Approval of staff’s request to submit an application to the Georgia Association of Emergency Medical Services
for a Georgia Trauma Care Network Commission Grant, for the purchase of any equipment that will enhance
the care of trauma patients, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the grant application contingent upon
the County Attorney’s review.


8. Approval of a Joint Funding Agreement between Fayette County and the U.S. Geological Survey, beginning
October 1, 2012 and ending September 30, 2013, in the amount of $90,600.00, to provide for the monitoring
of water flow at four sites, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the agreement and related documents
contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


9. Approval of staff’s request for the Board to declare 31 Trace transponders as unserviceable, to sell said items
through the GovDeals website, and for the proceeds from the sales to return to the Water System’s Sale of
General Fixed Assets account.


10. Approval of the Water System’s request to insert a letter about payment options, and about the ENERGY STAR
and WaterSense Sales Tax Holiday in October, into customers’ September water bills.


11. Approval of the August 1, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting Minutes and the August 9, 2012
Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-11 approving proposed amendments to the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Part II County Code, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Peachtree City Council Member Kim Learnard would like to provide the Board with a briefing on a new initiative
for Fayette County known as the “Fayette College and Career Academy.”


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration Kim Learnard


Peachtree City Council Member Kim Learnard would like to provide the Board with a briefing on a new initiative for Fayette County known 


as the "Fayette College and Career Academy."


Over the past several months, Peachtree City Council Member Kim Learnard has chaired a group of local leaders consisting of elected 


officials, business and industry leaders, and educators on the need for a College and Career Academy in Fayette County. 


 


Recently, the Fayette County Board of Education has provided initial funding to institute a formal process consisting of a needs 


assessment for further development of this initiative.  Council Member Learnard would like to present the Board of Commissioners with 


an overview of the program and the next steps to be taken in order to bring this vision to fruition.


No action is required.  This request is for informational purposes only.


No Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, August 23, 2012







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 1 


Fayette College and Career Academy: A Roadmap 
 


What is a College and Career Academy? 


Learning for a Career 


Course Offerings at a College and Career Academy 


K12 Public School System Engagement 


Technical College Engagement 


Four-Year College Engagement 


Industry Engagement 


College and Career Academies in Georgia 


Why This, Why Now? 


Getting Established: A Sample Timeline of Events 


Strategic Plan 


Sustainability 


Case Study: Henry County Center for Advanced Studies 


Additional Resources 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 2 


What is a College and Career Academy? 
 
A College and Career Academy is a location where efforts of the public K12 school system, the 
local technical college, and the local four year college are combined to create educational 
programs for students. Many of the educational programs are designed to meet the needs of local 
businesses and industries. High school students are typically bussed to the centralized location so 
they can take coursework for part of their day. Traditional adult college students also take 
coursework in the same facility.  
 
Here in Fayette County, a College and Career Academy would serve students from all five high 
schools in a centralized location. Local businesses and industries would be engaged in designing 
curricula and identifying career paths based on their technical needs. These career paths might 
include healthcare, the hospitality industry, culinary arts, aviation electronics, broadcasting, auto, 
machining, welding, printing and graphics, law enforcement, engineering, vet tech, cosmetology, 
and more. 
 
A College and Career Academy is typically a community hub where organizations such as the 
Chamber of Commerce and the Development Authority can conduct meetings. Here in Fayette 
County, the College and Career Academy could serve as a practice facility for middle schoolers 
participating in Science Olympiad. It would allow the current Southern Crescent Technical 
College programs including GED, ESOL, and Citizenship classes to expand as more programs 
are introduced. It would provide a facility for expansion of Clayton State University programs. 
Industry roundtable meetings and Quick Start training could be conducted here. It would 
facilitate career fairs for local industries. 
 
A “charter” is a document that sets up the parameters for the College and Career Academy. 
Having an approved charter means that while the College and Career Academy must still adhere 
to achievement standards, it also has flexibility in some aspects such as hiring and methodology. 
A College and Career Academy is a public school. Charter approval comes from the local school 
board and all control remains local. 
 
Finally, a College and Career Academy is a public/private partnership. Community-wide support 
comes from involving business leaders, educational leaders, political leaders, students and 
parents.  
 
A College and Career Academy is not in competition with the public high schools; rather, it 
vastly increases opportunity for students in all of the high schools. Students at a College and 
Career Academy become more motivated to learn. Dropout rates are reduced. Achievement 
improves. Students are able to participate in the global economy as world-class workers and 
citizens while having the option to remain employed in their local community. 
 
A College and Career Academy is a place where learning is put into action. There is no doubt 
that this concept is fabulous for students. It is great for business and industry. But it also makes 
government – the school system – more efficient. It’s a win-win-win.  
 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 3 


Learning for a Career 
 
The unique purpose of a College and Career Academy is to provide learning in the context of 
jobs. Students in a College and Career Academy learn that everything they do counts, everything 
works together, and everything is connected. A student in engineering knows why not only 
algebra but also speech and writing classes are important in their field of study.  
 
Work-based learning is heavily emphasized; students are encouraged to pursue opportunities to 
job shadow or intern in local businesses so they can learn the practical aspects of their field. The 
workplace becomes an alternative classroom setting. 
 
A College and Career Academy is driven by industry needs. Course offerings and curriculum, 
and even facilities and equipment, are based on the needs of local businesses and industries. 
Many of the instructors come from industry.  
 
A College and Career Academy means changing the way we think about preparing high school 
students for college or for a career. For example, last year 52% of Georgia students taking AP 
courses scored a 3, 4, or 5 on their AP exams (58% nationally), indicating potential for success in 
college courses and a possibility they will earn college credit (depending on the college). By 
contrast, 95% of Georgia students in Dual Enrollment earned college credit.  
 


• A public education system serves high school students by preparing them for college. A 
College and Career Academy puts them in college.  


 


• A public education system serves high school students by preparing them for a career. A 
College and Career Academy puts them into the workplace so they can begin their career. 


 
Offering students exposure to real world applications for their classroom learning boosts 
engagement, provides students a realistic look at potential careers, and offers opportunity to 
begin practical learning earlier.  
 
The very mission of education is to make sure our students are trained and ready for college or 
the workplace. At a College and Career Academy: 


� Learning is relevant and students are highly engaged and motivated.  
� Instructors have industry experience. 
� The curriculum teaches work ethic. Students in work-based learning programs are 


evaluated on average four times per semester. 
� Curriculum is industry-driven. 
� The disconnect between classroom and workplace is eliminated. 
� Students don’t waste time – they start early in working toward diplomas, certificates, 


degrees or jobs. 
� Students have an opportunity to discover what they don’t like! 
� Students get to see what the work opportunities are and what the careers are really like. 


 
  
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 4 


Course Offerings at a College and Career Academy 
 
For high school students, the focus of a College and Career Academy is twofold: 1) integrating 
academics with career and technical education, and 2) integrating secondary and postsecondary 
education by emphasizing dual enrollment opportunities.  
 
Fayette County has five high schools. The Fayette County public K12 school system offers a 
wide variety of career-track courses, but they vary depending on the high school. For example, 
Fayette County High School offers Plant Science/Horticulture but none of the other high schools 
does. Sandy Creek and Whitewater offer Business Marketing. McIntosh is the only high school 
offering Construction. Only Starr’s Mill offers Early Childhood Education. McIntosh and Sandy 
Creek offer Graphic Arts. 
 
A College and Career Academy means these courses could be offered at a central location so that 
interested students can bus in from any of the five high schools. This vastly improves course 
offerings to all students.  
 
Consolidation also saves money. When the Central Educational Center (CEC) in Newnan opened 
in 2000, they added no net new teachers even as they added the career programs. Centralizing 
many of their course offerings freed up space in the existing high schools; consequently they 
have not built any new high schools in the 12 years since the CEC opened. A College and Career 
Academy essentially involves relocating some classrooms to the central location. 
 
College and Career Academies also provide a centralized location where high school students 
can take specialized high school courses. For example, in Newton County there were not enough 
students at any one of the three high schools to fill an AP Latin class. So AP Latin is offered at 
the College and Career Academy; they have a full class of students that feed in from all three 
high schools. Same for AP Statistics.  
 
Some career-track facilities are costly to build, install and maintain. For example, several of 
Georgia’s College and Career Academies have a state-of-the-art kitchen to facilitate a culinary 
arts program. Another example is an auto shop. Another is an electronics lab. Another is a CAD 
system. Building one such facility for an entire school system saves money and allows the school 
system to offer a wider variety of educational opportunities in multiple careers.  
 
Dual enrollment means high school students take college courses as part of their high school day. 
The credit they receive counts toward high school graduation; it also means college credit for the 
student. These college courses may be from Southern Crescent Technical College or Clayton 
State University. These college credits are earned at no charge to the student. 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 5 


K12 Public School System Engagement 
 
As a charter program, a College and Career Academy is not autonomous; it is approved and 
supported by the local school board. 
 
Typically the public school system provides bussing and logistics to transport students from high 
schools to the College and Career Academy. The school system may decide that teachers for 
some courses should be physically located in a classroom at the College and Career Academy, 
where their classrooms will include students from all of the high schools. Existing school system 
personnel in areas of work-based learning, alternative school, and other specialized arenas are 
valuable resources at the College and Career Academy.  
 
It is important to note that high school students taking courses at the College and Career 
Academy still belong to their ‘base’ schools. They can still participate in sports, band, and other 
after-school activities. They graduate from their base schools. 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 6 


Technical College Engagement 
 
The Technical College System of Georgia (TCSG) is second to none. Fayette County is served 
by Southern Crescent Technical College (SCTC), which is based in Griffin. SCTC is a public, 
accredited two-year postsecondary college with two main campuses located in Griffin and 
Thomaston.  
 
Traditionally, technical colleges offer a wide variety of Diploma, Certificate, and 2-Year Degree 
programs in business, healthcare, personal services, public safety, and technical fields. But the 
hallmark of technical colleges is their flexibility. SCTC also provides industry-specific programs 
and services. At a College and Career Academy, SCTC serves as the interface for many of the 
educational programs, offering a seamless college connection that bridges the gap between high 
school and a career.  
 
At a College and Career Academy, many high school students graduate from high school with a 
Diploma, a Certificate, or credits toward an Associate’s Degree from the local technical college. 
This dual participation is called Dual Enrollment. In the state of Georgia, tuition for high 
schoolers taking college courses in the dual enrollment program is free. 
 
The TCSG currently offers 27 courses in a wide range of disciplines, ranging from Art 
Appreciation to Economics to Physics to World History, for which credit transfers seamlessly 
into the Regents System of Georgia – University of Georgia, Georgia Tech, Georgia State, 
Georgia Southern, etc. Any number of these courses could be offered at the College and Career 
Academy. 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 7 


Four-Year College Engagement 
 
Clayton State University, based in Morrow, currently offers eight master’s degree programs and 
40 baccalaureate degree majors. Clayton State’s Fayette location currently involves adult 
students in traditional four-year-degree, degree completion, and continuing education programs.  
 
At a College and Career Academy, high school students may take college courses at Clayton 
State University through Dual Enrollment. Courses are fully accredited and widely accepted as 
transferable college credit. In the state of Georgia, tuition for high schoolers taking college 
courses in the dual enrollment program is free.  
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 8 


Industry Engagement 
 
Fayette County is home to hundreds of quality national and international businesses and 
industries, an industrial park, a world class hospital system, and a local airport. College and 
Career Academies are founded in large part on the principle of educating students to be 
technically ready to perform job functions needed by industries in the community.  
 
Success at a College and Career Academy comes from a strong partnership between the Fayette 
County public school system and the Fayette business community. The school system is engaged 
from the very beginning; yet it is the industries that drive the programs. Many of the CCA’s 
across the state formalized this agreement in a Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
An important feature of the partnership is the ability for business representatives to inform, 
design, and help deliver the curriculum. To ensure that classrooms are adequately equipped, 
discussions with employer partners include identification and acquisition of state-of-the-art 
equipment and technology. This flexibility means the CCA can help the Development Authority 
recruit industries to this community. 
 
National and international companies in the industrial park include Cooper, Sany, Hella, 
Gerresheimer, Hoshizaki, and dozens more – all with a need for a technically ready workforce. 
Many Fayette industries report they have jobs available that they cannot fill; the lack of a skilled 
workforce is now being felt not only in our community and in Georgia, but across the nation. 
 
Many industry needs overlap. For example, several Fayette industries have expressed a need for 
workers with knowledge and experience in drafting; small hand tools; math and metric 
measurement; blueprint reading; programming and operating CNC machines; welding and 
brazing; safe work practices; teamwork and communication skills; quality control; data analysis 
in Excel; and written communications in MSWord and Outlook. A College and Career Academy 
has the flexibility to create educational curricula that not only presents these disciplines in a 
classroom setting, but also facilitates opportunity for hands-on experience either in a lab or in the 
industry setting. 
 
Fayette County is unique in that we have a local airport. This means we could conceivably 
support a program in aviation electronics or related fields. Fayette County also has a thriving 
hospitality industry. A healthcare feeder program would provide technicians to the Piedmont 
Fayette hospital system. We also host important television filming endeavors with Drop Dead 
Diva and a number of projects in nearby Senoia; a robust film industry plan is in the works. The 
list of possibilities is endless. 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 9 


Industry Engagement at the CEC 
 
Work-based learning 


For the 2011-2012 school year, 216 Coweta County employer sites were interning or 
apprenticing Central Educational Center (CEC) students. Counting job shadowing and clinical 
rotations and interning and apprenticing, 773 CEC students did some kind of work-based 
learning last year. That represents 58.3% of the 1326 different high school students that were 
served by CEC last year. 
 
Yamaha, who helped originate the CEC, has been hiring from the college welding program for 
years. Piedmont Newnan Hospital has been hiring from the college CNA and other programs. 
High-tech entrepreneurs like GT Virtual Concepts have recently begun specific hires of CEC 
grads from pre-engineering and other programs.  
 
Technical college certificates 


Almost 130 students earned at least a Technical College Certificate of Credit last year. Another 
nearly 100 students earned a Construction Certificate, or more, sanctioned by the National 
Center for Construction Education and Research. Given that 636 of the 1326 students at the CEC 
were seniors, that means 230 of the 636, or 36%, graduated with a Certificate. 
 
College credit 


166 students earned college credit for at least one college course while in high school last year. 
166 of the 636 seniors is 26%. (Interestingly, one of Henry County’s goals is that by 2021, 45% 
of their graduating seniors will have college credit.) 
 
Economic Development 


Since the initial Needs Assessment, manufacturing was easily recognized as a critical area.  
Meeting the needs of companies like Yamaha, Yokogawa, Grenzebach, Georgia Power, Bonnell 
and other manufacturers was part of the original emphasis.  
 
In addition, the largest area of need was the healthcare industry. In Coweta County, Newnan 
Hospital and Emory Peachtree Regional are now merged and were acquired by Piedmont, which 
just opened the first new hospital facility in the area in 50 years. The CEC was a part of the team 
that recruited Piedmont to acquire the merged local hospitals. The CEC was also part of the team 
that recruited Cancer Treatment Centers of America-CTCA to Newnan. CTCA will open their 
fifth US hospital on August 15, 2012. 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 10 


College and Career Academies in Georgia 
 
More than 25 College and Career Academies are already underway in Georgia, with an 
additional ten in the works. The first to be established was the Central Educational Center (CEC) 
in Newnan, in 2000.  
 
Every College and Career Academy is unique because it serves the needs of the local business 
community. The CEC was established largely because Yamaha was planning to leave Coweta 
County due in large part to a lack of a technically trained workforce; the CEC created technical 
programs that met their needs. Yamaha has not only stayed in the community, but has added 
manufacturing production lines for additional vehicles.  
 
The Newton College and Career Academy includes a business incubator where local volunteers 
and SCORE executives counsel budding entrepreneurs in incorporating, tax issues, and business 
law. At the Southwest Georgia Tech P.R.E.P. Career Academy, graduates are placed into waiting 
jobs at John Deere, in Forestry and Wildlife Management positions, and in local veterinary 
offices – local businesses and industries that helped to design the educational programs. Lanier 
Charter Career Academy centers around culinary arts and the hospitality industry. Students there 
operate a catering and restaurant business called The Oaks. 
 
College and Career Academies are actively promoted by Lieutenant Governor Casey Cagle 
through the GCCAP program. The State of Georgia offers (approximately) a $3Million grant to 
districts that perform the Needs Assessment, establish and approve their charter, and follow a 
certain sequence of steps in assessing industry needs, getting established, and applying for the 
grant.  
 
The state of Georgia is strongly encouraging every high school to establish affiliation with a 
College and Career Academy.  
 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 11 


GCAP1 (2007-08) Awardees: 
  
1.            P.R.E.P. Career Academy (Southwest GA Tech, Thomas County Schools)  
2.            Effingham Career Academy (Savannah Tech, Effingham County Schools)  
3.            Floyd County College & Career Academy (GA Northwestern Tech, Floyd County Schools)  
4.            Golden Isles Career Academy (Altamaha Tech, Glynn County Schools)  
5.            Hapeville Charter Career Academy (Atlanta Tech, Fulton County Schools)  
6.            Tech High (Atlanta Tech, Atlanta Public Schools)  
  
GCAP2 (2008-09) Awardees: 
  
1.            Athens Community & Career Academy (Athens Tech, Clarke County Schools)  
2.            Lanier Charter Career Academy (Lanier Tech, Hall County Schools) 
3.            Douglas County College & Career Academy  (West GA Tech, Douglas County Schools)  
4.            Warren County Career Academy (Sandersville Tech, Warren County Schools) 
5.            Houston County Career Academy (Middle GA Tech, Houston County Schools)  
6.            Southeastern Early College & Career Academy (Southeastern Tech, Toombs, Montgomery, 


Treutlen County, and Vidalia City Schools)  
  
GCAP3 (2009-10) Awardees: 
  
1.            Newton College & Career Academy (DeKalb Tech, Newton County Schools) 
2.            Carroll County College & Career Academy (West GA Tech, Carroll County Schools)  
3.            Decatur Career Academy (DeKalb Tech, City of Decatur City Schools)  
4.            Liberty College & Career Academy (Savannah Tech, Liberty County Schools)  
5.            Rockdale Career Academy (DeKalb Tech, Rockdale County Schools)  
6.            Central Educational Center (West GA Tech, Coweta County Schools)  
  
GCAP4 (2010-11) Awardees: 
  
1.            Gordon County Schools College & Career Academy (GA Northwestern Tech, Gordon County 


Schools) 
2.            Baldwin County Career Academy (Central GA Tech, Baldwin County Schools) 
3.            Heart of GA College & Career Academy (Oconee Fall Line Tech, Dodge, Laurens and Wheeler 


County and the City of Dublin Schools) 
  
GCAP5 (2011-12) Awardees: 
  
1.            Barrow College & Career Academy (Lanier Tech, Barrow County Schools) 
2.            Lamar County College & Career Academy (Southern Crescent Tech, Lamar County Schools) 
3.            Northwest Georgia College & Career Academy (GA Northwestern Tech, Whitfield, Murray 


Counties & Dalton City Schools) 
4.            Putnam County College & Career Academy (Central GA Tech, Putnam County Charter School 


System) 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 12 


College and Career Academies In the works 


These CCA’s are in the process of applying for the GCAP grant (2012-2013): 


1. Henry County Center for Advanced Studies 


2. Greene County (Athens Tech) 


3. Bartow County (Chattahoochee Tech) 


4. North Springs High School 


5. Forsyth County 


6. Polk County 


7. Haralson County 


8. Madison County 


9. Grady County 


10. Troop County 


 


 


 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 13 


Why This, Why Now? 
 


• The President of the Fayette County Development Authority reports that the number one 
priority for companies considering locating in Fayette County is a technically ready 
workforce. 


• Fayette County businesses and industries report candidates are unprepared for the 
workforce, both technically and in terms of work ethic. They have jobs they cannot fill. 


• Manufacturing is returning to the U.S. 


• Automotive manufacturing is now heavily focused in the Southeast. (BMW in South 
Carolina; Mercedes in Alabama; Volkswagen in Chattanooga; Kia in LaGrange, Georgia; 
Hyundai in Montgomery, Alabama; Porsche North American Headquarters soon to locate 
in Hapeville, Georgia.) 


• Skills Gap – Two great concerns of employers today are finding good workers, and 
training them. The difference between the skills needed on the job and those possessed by 
the applicants, called the skills gap, is of real concern to human resource managers and 
business owners looking to hire competent employees. 


• The U.S. is experiencing a work ethic crisis. Georgia is implementing “Georgia’s BEST” 
and incorporating work ethic and soft skills into curricula. College and Career Academies 
typically include soft skills as part of course curricula, and address work ethic as part of 
the grading system. 


• 40% of all students who start college need some kind of academic remediation. (The 


Global Achievement Gap, Tony Wagner, 2008, p. 54) 


• We observe a nation of college graduates with debt and no job even as technical jobs 
remain unfilled. 52% of the students at Gwinnett Tech have a four-year degree. 


• European-based companies in Fayette County and surrounding areas are unaccustomed to 
the lack of apprenticeship programs that prepare young workers for careers. 


• Educational goals are changing from obtaining a four-year degree, to obtaining the 
necessary skills that will land a good job. 


• No Child Left Behind has, by many accounts, run its course. Georgia has opted out. It 
will be replaced with a CCRPI index that moves performance metrics away from 
standardized tests and toward career readiness. 


• The state of Georgia is legislating plans to make sure every high school student has 
opportunity to take Dual Enrollment courses (HB186 section 1(7)). 


• Q: Who is the ultimate consumer of education? A: Business and industry. And an 
educated, ready workforce is the #1 economic priority in today’s global economy. The 
College and Career Academy partnership paves a seamless highway from education to 
employment. 


 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 14 


Getting Established: A Sample Timeline of Events 
 
July, 2012   Establish Steering Committee. Establish subcommittees for needs 


assessment; fundraising; buildings and facilities; operations; and 
marketing. 


Aug-Oct, 2012  Conduct Needs Assessment. 


December, 2012   School Superintendent sends a non-binding Letter of Intent to the State 
Board of Education advising that Fayette County is pursuing a College 
and Career Academy. 


January, 2013   Establish 501(c)3.  


May, 2013   Charter is written and is provided to the FCBOE for approval. (This is 
called an ‘application.’) 


August, 2013   The FCBOE-approved Charter is submitted to the State DOE. (This is 
called an ‘application.’) 


September, 2013   GCCAP Grant application is submitted to the State. (This year’s deadline 
is 9/24/12.)* 


December, 2013   GCCAP Grant is awarded. 


January, 2014   Charter is approved by the state DOE. 


February 2014   Complete facilities, staffing, and curriculum planning and begin 
registration. 


Summer/Fall 2014   Fayette College and Career Academy is underway. 
 
 
* The requirements for the GCCAP Grant application are massive. The 14-part application 
involves numerous weighted criteria, attending a Capstone presentation and interview, 
documenting Dual Enrollment plans, legitimizing the participation of SCTC and Clayton State, 
and much more. 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 15 


Strategic Plan 
 


1. On July 17th we informally established a Steering Committee that would be directly 
accountable to  the Board of Education and the Superintendent. The Steering Committee 
is a short-term entity that will make decisions on evaluating results of the Needs 
Assessment; fundraising; buildings and facilities; operations; and marketing.  


 
2. We will also begin to establish a non-profit 501c(3) that will actually run the FCCA and 


hire the CEO. (The only employee of the non-profit is one CEO.) Board members can all 
come from the private sector. The name of the non-profit could be, for example, Fayette 
College and Career Academy, Inc. The non-profit manages the private assets that come 
in. The non-profit can also sign a contract with the Consultant, and take in money from 
foundations such as Clayton State University, SCTC, Fayette Chamber of Commerce, or 
the Development Authority. The non-profit can also donate money to the school system. 
Private donations to the non-profit may have ‘charitable contribution’ status.  


 
Steering Committee meetings can double as Board meetings of the non-profit.  
 
Either the school board or the non-profit will need to cover two funding imperatives, the 
Consultant and the Needs Assessment. For the consultant, this is a two-year process that can 
begin anytime.  
 
The Needs Assessment is a comprehensive, three-month process. It involves surveying area 
businesses that represent more than 50% of Fayette County’s workforce (state mandate if we 
want the $3M GCCAP grant). It involves compiling the data and doing a statistical analysis.  
Cost is estimated at $20,000. 
 
Funding the Consultant 


On August 6th, 2012, the Fayette County Board of Education approved funds for one year of the 
Consultant’s time plus $5000 toward the Needs Assessment. 
 
The second year of the Consultant’s time will most likely be paid for by the non-profit 501c(3). 
This assumes enough private donations will come in during the coming year to cover the cost. 
 
Funding the Needs Assessment 


Anything is possible. Additional funding could come from the Development Authority, Fayette 
Chamber, SCTC, the County, cities, industries, or any combination. 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 16 


Sustainability 
 
As a public/private partnership, a College and Career Academy is both publicly and privately 
funded. Public funding means state dollars related to enrollment pay for teachers. Sufficient 
enrollment means sufficient funds. A portion of each student’s Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 
dollars that historically go to the high school, go to the College and Career Academy. (Generally, 
52% of funding comes from state FTE dollars while 48% comes from local property taxes. Those 
percentages apply to each student.)  
 
A teacher’s salary is customarily paid from the state portion; benefits are customarily paid from 
the county portion. Generally, state dollars sustain the salary of the College and Career Academy 
teachers. (Initially, the CEC did not hire staff until they knew what the enrollment would be.) 
 
Private dollars often come in the form of labs, equipment, materials and facilities. Private 
donations and support may mean construction and implementation of an electronics lab, CAD 
stations, an auto shop, a kitchen, or other facility with equipment to support the needs of a local 
industry. Both initially and for the long run, the programs will be determined by the Needs 
Assessment. (This is a very important effort, done at the beginning!) 
 
A College and Career Academy student typically spends one third to one half of their day at the 
College and Career Academy. They will take both academic and career courses with that portion 
of their day. So if a student spends 1/3 of her day at College and Career Academy then 1/3 of the 
FTE dollars are set aside at the district level to serve the child at the College and Career 
Academy. Generally, academic classes with 20 students, and Career Tech classes with 15 
students, draw sufficient funding. The Fayette County school system is on a 6-period day; career 
classes are likely to be two of those.  
 
(As an added consideration, most College and Career Academies have teachers with vast 
industry experience. That’s part of a great concept, but it also calls for more funding. At the 
CEC, the average salary is $55-60,000 vs. the school district average which is $10,000 less.)  
 
Dual enrollment classes involve college teachers, not school district teachers. Yet high school 
students who participate in dual enrollment do not mean reduced dollars to the school district. 
(There is no reduction in FTE dollars.) 
 
Just by having the College and Career Academy and offering career-oriented courses, high 
school dropout rates and loss of students due to families leaving the area are reduced. Over time, 
a positive impact on economic development throughout the community is realized as local 
industries flourish and job opportunities improve.  
 
 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 17 


Case Study: Henry County Center for Advanced Studies 
 
Henry County has ten high schools. They are establishing their CCA, called the “Center for 
Advanced Studies,” under the roof of the recently renovated Henry County High School which is 
centrally located in the county. Leadership has come from the school system and the business 
community. 
 
They already offered a fairly wide variety of career track course options, but establishing a CCA 
will provide several advantages: 


• Coursework will be driven by industry.  Their Needs Assessment indicates their first 
priority will be Logistics and Healthcare. Their second priority will be Advanced 
Manufacturing, and Professional Business Services such as call centers and IT support. 
Their third priority will be the Service Industry and Tourism.  


• The facility is designed to house SCTC, Clayton State, and Gordon College. This 
facilitates dual enrollment courses. 


• $3Million GCCAP grant application will be submitted to the state by September of 2012. 


• SCTC has decided to build an 8-building campus adjacent to the Henry County High 
School, on 25 acres of land that was donated by the public school system. They will 
break ground on the first building in fall of 2012. 


 
Origins 


The CCA was originally the brainchild of two people, Superintendent of Schools Dr. Ethan 
Hildreth, and the Henry County Chamber of Commerce President Kay Pippin. They identified a 
trained and ready workforce as crucial to economic development countywide. Their mutual 
effort is called “E2: Economics in Education.” They engaged industry and educational leaders in 
creating an “Action Plan for Education & Workforce Development.”  
 
Funding 


Their effort involved no initial private funding or grant dollars. The school system hired and paid 
the Consultant, Russ Moore of Seamless Education, Inc. for 18 months of service. The cost of 
the Needs Assessment was shared by the school system, the Henry County Development 
Authority, and SCTC.  
 
(The Needs Assessment was a very streamlined process because they already had a strong 
industry roundtable group with widespread support and good communication.) 
 
Goals 


Their “Action Plan” document spells out their goals, which include: 
� Increase the graduation rate 
� Improve academic rank among top Georgia school systems 
� Secure a Technical College 
� Increase dual enrollment 
� Survey the local business community to identify the technical and academic skills and 


educational credentials needed in the workplace. 
 
Additionally, by 2021, Henry County wants 45% of all high school seniors to have college credit 
in hand upon graduation. 







  


Rev. 7  8/7/12 18 


Additional Resources 
 


Southern Crescent Technical CollegeSouthern Crescent Technical CollegeSouthern Crescent Technical CollegeSouthern Crescent Technical College – www.sctech.edu  


Clayton State UniversityClayton State UniversityClayton State UniversityClayton State University – www.csu.edu  


 


Central Educational Center (CEC)Central Educational Center (CEC)Central Educational Center (CEC)Central Educational Center (CEC)  – A “Charter College and Career Academy” located in 


Newnan, serving Coweta County. From the website:  “CEC is a unique partnership, a “joint 
venture” among business and industry, the Coweta County School System, and West Georgia 
Technical College… A charter school designed to meet the needs of a 21st century economy by 
seamlessly blending secondary and post secondary education and training with business and 
industry.” www.gacec.com  
 


CEC Replication DocumentCEC Replication DocumentCEC Replication DocumentCEC Replication Document – “Strengthening Education to Drive Economic Development” 


is a 210-page guide that spells out exactly how to replicate the CCA model in your own 
community. http://www.gacec.com/Resources/repmanual.html  
 


Institute of Education SciencesInstitute of Education SciencesInstitute of Education SciencesInstitute of Education Sciences – a federal study of the CEC and four replication sites in 


Georgia. http://ies.ed.gov/ncee/edlabs/regions/southeast/pdf/rel_2011101.pdf 
 


GeorGeorGeorGeorgia Career Academies Project (Ggia Career Academies Project (Ggia Career Academies Project (Ggia Career Academies Project (GCCCCCCCCAP)AP)AP)AP) – from the website, as stated by Lt. Governor 


Casey Cagle:  “The Georgia Career Academy Project provides a vital link between high schools, 
technical colleges or universities, and local businesses… We are already seeing very special 
results through Career Academies, and we have only begun to see their true potential in the lives 
of Georgia’s students. Graduation rates are exceeding all expectations and students who graduate 
move on to well-paying jobs. Now more than ever, Georgia needs talented individuals who are 
ready to go to work. Career Academies prepare students for the workforce.”   
 


Go Build GeorgiaGo Build GeorgiaGo Build GeorgiaGo Build Georgia – this is a result of the Georgia Competitiveness Initiative of 2011. 


Promoted by Governor Deal, the program refers to reestablishing the importance of skilled trades 
as part of a ready workforce. This is a public/private partnership between state government, the 
Technical College System, apprenticeship programs and industry. www.gobuildgeorgia.com  
 


ConstructionConstructionConstructionConstruction Education Foundation of Georgia (CEFGA) Education Foundation of Georgia (CEFGA) Education Foundation of Georgia (CEFGA) Education Foundation of Georgia (CEFGA) partners construction 


companies, trade associations, the Technical College System of Georgia, and the Georgia 
Department of Education to support training programs and encourage students to pursue careers 
in construction. The national career expo was held at the Georgia International Convention 
Center on March 15th.   www.CEFGA.org  
 
 





		Administration- Learnard Agenda Request File

		Administration- Learnard Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


911 Communications Cheryl Rogers


Approval of staff's recommendation to modify the awarding of Bid #P828 Emergency Generator by adding the purchase and installation 


of a manual bypass switch for the Uninterrupted Power Supply (UPS) from Queen Capital Group, LLC., in the amount of $3,588.00, and 


to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


On June 28, 2012, the Board of Commissioners awarded Bid #P828 E-911 Emergency Generator, for the Uninterrupted Power Supply 


(UPS) and generator at the 911 Communications Center, to Queen Capital Group, LLC., in the amount of $109,780.00.   


 


A manual bypass switch is required in order for the Communications Center to have as little down time possible due to a power outage.  


The cost of the manual bypass switch and its installation is $3,588.00.  If this request is approved, the vendor will be required to provide 


emergency power to the Communication Center while work is taking place, in order to ensure there will be no interruption in emergency 


communications. 


 


The budgeted amount for this project was $122,500.00.  After the Board awarded Bid #P828 on June 28, 2012, in the amount of 


$109,780.00, the remaining balance for this project decreased to $12,720.00.  Staff is requesting the Board's authorization to utilize part 


of the remaining $12,720.00 balance in order to pay for manual bypass switch and its installation.  Should the Board approve this 


request, the new balance for this project will be $9,132.00.  


Approval of staff's recommendation to modify the awarding of Bid #P828 Emergency Generator by adding the purchase and installation 


of a manual bypass switch for the Uninterrupted Power Supply (UPS) from Queen Capital Group, LLC., in the amount of $3,588.00, and 


to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


E-911 funds are available for this request.


Yes Thursday, June 28, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012







1


Floyd Jones


From: Regina Williams 


Sent: Friday, July 27, 2012 3:26 PM


To: Cheryl Rogers


Subject: manual transfer switch


Good afternoon Ms. Rogers, 


I have gotten our quote for the transfer switch, conduit, wire and misc materials and worked up the quote for Fayette 


County.  The cost will be $3588.  I have cut the overhead and profit to the bone because I know Fayette County was not 


expecting this expense.  I was not sure who I should sent it to so I thought it would be best to start with you since we 


discussed this.  Please let me know how you wish to proceed and when we should meet again. 


 


Thank you and have a great weekend. 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 





		Communications- Modified Gene...d UPS Agenda Request File

		Communications- Modified Generator and UPS Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Mary S. Holland


Public Hearing and submission of Resolution 2012-18 for the adoption of the proposed 2012 Property Tax Millage Rates.


Resolution 2012-18 has been drafted to establish the proposed 2012 millage rates, as described below. 


 


Each year, the Board of Commissioners set tax millage rates for the purpose of levying property taxes. This is the only Public Hearing 


designated for setting millage rates this year. 


 


The proposed 2012 millage rates are as follows: 


 


 1) General Fund's Maintenance and Operations- 5.645 mills, no change from 2011, 0.681 mills less than the 2012 rollback rate. 


 2) Fire Services- 3.030 mills, a 0.530 mill increase from 2011 and a 0.118 increase from the 2012 rollback rate. 


 3) EMS Services- 0.450 mills, no change from 2011, 0.072 mills less than the 2012 rollback rate. 


 4) E-911 Services- 0.207 mils, no change from 2011, 0.025 mills less than the 2012 rollback rate. 


 


The County wide proposed tax levy for 2012 totals $32,266,762.99, a $2,768,247.79 decrease, -7.9% from the 2011 tax levy of 


$35,035,010.78.


Conduct Public Hearing.  Adoption of Resolution 2012-18 establishing the proposed 2012 millage rates.


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, August 23, 2012







2012 Property Tax         
Millage Rates


Fayette County 
Board of Commissioners


August 23, 2012







Digest Changes - 2012
• 2011 Digest $4,789,562,720


� Growth in Digest
�Real Property $6,962,120


�Personal & Other Property       16,291,538


�Motor Vehicles 13,938,490 37,192,148


� Negative Reassessments


�Real Property     518,864,329


Increase in Exemptions/Decrease in Digest 6,619,123


� Negative Change in Net Digest (10.2%) 488,291,304


• 2012 Digest $4,301,271,416











PROPOSED
Millage Rates
2012 vs 2011


Description


Proposed


2012


Actual           


2011


Change 


Increase / 


(Decrease)


General Fund 


Maintenance & 


Operations (M&O)


5.645 5.645 -0-


Fire Services 3.030 2.500 0.53


Emergency 


Medical Services


0.450 0.450 -0-


E911 Services 0.207 0.207 -0-







PROPOSED
Millage Rates
2012 vs 2011


Description


Proposed


2012


Actual  


2011


Change 


Increase / (Decrease)


Over Last Year


PTC


M&O


E-911


5.645


0.207


5.852


5.645


0.207


5.852


-0-


Fayetteville


M&O


EMS


E-911


5.645


0.450


0.207 


6.302


5.645


0.450


0.207 


6.302


-0-


Unincorporated County/


Brooks/Tyrone


M&O


EMS


Fire


E-911


5.645


0.450


3.030


0.207 


9.332


5.645


0.450


2.500


0.207 


8.802


+0.530























PT-35 (Rev 02/09)


COUNTY MILLAGE RATE CERTIFICATION FOR TAX YEAR 2012


Please provide a copy of this form to your county's Clerk of Superior Court.


http://www.etax.dor.ga.gov/ptd/download/index.aspx


COUNTY: 


Submit three (3) original signed copies with digest submission


COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 COLUMN 4 COLUMN 5 COLUMN 6 COLUMN 7 COLUMN 8 COLUMN 9 COLUMN 10


District District Name Mark X if Mark X if Enter Gross Sales Insurance Duplication of Net M&O Enter Total


Number (Inc, Uninc, School, District Falls In District Falls In Millage Rate Tax Premium Services Rollback Millage Rate Bond Millage Rate


Must be Special Districts, Unincorporated Incorporated Before Rollback Rollback Pursuant to Column 4 less Millage Column 8 plus 


Shown Etc.) Area Area Rollbacks OCGA § 48-8-91 OCGA § 33-8-8.3 OCGA § 36-70-24 Columns 5, 6 & 7 Rate Column 9


1 Unincorporated M&O X 7.920 2.275 5.645 5.645


2 Fayetteville M&O X 7.920 2.275 5.645 5.645


3 Tyrone M&O X 7.920 2.275 5.645 5.645


4 Brooks M&O X 7.920 2.275 5.645 5.645


5 Peachtree City M&O X 7.920 2.275 5.645 5.645


1,3,4 County Fire X X 3.030 3.030 3.030


1,2,3,4 County EMS X X 0.450 0.450 0.450


1,2,3,4,5 County E911 X X 0.207 0.207 0.207


County School 20.000 20.000 1.450 21.450


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


0.000 0.000


                                                                                           ____________________                                       ______________________________________________
Date                                                Chairman, Board of County Commissioners


COLUMN 3


                          FAYETTE 


I hereby certify that the rates listed above are the official rates for the Districts indicated for Tax Year 2012







State of Georgia; 
County of Fayette              
  


RESOLUTION LEVYING COUNTY TAX 


FOR YEAR 2012 


No. 2012 - 18 


 
Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of 


Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 23rd  day of August, 2012, that upon 


$1,622,531,908, the value of all property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as 


appears upon the digest thereof, and upon all other taxable property in unincorporated Fayette County, 


Georgia, there be levied and collected for County general maintenance and operations purposes as set 


forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, and as hereinafter amended and as 


otherwise authorized by law, a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2012, for all such purposes of  $5.645 per 


$1,000.00 of assessed valuation, constituting a tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes of 5.645 mills. 


Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of 


Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 23rd  day of August, 2012, that upon 


$2,678,739,508,  the value of all property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as 


appears upon the digest thereof, and upon all other taxable property in incorporated Fayette County, 


Georgia, there be levied and collected for County general maintenance and operation purposes, as set 


forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, as hereinafter amended and as 


otherwise authorized by law, ad valorem, for the year 2012, at the aggregated rate for all such 


purposes to be levied as follows:  


  
1. All property located within the City of Fayetteville  will be assessed at $5.645 per $1000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Fayetteville of  5.645 mills; 


 


2. All property located within the City of Peachtree City will be assessed at  $5.645 per $1000.00 


of assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Peachtree City of  5.645 mills; 


 


3. All property located within the Town of Tyrone will be assessed at $5.645 per $1000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Tyrone of  5.645 mills; 


 


4. All property located within the Town of Brooks will be assessed at  $5.645 per $1000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Brooks of  5.645 mills; 


 


 







5. All property located within the Town of Woolsey will be assessed at $5.645 per $1000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Woolsey of  5.645 mills. 


 


In accordance with provisions within the Constitution of the State of Georgia and the Official 


Code or Georgia, Fayette County has created a special tax district for the purpose of providing Fire 


Protection Services to its citizens, said special tax district encompassing all of Fayette County with the 


exception of that portion of Fayette County which constitutes the City of Peachtree City and the City 


of Fayetteville. Upon $1,950,560,355, the value of all property taxable within the Special Fire District, 


as appears on the digest thereof, there shall be levied and collected a tax of $3.030 per $1,000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting a total tax levy for the Special Fire Tax District of 3.030 mills. 


In accordance with provisions within Constitution of the State of Georgia and the Official 


Code of Georgia, Fayette County has created a special tax district for the purpose of providing 


Emergency Medical Services to its citizens, said special tax district encompassing all of Fayette 


County with exception of that portion of Fayette County which constitutes the City of Peachtree City. 


Upon $2,634,499,544, the value of all property taxable within the Special EMS Tax District, as 


appears upon the digest thereof, there shall be levied and collected a tax of $0.450 per $1,000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting a total tax levy for the Special EMS Tax District of 0.450 mills. 


In accordance with provisions within the Constitution of the State of Georgia and the Official 


Code of Georgia, Fayette County has created a special tax district for the purpose of providing E-911 


Communication Services to its citizens, said tax district encompassing all of Fayette County. Upon 


$4,301,271,416 the value of all property within the Special E-911 Tax District, as appears upon the 


digest thereof, there shall be levied and collected a tax of $0.207 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation, 


constituting a total tax levy of the Special E-911 Tax District of 0.207 mills. 


Upon recommendation of the Fayette County Board of Education, it is ordered that upon 


$3,912,434,552 the value of all property taxable for educational purposes in Fayette County as appears 


upon the digest thereof, and upon all other property in Fayette County, both real and personal, there be 


levied a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2012, for educational purposes in the amount of $20.000 per 


$1,000.00 of the assessed valuation on the digest as aforesaid, constituting a total tax levy for 


educational purposes of 20.000 mills. 


It is further ordered that upon $3,953,756,552, the value of all taxable property in said County 


as appears upon the digest thereof, computed by deducting only the special homestead exemption for 


certain persons 65 years of age and over, and upon all other taxable property in said County, both real 


and personal, there be levied and collected a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2012, for the purpose of 







 providing a sinking fund for retiring bonded indebtedness and discharging interest thereof, of the 


Fayette County School District, in the amount of $1.450 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation, 


constituting a total tax levy of 1.450 mills. 


It is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, this 23rd day 


of August, 2012, that all taxes, as described and as levied by the adoption of this Resolution, shall be 


due and collected by the Tax Commissioner of Fayette County, by the close of the business day on 


November 15, 2012. 


 


So resolved this, the 23rd day of August, 2012, by the 
 
 
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 


Attest: 
 


___________________________ 
County Clerk 





		Finance- Millage Rates Agenda Request File

		Finance- Millage Rates Backup

		Resolution 2012-18 Advalorem Tax Millage Rates Established

		Finance- MIllage Rates Backup

		Finance- Millage Rates Backup- 1

		Finance- Millage Rates Backup-2














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services M. Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's request to submit an application to the Georgia Association of Emergency Medical Services for a Georgia Trauma 


Care Network Commission Grant, for the purchase of any equipment that will enhance the care of trauma patients, and authorization for 


the Chairman to sign the grant application contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The Department of Fire and Emergency Services is requesting authority to submit an application for a grant opportunity to purchase 


trauma related equipment from funds provided by the Georgia Trauma Care Network Commission.  This grant, if awarded, will allow the 


department to purchase any equipment that would enhance the care of trauma patients. 


 


All 911 zoned EMS providers in Georgia are eligible to apply for this grant.  This grant will be awarded in an equal amount for each 


licenses ambulance used to provide emergency patient care as part of a 911 zone.  Each eligible ambulance will receive the same dollar 


amount in this grant.  Fayette County has six (6) eligible ambulances.  The exact amount of money to be allocated to each 911 zoned 


ambulances will be determined after the grant application deadline has passed on September 1, 2012. 


 


This is a non-competitive grant, and there are no matching funds required from Fayette County.


Approval of staff's request to submit an application to the Georgia Association of Emergency Medical Services for a Georgia Trauma 


Care Network Commission Grant, for the purchase of any equipment that will enhance the care of trauma patients, and authorization for 


the Chairman to sign the grant application contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


No matching funds are required.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012













		Fire and EMS- Georgia Trauma Care Grant Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Georgia Trauma Care Grant Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina / Dennis Dutton


Consideration of Petition No. 1224-12, James L. Dixon and Maria Dixon, Owner / Agent, request to rezone 0.93 acres from A-R to C-H.  


This property is located in Land Lot 154 of the 7th District and fronts on 349 Senoia Road.


This request is to rezone 0.93 acres, located in Land Lot 154 of the 7th District and fronts on 349 Senoia Road, from A-R to C-H for the 


purpose of developing an Auto Service and Repair Garage.  Senoia Road is classified as a Minor Arterial road on the Fayette County 


Thoroughfare Plan.  The portion of Senoia Road under consideration is part of the old alignment of State Route 74, which was realigned 


in the 1980s.   


 


The subject property contains a single-family residence, is currently zoned A-R, and is considered a legal nonconforming lot as a survey 


of the subject property was recorded in 1974 prior to the effective date of the Zoning Ordinance (November 13, 1980).  The subject 


property is nonconforming as it does not meet the minimum lot area of five acres or lot width of 250 feet in the A-R zoning district.  The lot 


also contains a legal, nonconforming structure as the existing residential structure does not meet the side yard setback of 50 feet. 


 


The Planning Commission (with one member absent) unanimously recommends approval of this rezoning request with two (2) conditions. 


Staff also recommends approval of this request with two (2) conditions. 


 


Approval of Petition No. 1224-12, James L. Dixon and Maria Dixon, Owner / Agent, request to rezone 0.93 acres from A-R to C-H with 


said property located in Land Lot 154 of the 7th District and fronts on 349 Senoia Road.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Condition 1)  Prior to site plan approval, the owner / developer shall donate at no cost to the County, via quit claim deed, all land within 50 


feet of the existing road's centerline, across the property's 125 feet of road frontage. Condition 2) Unless additional property can be 


acquired to alleviate the setback issue, the existing residential structure, partially located in the side yard setback, will need a variance 


approved by the Zoning Board of Appeals to remain in the setback prior to submittal of the site plan.


Public HearingThursday, August 23, 2012





















































































		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1224-12 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1224-12 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina / Scott Bennett


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-11 approving proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of 


Ordinances, Part II County Code, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages.


On April 26, 2012, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners adopted Resolution 2012-09 which authorized a referendum to be held 


on July 31, 2012 to determine whether or not the package sales by retailers of package malt beverages, wine, and distilled spirits in 


unincorporated Fayette County should be allowed on Sundays.  On July 31, 2012, Fayette County's voters passed the referendum to 


allow package sales in unincorporated Fayette County on Sundays with 65.09% of the vote. 


 


In order to effect the voter's decision, Fayette County's current ordinance must be amended to allow for Sunday sales of package beer 


and wine. 


 


Furthermore, the Fayette County Administrator is proposing additional amendments to the ordinance that will remove references to the 


"Business License Department" and will place administration of alcoholic beverage applications and licenses with Fayette County's 


Marshal's Office.   


 


It is also proposed to change the tax reporting and payment requirements from the "Business License Department" to the Finance 


Department.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-11 approving proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of 


Ordinances, Part II County Code, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, April 26, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, August 23, 2012







Sec. 3-47. - Application—Contents. 
 
(a) All applications for licenses, both original and renewal, shall be submitted to the 
marshal’s office and must be accompanied by a full and complete statement under oath of 
information relative to any and all interests (as defined in section 3-26) in retail packaged 
vinous liquor stores. This shall include:  
 


(1)  The names and addresses of all persons interested in the ownership of the 
business of selling at retail packaged vinous liquor, together with any interest 
each person or any member of his immediate family has in any other retail 
packaged spirituous liquor store or vinous liquor store.  


 
(2)  The ownership of the land and building where such retail business is 
operated. 


 
(3)  The amount of rental paid for the land and building and the manner in which 
the same is determined, and to whom and at what intervals it is paid.  


 
(4)  The names and addresses (by affidavit from the owner, lessor or sublessor of 
such land and building) of all persons having any whole, partial, beneficial or 
other interest in and to the land and building on and in which the retail packaged 
vinous liquor store is located.  


 
(5)  Any other information called for by the board of commissioners. 


 
(b)  Any change in any relationship herein declared must be filed with the business 
license departmentmarshal’s office when such change is made, and failure to so file 
within a period of thirty (30) days after such change is made shall be grounds for 
cancellation by the board of commissioners.  
 
Sec. 3-51. - Investigation of applicant; cooperation by applicant. 
 
(a)  All applications for new licenses for sale of packaged vinous liquor at retail and all 
applications for renewal of such new licenses shall be investigated by the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office. No such new or renewal license shall be acted upon by the 
board of commissioners or issued by the business license departmentmarshal’s office 
until the county attorney has indicated in writing that in his opinion, upon the facts as 
stated and ascertained by the business license departmentmarshal’s office, no violation 
exists as to any ordinance in effect as of the date of the rendering of such opinion. All 
applicants for new or renewal licenses shall furnish to the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office all data, information and records requested of them by the 
business license departmentmarshal’s office. Failure of the applicant to furnish such data, 
information and records within thirty (30) days from the date of the request by the 
business license departmentmarshal’s office shall automatically serve to dismiss with 
prejudice the application of any such applicant.  
 







(b)  Applicants, by filing for a license to sell package vinous liquor at retail, agree to 
furnish the data, information and records as called for herein and also agree to submit 
under oath to interrogation by the business license departmentmarshal’s office or the 
county attorney as to any facts considered pertinent to such application. Applicants, by 
filing such application, also agree to produce for oral interrogation by the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office or the county attorney any person requested by the business 
license departmentmarshal’s office and considered as being important in the 
ascertainment of the facts relative to the license. Failure to produce such persons within 
thirty (30) days after being requested to do so shall result in the automatic dismissal of 
any application for license.  
 


Sec. 3-56. - Procedure when license denied by state. 
 
In the event the applicant for a license required by this division is denied a license by the 
state, upon the proof of such refusal, he shall be entitled to a refund of the license fee, 
less the investigative fee as required in section 3-54(a)(2), plus an additional charge of 
twenty-five dollars ($25.00) to cover clerical cost of granting the license. Such refund 
may be made by the business license directorcounty marshal without the necessity of any 
action by the board of commissioners.  
 
Sec. 3-79. - Business hours and days. 
 
(a)  Retail dealers in vinous liquors shall not engage in the sale of such liquors except 
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on weekdays and shall not permit their 
places of business to be opened for the sale of vinous liquors on Sundays, election days 
and Christmas Day.  
 
(b)  An "election day", for the purposes of the sale of vinous liquors, means that period of 
time beginning with the opening of the polls and ending with the closing of the polls 
 
Sec. 3-82. - Employees; reports to police; investigation; fees. 
 
(a)  No retail licensee shall employ any minor, except as provided by state law, in his 
store, or in the department of a store where vinous liquors are sold. No retail licensee 
shall employ in any premises used for the sale of vinous liquors any person in any 
capacity whatsoever who has been convicted within ten (10) years of the date of 
employment of a felony, or any violation of the laws of this state, any other state or of the 
United States relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages.  
 
(b)  It shall be the duty of all persons holding retail or wholesale licenses to sell vinous 
liquors to file with the business license directorcounty marshal the names of all 
employees, with their home addresses, home telephone numbers and places of 
employment. Changes in the list of employees, with the names of new employees, must 
be filed with the business license directorcounty marshal within three (3) days from the 
date of any such change. All employees shall be subject to such investigative rules and 







regulations as may be deemed necessary from time to time by the business license 
departmentcounty marshal. A ten-dollar investigative fee shall be paid by all applicants.  
 
(c)  At the time of application or at the time a licensee hires a new employee, the licensee 
shall submit a current one-square-inch photograph of such employee for placement upon 
that employee's identification card. Photographs shall not be required for any licensed 
premises which employs fifteen (15) or more employees.  
 
(d)  No licensee shall allow any person to engage in the sale of vinous liquors prior to the 
completion of a satisfactory investigation by the business license department. Licensees 
in violation of this section shall be liable for a fine of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) 
per employee engaged in such practice. Subsequent offenses may subject licensee to 
suspension or revocation of his license.  
 
Sec. 3-84. - Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire 
department. 
 
(a)  All premises licensed under this article shall be kept clean and in proper sanitary 
condition and in full compliance with the provisions and regulations governing the 
condition of premises used for the storage and sale of food for human consumption.  
 
(b)  It shall be unlawful to permit any disturbance of the peace or obscenity or any lewd, 
immoral or improper entertainment, conduct or practices on the premises.  
 
(c)  The fire department shall, upon request of the business license departmentmarshal’s 
office, inspect such premises and report their findings to the county. All premises 
licensed hereunder shall conform at all times with all fire regulations of the county.  
 
Sec. 3-127. - Application—Contents. 
 
(a)  All applications for licenses, both original and renewal, shall be submitted to the 
marshal’s office and must be accompanied by a full and complete statement under oath of 
information relative to any and all interests (as defined in section 3-106) in retail 
packaged malt beverage stores. This shall include:  
 


(1)  The names and addresses of all persons interested in the ownership of the 
business of selling at retail packaged malt beverages, together with any interest 
each person or any member of his immediate family has in any other retail 
packaged malt beverage store.  


 
(2)  The ownership of the land and building where such retail business is 
operated. 


 
(3)  The amount of rental paid for the land and building and the manner in which 
the same is determined, and to whom and at what intervals it is paid.  


 







(4)  The names and addresses (by affidavit from the owner, lessor or sublessor of 
such land and building) of all persons having any whole, partial, beneficial or 
other interest in and to the land and building on and in which the retail packaged 
malt beverage store is located.  


 
(5)  Any other information called for by the board of commissioners. 


 
(b)  Any change in any relationship herein declared must be filed with the business 
license  departmentmarshal’s office when such change is made, and failure to so file 
within a period of thirty (30) days after such change is made shall be grounds for 
cancellation by the board of commissioners.  
 
Sec. 3-131. - Investigation of applicant; cooperation by applicant. 
 
(a)  All applications for new licenses for sale of packaged malt beverages at retail and all 
applications for renewal of such new licenses shall be investigated by the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office. No such new or renewal license shall be acted upon by the 
board of commissioners or issued by the business license departmentmarshal’s office 
until the county attorney has indicated in writing that in his opinion, upon the facts as 
stated and ascertained by the business license departmentmarshal’s office, no violation 
exists as to any ordinance in effect as of the date of the rendering of such opinion. All 
applications for new or renewal licenses shall furnish to the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office all data, information and records requested of them by the 
business license departmentmarshal’s office. Failure of the applicant to furnish such data, 
information and records within thirty (30) days from the date of the request by the 
business license departmentmarshal’s office shall automatically serve to dismiss with 
prejudice the application of any such applicant.  
 
(b)  Applicants, by filing for a license to sell package malt beverages at retail, agree to 
furnish the data, information and records as called for herein and also agree to submit 
under oath to interrogation by the business license departmentmarshal’s office or the 
county attorney as to any facts considered pertinent to such application. Applicants, by 
filing such application, also agree to produce for oral interrogation by the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office or the county attorney any person requested by the business 
license departmentmarshal’s office and considered as being important in the 
ascertainment of the facts relative to the license. Failure to produce such persons within 
thirty (30) days after being requested to do so shall result in the automatic dismissal of 
any application for license.  
 
Sec. 3-136. - Procedure when license denied by state. 
 
In the event the applicant for a license required by this division is denied a license by the 
state, upon the proof of such refusal he shall be entitled to a refund of the license fee, less 
the investigative fee as required in section 3-134(a)(2), plus an additional charge of 
twenty-five dollars ($25.00) to cover clerical cost of granting the license. Such refund 







may be made by the business license directorcounty marshal without the necessity of any 
action by the board of commissioners.  
 
Sec. 3-159. - Business hours and days. 
 
(a)  Retail dealers in malt beverages shall not engage in the sale of said beverages except 
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on weekdays and shall not permit their 
places of business to be opened for the sale of malt beverages on Sundays, Christmas Day 
or election days.  
 
(b)  An "election day", for the purposes of the sale of malt beverages, means that period 
of time beginning with the opening of the polls and ending with the closing of the polls. 
 
 
Sec. 3-162. - Employees; reports to business license directorcounty marshal; 
investigation; fees. 
 
(a)  No retail licensee shall employ any minor, except as provided by state law, in his 
store, or in the department of a store where malt beverages are sold. No retail licensee 
shall employ in any premises used for the sale of malt beverages any person in any 
capacity whatsoever who has been convicted within ten (10) years of the date of 
employment of a felony, or any violation of the laws of this state, any other state or of the 
United States relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages.  
 
(b)  It shall be the duty of all persons holding retail or wholesale licenses to sell malt 
beverages to file with the business license directorcounty marshal the names of all 
employees, with their home addresses, home telephone numbers and places of 
employment. Changes in the list of employees, with the names of new employees, must 
be filed with the business license directorcounty marshal within three (3) days from the 
date of any such change. All employees shall be subject to such investigative rules and 
regulations as may be deemed necessary from time to time by the business license 
departmentcounty marshal. A ten-dollar investigative fee shall be paid by all applicants.  
 
(c)  At the time of application or at the time a licensee hires a new employee, the licensee 
shall submit a current one-square-inch photograph of such employee for placement upon 
that employee's identification card. Photographs shall not be required for any licensed 
premises which employs fifteen (15) or more employees.  
 
(d)  No licensee shall allow any person to engage in the sale of malt beverages prior to 
the completion of a satisfactory investigation by the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office. Licensees in violation of this section shall be liable for a fine 
of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) per employee engaged in such practice. 
Subsequent offenses may subject licensee to suspension or revocation of his license. 
 
Sec. 3-164. - Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire 
department. 


Formatted: Font color: Auto


Formatted: Border: : (No border), Pattern:


Clear


Formatted: Border: : (No border), Pattern:


Clear







 
(a)  All premises licensed under this article shall be kept clean and in proper sanitary 
condition and in full compliance with the provisions and regulations governing the 
condition of premises used for the storage and sale of food for human consumption.  
 
(b)  It shall be unlawful to permit any disturbance of the peace or obscenity or any lewd, 
immoral or improper entertainment, conduct or practices on the premises.  
 
(c)  The fire department shall, upon request of the business license departmentmarshal’s 
office, inspect such premises and report their findings to the county. All premises 
licensed hereunder shall conform at all times with all fire regulations of the county.  
 
Sec. 3-180.1. - Authority and definitions. 
 
(a)  Authority.  
 


(1)  The provisions of this article pertaining to the sale of malt beverages by the 
drink for on-premises consumption are enacted pursuant to the authority granted 
to the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County by the State of Georgia.  


 
(2)  The provisions of this article pertaining to the sale of wine by the drink for 
on-premise consumption are enacted pursuant to the authority granted to the 
Board of Commissioners of Fayette County by the State of Georgia.  


 
(3)  The provisions of this article pertaining to the sale of distilled spirits, by the 
drink, for on-premise consumption are enacted pursuant to the authority granted 
to the Fayette County Board of Commissioners through a special election held 
July 20, 2004 pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 3-4-92 in which the qualified voters of 
Fayette County elected to permit such sale of distilled spirits by the drink within 
the unincorporated boundaries of the County of Fayette and O.C.G.A. § 3-4-110 
authorizing the board to adopt reasonable rules and regulations regarding 
licensing for such sales.  


 
(b)  Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 
have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly 
indicates a different meaning:  
 


Alcoholic beverage means all wines, malt beverages, beers, distilled spirits, and 
fortified wines as each is defined herein.  


 
Distilled spirit means any alcoholic beverage obtained by distillation or any 
alcoholic beverage containing more than twenty one (21) percent alcohol by 
volume, including but not limited to fortified wine.  


 
Fortified wine means any alcoholic beverage containing more than twenty-one 
(21) percent alcohol by volume and made from fruits, berries, or grapes either by 







natural fermentation or with brandy added. Fortified wine shall include but not be 
limited to the brandy.  


 
Golf course means a large tract of land laid out with a minimum of eighteen (18) 
holes over a distance of at least five thousand five hundred (5,500) yards, and 
used exclusively for playing golf.  


 
Hotel means every building or other structure kept, used, maintained, advertised 
and held out to the public to be a place where food is actually served and 
consumed and sleeping accommodations are offered for adequate pay to travelers 
and guests, whether transient, permanent or residential; and in which fifty (50) or 
more rooms are used for sleeping accommodations of such guests; and having one 
(1) or more public dining rooms, with an adequate and sanitary kitchen and a 
seating capacity of at least forty (40), where meals are served at least once a day 
to such guests; and where the sleeping accommodations and dining rooms are 
being conducted in the same building or in separate buildings or structures used in 
connection therewith that are in the same premises and are a part of the hotel 
operations. Motels meeting the qualifications set out herein for hotels shall be 
classified in the same category as hotels. Hotels shall have the privilege of 
granting franchises for the operation of a lounge or restaurant in their premises 
and the holder of such franchise shall be included in the definition of hotel 
hereunder. 


 
Intoxicating beverage means and includes any beverage containing any 
percentage of alcohol whatsoever.  


 
Licensee means an establishment holding a license to engage in the sale of 
distilled spirits, wines, or malt beverages by the drink, for consumption on the 
premises.  


 
Lounge means a separate room connected with, a part of and adjacent to a 
restaurant, or located in a hotel, as defined herein with all booths, stools and 
tables being unobstructed and open to view. All lounges shall be air conditioned 
and have a seating capacity of at least forty (40).  


 
Malt beverage means any alcoholic beverage obtained by the fermentation of any 
infusion or decoction of barley, malt, hops, or any other similar product, or any 
combination of such products in water, containing not more than fourteen (14) 
percent alcohol by volume and including ale, porter, brown, stout, lager beer, 
small beer, and strong beer. The term does not include sake, known as Japanese 
rice wine.  


 
Premises means the definite closed or partitioned-in locality, whether room, shop 
or building wherein alcoholic beverages are sold by the drink. For the purposes of 
this article only, premises shall also mean all real property upon which a golf 
course is constructed.  







 
Restaurant means any public place kept, used, maintained, advertised and held out 
to the public as a place where food is regularly served, and having no sleeping 
accommodations. Such place shall be provided with adequate and sanitary kitchen 
and dining room equipment and seating capacity of at least forty (40) people, and 
shall have employed therein a sufficient number and kind of employees to 
prepare, cook and serve suitable food for its guests. At least one (1) meal per day 
shall be served for each day the premises are open, with the exception of holidays, 
vacations, and periods of redecorating. The serving of such meals shall be the 
principal business conducted, with the serving of alcoholic beverages to be 
consumed on the premises as only incidental thereto; provided, however, at least 
sixty (60) percent of the annual gross income must be derived from the sale of 
such meals served for consumption on the premises. Such receipts shall be 
certified by the owner of the premises and reported to the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office on a quarterly basis.  


 
Wine means any alcoholic beverage containing not more than twenty-one (21) 
percent alcohol by volume made from fruits, berries, or grapes either by natural 
fermentation or by natural fermentation with brandy added. The term includes, 
but is not limited to, all sparkling wines, champagnes, combinations of such 
beverages, vermouths, special natural wines, rectified wines, and like products. 
The term does not include cooking wine mixed with salt or other ingredients so as 
to render it unfit for human consumption as a beverage. A liquid shall first be 
deemed to be a wine at that point in the manufacturing process when it conforms 
to the definition of wine contained in this section.  


 
Sec. 3-180.7. - Holiday sales. 
 
(a)  Sales on Christmas Day prohibited. Licensees under this article shall not permit the 
sale of any alcoholic beverages on Christmas Day.  
 
(b)  Sales on Sunday following New Year's Eve Day. In years in which New Year's Eve 
falls on Saturday, Sales may continue until 1:00 a.m. on Sunday, New Year's Day. 
 
 
Sec. 3-180.9. - Prices and charges to be displayed; filed with business license 
departmentthe marshal’s office. 
 
Any licensee under this article, except private clubs, shall display in prominent places the 
current prices of alcoholic beverages by the drink; the volume of alcohol to be served 
from each alcoholic beverage container; admission and cover charges. The licensee shall 
file a copy of such prices with the investigating office of the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office and shall furnish to any customer that so desires an itemized 
bill of charges which shall not exceed the price list furnished to the business license 
departmentmarshal’s office. Upon any increase or decrease of prices, a new list must be 
filed with the business license departmentmarshal’s office.  







 
Sec. 3-180.60. - Form; data requested. 
 
The board of commissioners shall have authority to prescribe forms for new or renewal 
applications under this division. All applicants shall furnish all data, information and 
records requested of them by the board of commissioners or the business license 
department marshal’s office, and failure to furnish such data, information and records 
within thirty (30) days from the date of such request shall automatically serve to dismiss, 
with prejudice, the application. Applicants, by filing an application, agree to produce for 
oral interrogation any person requested by the board of commissioners, sheriff's 
departmentmarshal’s office or the county attorney and considered as being important in 
the ascertainment of the facts relative to such license. The failure to produce such person 
within thirty (30) days after being requested to do so shall result in the automatic 
dismissal of such application.  
 
Sec. 3-183. - Payment of taxes by wholesale dealers. 
 
(a)  The special or excise tax imposed upon sales under this article shall be paid by the 
wholesale dealer to the business licensefinance director by the tenth of each month, based 
upon volume sold or distributed in the county limits during the previous month.  
 
(b)  The wholesale dealer herein referred to shall be subject to all the conditions set forth 
in this article and shall in all respects comply with this article, particularly with reference 
to the keeping of true and correct records of all sales and shipments and the rendering of 
a sworn statement of the same as is provided.  
 
Sec. 3-184. - Wholesale dealers required to collect taxes from retail dealers; monthly 
reports. 
 
Wholesale dealers and distributors of products regulated by this article shall make a 
report to the business license finance department within ten (10) days following the end 
of each calendar month of the total of such products sold or distributed within the county 
limits during the previous month, and shall accompany such report with the payment of 
the tax due at the above rate based upon the quantities of such products so sold the 
previous month. Each monthly report shall be accompanied by a sworn statement that the 
report is a true and correct report of all sales and shipments made within the county.  
 
Sec. 3-185. - Wholesale dealers and distributors—Records and reports. 
 
(a)  The license tax imposed in this article shall be computable and payable monthly. 
 
(b)  Each wholesale dealer or distributor selling, shipping or delivering malt beverages, 
wines or spirituous liquor to any retail dealer in the county, whether delivered to the retail 
dealer's place of business in the county, or elsewhere for resale in the county, shall, as a 
condition to the privilege of carrying on such business in the county, make a true and 
correct record of all sales, shipments or deliveries of such products to each retail dealer in 







the county and immediately transmit a true and correct copy of such record to the 
business licensefinance department. Such record shall show the name of each retail dealer 
to whom a sale, shipment or delivery is made, the quantity, and such other information as 
may be called for by the county.  
 







Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 


ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL


Secs. 3-1—3-25.


ARTICLE II. - WINE 


DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 


[10] 


ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL


ARTICLE II. - WINE 


ARTICLE III. - MALT BEVERAGES 


ARTICLE IV. - ON-PREMISES CONSUMPTION DEALERS


ARTICLE V. - EXCISE TAXES 


 


FOOTNOTE(S):
(10) 


Cross reference— Motor vehicles and traffic, Ch. 10; occupational licenses, Ch. 11; offenses and miscellaneous provisions, Ch. 


12; recreation and parks, Ch. 14. (Back)


(10) 
State Law reference— Local alcoholic beverage licenses, O.C.G.A. § 3-3-2 et seq.; local regulation of distilled spirits, O.C.G.A. § 3


-4-40 et seq.; local regulation of malt beverages, O.C.G.A. § 3-5-40 et seq.; local regulation of wine, O.C.G.A. § 3-6-40; public 


drunkenness, O.C.G.A. § 16-11-41; ordinances on drinking or intoxication generally, O.C.G.A. §§ 37-8-11, 37-8-53. (Back)


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL >> 


Secs. 3-1—3-25. - Reserved.


 


- Reserved.


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE II. - WINE >> 


[11] 


DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY


DIVISION 2. - LICENSE 


DIVISION 3. - OPERATING REGULATIONS


 


FOOTNOTE(S):


(11) 
State Law reference— Wine, O.C.G.A. § 3-6-1 et seq. (Back)


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE II. - WINE >> DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY >> 


Page 1 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-26.


Sec. 3-27.


Sec. 3-28.


Sec. 3-26. - Definitions.


Sec. 3-27. - Purpose of article.


Sec. 3-28. - Penalties for violation of article or application irregularities.


Sec. 3-29. - Retail licensee prohibited from having first direct financial interest in wholesale liquor business.


Sec. 3-30. - Personal restrictions on interest in retail license.


Sec. 3-31. - Distance requirements from churches, schools, etc.; distance requirements from private residences.


Sec. 3-32. - Reserved.


Sec. 3-33. - Zoning requirements for business location.


Sec. 3-34. - Possession of open containers of alcoholic beverages in vehicles prohibited; penalties.


Secs. 3-35—3-45. - Reserved.


 


- Definitions.


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them 


in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 


Interest in a license shall be deemed to exist if the person involved is the outright owner of the license, a co-


owner of the license, or a partner in a partnership which owns all or any part of a license. However, a stockholder 


shall not be deemed to have an interest in a retail vinous liquor store where he owns stock in a motel or hotel 


having two hundred (200) or more rooms with a retail vinous liquor store located on the premises of such motel or 


hotel and owned by such motel or hotel. 


Vinous liquors shall include and be limited to those beverages that fit within the definition of "wine" as defined 


herein. 


Wine shall mean any alcoholic beverage containing not more than twenty-one (21) percent alcohol by 


volume made from fruits, berries, or grapes, either by natural fermentation or by natural fermentation with brandy 


added. The term includes, but is not limited to, all sparkling wines, champagnes, combinations of such beverages, 


vermouths, special natural wines, rectified wines, and like products. The term does not include cooking wine mixed 


with salt or other ingredients so as to render it unfit for human consumption as a beverage. A liquid shall first be 


deemed to be a wine at that point in the manufacturing process when it conforms to the definition of wine contained 


in this article. 


(Code 1983, § 3-2; Ord. No. 91-09, §§ 1, 2, 9-18-91) 


Cross reference— Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2. 


State law reference— Definitions relating to alcoholic beverages, O.C.G.A. § 3-1-2; definitions relating to wine, O.C.G.A. § 3-6-1. 


- Purpose of article.


This article has been enacted in accordance with a plan designed for the purposes, among others, of 


promoting the health and general welfare of the community, to establish reasonable standards for the regulation 


and control of the licensing and sales of vinous liquors, to protect and preserve schools and churches, to give effect 


to existing land use and to preserve certain residential areas with reasonable considerations, among others, to the 


character of the areas and their peculiar suitability for particular uses, the congestion in the roads and streets, and 


with a general view of promoting desirable living conditions and sustaining stability of neighborhood and property 


values. 


(Code 1983, § 3-1) 


- Penalties for violation of article or application irregularities.


Page 2 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-29.


Sec. 3-30.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-31.


(a)


(b)


Any person who acquires a license or a renewal of same in violation of this article by any misrepresentation 


or fraudulent statement shall be deemed guilty of an offense and upon conviction thereof shall be punished in 


accordance with this Code. 


Any untrue or misleading information contained in, or material omission left out of, an original, renewal or 


transfer application for a retail vinous liquor license shall be cause for the denial thereof. If any license has 


been granted under these circumstances, there shall be cause for the revocation of same. 


(Code 1983, § 3-3) 


State law reference— Violations of alcoholic beverage law, O.C.G.A. §§ 3-1-4, 3-3-9. 


- Retail licensee prohibited from having first direct financial interest in wholesale liquor 


business.


No person shall hold a retail license who also has any direct financial interest in any wholesale liquor 


business. 


(Code 1983, § 3-4) 


- Personal restrictions on interest in retail license.


For the purposes of this section, the word "family" shall be deemed to include any person related to the 


holder of such license within the first degree of consanguinity or affinity as computed according to the civil 


law. 


It shall be unlawful for any elected or appointed official, or employee of the county, to have any whole, partial 


or beneficial interest in any license to operate retail vinous liquor stores in the county. 


(Code 1983, § 3-5) 


- Distance requirements from churches, schools, etc.; distance requirements from 


private residences.


No license shall be issued under this article for any retail location which is within three hundred (300) feet of 


any church, school, library or alcoholic treatment center. Such distance shall be measured from the nearest 


building wall of the proposed retail vinous liquor store to the nearest point of such church, school, library or 


alcoholic treatment center along the closest and most reasonable public access. The schools referred to 


herein shall include only such state, county, city, church or other schools as teach the subjects commonly 


taught in the common schools and colleges of this state, and shall not include private schools or colleges 


wherein only specialized subjects such as law, stenography, business, music, art, medicine, dentistry, 


vocational occupations or other special subjects are taught. 


No license shall be issued under this article for any retail location which is within three hundred (300) feet of 


any private residence. Such distance shall be measured from the nearest building wall of the proposed retail 


vinous liquor store to the nearest point of the residential building along the closest and most reasonable 


public access. A "private residence," for the purposes of this section, is defined as a house, dwelling, 


condominium or duplex wherein not less than one (1) nor more than two (2) families reside and shall not 


include a mobile home court, an apartment house having facilities for housing more than two (2) families, nor 


a boarding or rooming house where there are five (5) or more boarders or roomers. Any building occupied as 


a residence located within an area zoned for business shall not be construed as a "private residence." 


(Code 1983, § 3-6; Ord. No. 92-13, § 1, 11-11-92) 


Cross reference— Recreation and parks, Ch. 14. 


State law reference— Sales of alcoholic beverages near churches, school buildings, etc., O.C.G.A. § 3-3-21. 


Page 3 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-32.


Sec. 3-33.


Sec. 3-34.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


(e)


(1)


(2)


(3)


(f)


Secs. 3-35—3-45.


DIVISION 2. - LICENSE 


- Reserved.


Editor's note— Ordinance No. 92-13, § 2, adopted November 11, 1992, deleted section 3-32 in its entirety. Formerly, such section 


pertained to location near private residence; distance requirements; "private residence" defined and derived from § 3-7 of the 1983 


Code. 


- Zoning requirements for business location.


No license to engage in the sale of vinous liquors shall be issued within the areas described in this article 


unless the location has been zoned in compliance with the zoning laws of the county. 


(Code 1983, § 3-8) 


- Possession of open containers of alcoholic beverages in vehicles prohibited; 


penalties.


It shall be unlawful for any person to possess an open container of an alcoholic beverage while operating a 


vehicle in the county or while a passenger in or on a vehicle being operated in the county. 


As used in this section, the term "open container" means any container which is immediately capable of 


being consumed from, or the seal of which has been broken. 


An open container shall be considered to be in the possession of the operator of a vehicle if the container is 


not in the possession of a passenger and is not located in a locked glove compartment, locked trunk, or other 


locked nonpassenger area of the vehicle. 


An open container shall be considered to be in the possession of a passenger of a vehicle if the container is 


in the physical control of the passenger. 


This section shall not apply to:


A passenger of a vehicle in which the driver is operating the vehicle pursuant to a contract to provide 


transportation for passengers and such driver holds a valid chauffeur's license pursuant to the law of 


Georgia or any other state; 


A passenger of a bus in which the driver holds a valid chauffeur's license pursuant to the law of 


Georgia or any other state; or 


A passenger of a self-contained motor home which is in excess of twenty-one (21) feet in length.


Any person, operator of a vehicle, or passenger who violates this section shall be subject to the jurisdiction of 


the magistrate court of the county and subject to fines and/or imprisonment as provided by this Code and the 


laws of the state. 


(Ord. No. 89-14, 9-28-89) 


- Reserved.


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE II. - WINE >> DIVISION 2. - LICENSE >> 


[12] 


Sec. 3-46. - Qualifications of applicant.


Sec. 3-47. - Application—Contents.


Sec. 3-48. - Surveyor's certificate required.


Page 4 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-46.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-47.


(a)


(1)


(2)


(3)


(4)


(5)


(b)


Sec. 3-49. - Physical requirements of applicant's premises.


Sec. 3-50. - Notice of application for license.


Sec. 3-51. - Investigation of applicant; cooperation by applicant.


Sec. 3-52. - Public hearing on application.


Sec. 3-53. - Grant of application.


Sec. 3-54. - Annual license fee schedule.


Sec. 3-55. - Issuance of license.


Sec. 3-56. - Procedure when license denied by state.


Sec. 3-57. - Terms of license.


Sec. 3-58. - Business to be opened within nine months from license issuance; effect of failure.


Sec. 3-59. - Effect of failure to operate business for nine consecutive months.


Sec. 3-60. - Transfer of license.


Sec. 3-61. - Suspension or revocation of license.


Sec. 3-62. - Renewal of license.


Secs. 3-63—3-75. - Reserved.


 


- Qualifications of applicant.


No retail license required by this article shall be granted to any applicant who is not a citizen of the United 


States or a permanent resident alien, as defined by the immigration and nationality laws of the United States, 


and who has not resided continuously in this state for one (1) year next preceding the year for which 


application is made. Where the applicant is a corporation, it must be licensed to conduct business in the state 


for a period of one (1) year, and the license shall be issued to the corporation. If the applicant is a 


partnership, the within requirements shall apply to all the partners. 


All applicants for licenses must attach to their application evidence of their good character. No original 


license shall be issued to any person, partnership or corporation organized for pecuniary gain where any 


individual having an interest either as owner, partner, stockholder, directly or indirectly beneficial or absolute, 


or his spouse, shall have been convicted or shall have taken a plea of nolo contendere within ten (10) years 


immediately prior to the filing of the application for any felony or misdemeanor of any state or of the United 


States or any county ordinance, except traffic violations. 


(Code 1983, § 3-9; Ord. No. 91-09, § 3, 9-18-91) 


- Application—Contents.


All applications for licenses, both original and renewal, must be accompanied by a full and complete 


statement under oath of information relative to any and all interests (as defined in section 3-26) in retail 


packaged vinous liquor stores. This shall include: 


The names and addresses of all persons interested in the ownership of the business of selling at retail 


packaged vinous liquor, together with any interest each person or any member of his immediate family 


has in any other retail packaged spirituous liquor store or vinous liquor store. 


The ownership of the land and building where such retail business is operated.


The amount of rental paid for the land and building and the manner in which the same is determined, 


and to whom and at what intervals it is paid. 


The names and addresses (by affidavit from the owner, lessor or sublessor of such land and building) 


of all persons having any whole, partial, beneficial or other interest in and to the land and building on 


and in which the retail packaged vinous liquor store is located. 


Any other information called for by the board of commissioners.


Page 5 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-48.


Sec. 3-49.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-50.


Sec. 3-51.


(a)


Any change in any relationship herein declared must be filed with the business license department when 


such change is made, and failure to so file within a period of thirty (30) days after such change is made shall 


be grounds for cancellation by the board of commissioners. 


(Code 1983, § 3-10) 


- Surveyor's certificate required.


All original applications for new licenses shall include a certificate from a registered surveyor showing a scale 


drawing of the location of the proposed or existing premises, and stating both the straight line distance and the 


distance measured along the closest and most reasonable public access from the proposed or existing premises to 


the building and property line of the nearest church, school, library, alcoholic treatment center and private 


residence. 


(Code 1983, § 3-11; Ord. No. 92-13, § 3, 11-11-92) 


- Physical requirements of applicant's premises.


No license shall be granted to a retailer, under provisions of this division, unless the front entrance to the 


premises is clearly visible from a public street; however, this restriction shall not apply where the licensee is a 


hotel, motel, private club, location in a shopping center or multiple-story business building. 


Where a building in which a retailer intends to operate under the provisions of this article is, at the time of the 


application for such license, not in existence or not yet completed, a license may be issued for such location 


provided the plans for the proposed building clearly show a compliance with the other provisions of this 


article. No sales shall be made from such establishment until it has been completed in accordance with the 


plans and is in conformity with all the other provisions of this article. 


(Code 1983, § 3-12) 


- Notice of application for license.


All persons desiring to engage in the sale of vinous liquors at retail in the county shall give notice of the 


purpose of making such application by advertisement, after a date for a public hearing is set pursuant to section 3-


52, in at least two (2) consecutive issues of the legal organ of the county, which notice shall contain a particular 


description of the location of the proposed vinous liquor business and shall give the name of the applicant, and if a 


partnership, the names of the partners, and if a corporation, the names of the officers and all stockholders. The 


advertisement referred to herein shall be of type not smaller than ten-point capital and lower case and shall be at 


least a one-inch two-column advertisement. 


(Code 1983, § 3-13) 


- Investigation of applicant; cooperation by applicant.


All applications for new licenses for sale of packaged vinous liquor at retail and all applications for renewal of 


such new licenses shall be investigated by the business license department. No such new or renewal license 


shall be acted upon by the board of commissioners or issued by the business license department until the 


county attorney has indicated in writing that in his opinion, upon the facts as stated and ascertained by the 


business license department, no violation exists as to any ordinance in effect as of the date of the rendering 


of such opinion. All applicants for new or renewal licenses shall furnish to the business license department all 


data, information and records requested of them by the business license department. Failure of the applicant 


to furnish such data, information and records within thirty (30) days from the date of the request by the 


business license department shall automatically serve to dismiss with prejudice the application of any such 


applicant. 


Page 6 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







(b)


Sec. 3-52.


Sec. 3-53.


Sec. 3-54.


(a)


(1)


(2)


(b)


Sec. 3-55.


(a)


(b)


Applicants, by filing for a license to sell package vinous liquor at retail, agree to furnish the data, information 


and records as called for herein and also agree to submit under oath to interrogation by the business license 


department or the county attorney as to any facts considered pertinent to such application. Applicants, by 


filing such application, also agree to produce for oral interrogation by the business license department or the 


county attorney any person requested by the business license department and considered as being 


important in the ascertainment of the facts relative to the license. Failure to produce such persons within 


thirty (30) days after being requested to do so shall result in the automatic dismissal of any application for 


license. 


(Code 1983, § 3-14) 


- Public hearing on application.


All applications for licenses for the retail sale of vinous liquors shall be acted upon by the board of 


commissioners after a public hearing after advertisement as required by law, such advertisement to be made as 


provided in section 3-50, and proof of same furnished to the board of commissioners prior to the hearing. 


(Code 1983, § 3-15) 


- Grant of application.


All applications to engage in the sale at retail of vinous liquors meeting the standards of this division shall be 


granted unless some specific cause related to location, traffic condition or other environmental condition shall justify 


refusal. In such case, the applicant shall be entitled to file a new application for a license at an eligible location 


without loss of any part of his application or license fee. 


(Code 1983, § 3-16) 


- Annual license fee schedule.


The annual license fee for the privilege of engaging in the business of selling vinous liquors at retail as 


described herein shall be as follows: 


The sum of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) per annum. Should a license be originally applied for 


and granted during the course of a calendar year, the fee will be pro-rated based on the following 


formula: The total license fee shall be divided by twelve (12). The resulting number shall then be 


multiplied by the number of full months remaining in the calendar year, at the time the license is 


granted. 


The sum of seventy-five dollars ($75.00) shall be paid at the time an original application is filed to 


cover investigative costs, which shall be credited against the first annual license fee upon grant of a 


license. This fee is not refundable. 


Retailer license fees shall be paid between January first and January twentieth, without proration, each year; 


unless said fee accompanies an original application for a license when said application is made after January 


of the calendar year. In such case, the fee shall be paid when the license is granted. 


(Code 1983, § 3-17; Ord. No. 2004-19, §§ 1, 2, 8-26-04) 


- Issuance of license.


All licenses must be obtained and fees paid not later than two (2) weeks from the date of the approval of the 


application by the board of commissioners; and, if not so obtained, the permit granted by the board of 


commissioners shall be void. 


When a license has been approved, the required fee shall be paid to the county and a license issued.


Page 7 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-56.


Sec. 3-57.


Sec. 3-58.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-59.


Sec. 3-60.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(Code 1983, § 3-18) 


- Procedure when license denied by state.


In the event the applicant for a license required by this division is denied a license by the state, upon the 


proof of such refusal, he shall be entitled to a refund of the license fee, less the investigative fee as required in 


section 3-54(a)(2), plus an additional charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) to cover clerical cost of granting the 


license. Such refund may be made by the business license director without the necessity of any action by the board 


of commissioners. 


(Code 1983, § 3-19) 


- Terms of license.


In case of the revocation or the surrender of a license before the expiration of the calendar year, the holder 


thereof shall not be entitled to receive any refund whatsoever. 


(Code 1983, § 3-20; Ord. No. 2004-19, § 3, 8-26-04) 


- Business to be opened within nine months from license issuance; effect of failure.


All holders of licenses for the retail sale of vinous liquors must, within nine (9) months after the issuance of 


the license, open for business the establishment referred to in the license and begin the sale of the product 


or products authorized by the license. 


Failure to open the establishment and begin the sale as referred to above within the nine-month period shall 


serve as automatic forfeiture and cancellation of the unused license, and no refund of license fees shall be 


made to the license holder. 


(Code 1983, § 3-21) 


- Effect of failure to operate business for nine consecutive months.


Any holder of a license for the retail sale of vinous liquors who shall begin the operation of the business and 


sale of the product or products as authorized in the license but who shall, for a period of nine (9) consecutive 


months thereafter, cease to operate the business and sale of the product or products authorized in the license shall, 


upon completion of the nine-month period, automatically forfeit his license, which license shall, by virtue of failure to 


operate, be cancelled without the necessity of any further action of the board of commissioners. 


(Code 1983, § 3-22) 


- Transfer of license.


Licenses issued under this division may be transferred as provided below; however, the prior approval of the 


board of commissioners shall be required. In case of the death of any person holding such a license, or any 


interest therein, the same may, in the discretion of the board of commissioners, be transferred to the 


administrator, executor, or lawful heirs of the deceased person. In all cases, a prospective transferee must 


meet all of the requirements as specified herein for a license. 


Nothing in this section, however, shall prohibit one (1) or more of the partners in a partnership holding a 


license to withdraw from the partnership in favor of one (1) or more of the partners who are partners at the 


time of the issuance of the license. Such a withdrawal shall not, however, serve to bring any new ownership 


into the partnership. 


Page 8 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







(d)


(e)


(f)


Sec. 3-61.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


(e)


Sec. 3-62.


(a)


(b)


Secs. 3-63—3-75.


A transfer of a location may be approved in the discretion of the board of commissioners; however, there 


shall be no pro rata return of any license fee and the new location shall be considered and meet the 


requirements of the new license hereunder. Where a transfer of an existing location is approved and there is 


no change in the ownership of the business, the license fee paid for the old location shall be applied to the 


new location. 


A licensee may take in partners or additional stockholders. Under this section, an additional partner or new 


principal stockholder must be approved by the board of commissioners. 


A transfer of ownership of the license may be approved in the discretion of the board of commissioners, 


provided that the new owner meets with the necessary requirements for a license. There shall be no pro rata 


return of any license fee and the business shall continue to operate at the same location. 


There shall be a fee of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) for the transfer of any license.


(Code 1983, § 3-23; Ord. No. 91-09, § 4, 9-18-91) 


- Suspension or revocation of license.


Whenever the state shall revoke any permit or license to sell at retail any vinous liquors, the county license to 


deal in such products shall thereupon be automatically revoked without any action by the board of 


commissioners or any county officer. 


No license which has been issued or which may hereafter be issued by the county to any person as a retail 


dealer in vinous liquors shall be suspended or revoked, except for due cause as hereinafter defined, and 


after a hearing and upon at least a three-day written notice to the holder of such. 


"Due cause" for the suspension or revocation of such license shall consist of the violation of any laws or 


ordinances regulating such businesses, or violation of regulations made pursuant to authority granted for the 


purpose of regulating such businesses, or the violation of any state or federal law, or the violation of any 


county ordinances, other than traffic ordinances, which the board of commissioners deems to render the 


licensee improper to hold such license. 


Such hearings shall be conducted by the board of commissioners.


In the event of revocation, no refund of any portion of the license shall be paid.


(Code 1983, § 3-24) 


- Renewal of license.


The renewal of an existing alcoholic beverage license at the expiration of the term of the license shall be 


dependent upon proof that the licensee meets all requirements upon which the original application for license 


was granted. 


Licensees must provide at the time of application for renewal of license an affidavit substantiating their 


compliance with the residency requirements set forth in this article. 


(Code 1983, § 3-25) 


- Reserved.


 


FOOTNOTE(S):


(12) 
State Law reference— Local powers as to alcoholic beverage licenses, O.C.G.A. § 3-3-2; local wine license, O.C.G.A. § 3-6-40. 


(Back)


 


Page 9 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







DIVISION 3. - OPERATING REGULATIONS


Sec. 3-76.


Sec. 3-77.


Sec. 3-78.


(a)


(b)


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE II. - WINE >> DIVISION 3. - OPERATING REGULATIONS >> 


Sec. 3-76. - Front window display.


Sec. 3-77. - Exterior advertisement of price of vinous liquor prohibited.


Sec. 3-78. - Interior visibility required; license prohibited in restaurant, etc.


Sec. 3-79. - Business hours and days.


Sec. 3-80. - Wholesale deliveries of vinous liquors.


Sec. 3-81. - Price lists or tags.


Sec. 3-82. - Employees; reports to police; investigation; fees.


Sec. 3-83. - Sales to minors and certain other persons prohibited; minor misrepresenting age, drinking or possessing alcoholic beverages; 


posting of sign by licensee.


Sec. 3-84. - Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire department.


Sec. 3-85. - Consumption or opening on premises; posting of sign.


Sec. 3-86. - Sales on certain premises; excepted.


Sec. 3-87. - Drinking in public.


Secs. 3-88—3-105. - Reserved.


 


- Front window display.


Each person licensed to sell vinous liquor at retail shall have printed on the front window of the licensed 


premises the inscription "County Retail License No. ____________" in uniform letters not less than four (4) inches 


in height; however, if a licensee so desires he may have his name displayed on the inside of the window in like 


manner or in neon or other electric lights. Such sign shall be parallel with the window and so constructed as not to 


extend more than six (6) inches from the window. 


(Code 1983, § 3-26) 


- Exterior advertisement of price of vinous liquor prohibited.


No sign of any kind, painted or electric, advertising any price of vinous liquor shall be permitted on the 


exterior of any licensed premises. No placard or sign of any kind which is visible from the exterior of the licensed 


premises shall make reference to the price of any vinous liquors sold therein; however, tags showing the prices of 


individual bottles or containers may be affixed to each such bottle or container or to the edge of the shelf whereon 


such bottles or containers are located. 


(Code 1983, § 3-27) 


- Interior visibility required; license prohibited in restaurant, etc.


No screen, blind, curtain, partition, article or thing which shall prevent a clear view into the window or upon 


the doors of any retail vinous liquor store, and no booth, screen, partition or other obstruction shall be 


permitted within the interior of any such store. Each such retail store shall be so lighted that the interior of the 


store is visible day and night. 


No retail vinous liquor license shall be allowed in, or in connection with, any restaurant, cafe or eating place, 


nor in the same room where a bar or soda fountain is maintained for the dispensing and sale of soft drinks or 


other beverages. 


Page 10 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-79.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-80.


Sec. 3-81.


Sec. 3-82.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


(Code 1983, § 3-28) 


- Business hours and days.


Retail dealers in vinous liquors shall not engage in the sale of such liquors except between the hours of 7:00 


a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on weekdays and shall not permit their places of business to be opened for the sale of 


vinous liquors on Sundays, election days, and Christmas Day. 


An "election day", for the purposes of the sale of vinous liquors, means that period of time beginning with the 


opening of the polls and ending with the closing of the polls. 


(Code 1983, § 3-29; Ord. No. 91-09, §§ 5, 6, 9-18-91) 


State law reference— Sale of alcoholic beverages on Sundays, election days and Christmas day, O.C.G.A. § 3-3-20. 


- Wholesale deliveries of vinous liquors.


It shall be unlawful to make wholesale deliveries of vinous liquors except in the store or department of the 


store in which such beverages are sold. Such deliveries may only be made between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 


7:00 p.m. 


(Code 1983, § 3-30; Ord. No. 91-09, § 7, 9-18-91) 


State law reference— Persons to whom wine may be sold by wholesale dealers, O.C.G.A. § 3-6-23. 


- Price lists or tags.


Each retail licensee under this article shall have conspicuously displayed within the interior of the licensed 


premises not less than four (4) copies of a printed price list of the vinous liquors offered for sale and one (1) printed 


copy of the penal sections of this article; however, a licensee, in lieu of having four (4) copies of a printed price list, 


may have the price placed on the bottles or on the bottom of the shelf where vinous liquors are exhibited for sale. 


(Code 1983, § 3-31) 


- Employees; reports to police; investigation; fees.


No retail licensee shall employ any minor, except as provided by state law, in his store, or in the department 


of a store where vinous liquors are sold. No retail licensee shall employ in any premises used for the sale of 


vinous liquors any person in any capacity whatsoever who has been convicted within ten (10) years of the 


date of employment of a felony, or any violation of the laws of this state, any other state or of the United 


States relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages. 


It shall be the duty of all persons holding retail or wholesale licenses to sell vinous liquors to file with the 


business license director the names of all employees, with their home addresses, home telephone numbers 


and places of employment. Changes in the list of employees, with the names of new employees, must be 


filed with the business license director within three (3) days from the date of any such change. All employees 


shall be subject to such investigative rules and regulations as may be deemed necessary from time to time 


by the business license department. A ten-dollar investigative fee shall be paid by all applicants. 


At the time of application or at the time a licensee hires a new employee, the licensee shall submit a current 


one-square-inch photograph of such employee for placement upon that employee's identification card. 


Photographs shall not be required for any licensed premises which employs fifteen (15) or more employees. 


No licensee shall allow any person to engage in the sale of vinous liquors prior to the completion of a 


satisfactory investigation by the business license department. Licensees in violation of this section shall be 


liable for a fine of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) per employee engaged in such practice. Subsequent 


offenses may subject licensee to suspension or revocation of his license. 


(Code 1983, § 3-32; Ord. No. 91-09, §§ 8, 9, 9-18-91) 


Page 11 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-83.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


Sec. 3-84.


(a)


(b)


(c)


Sec. 3-85.


(a)


(b)


(c)


State law reference— Dispensing, serving, selling, etc., of alcoholic beverages by persons under eighteen years of age, O.C.G.A. § 3-


3-24. 


- Sales to minors and certain other persons prohibited; minor misrepresenting age, 


drinking or possessing alcoholic beverages; posting of sign by licensee.


No retail licensee shall sell any vinous liquors to any person under the age of twenty-one (21) years, or to 


any person in an intoxicated condition, or to any person known to such licensee or his employees to be an 


habitual drunkard, or to any person known to such licensee or his employees to be of intemperate habits or 


of unsound mind. 


It shall be unlawful for any minor to purchase or possess any vinous liquors on any licensed premises.


It shall be unlawful for any minor to misrepresent his age in any manner whatsoever to a licensee hereunder.


The retail licensee shall post in a conspicuous place where the actual transaction takes place within the 


licensed premises a sign stating that no vinous liquors shall be sold to or purchased by any person under 


twenty-one (21) years of age and that it shall be unlawful for any minor to misrepresent his or her age in any 


manner whatsoever to a licensee. Such sign shall be printed in uniform letters not less than one (1) inch in 


height. 


(Code 1983, § 3-33; Ord. No. 91-09, §§ 10, 11, 9-18-91) 


State law reference— Furnishing to, purchase of or possession by persons under twenty-one years of age of alcoholic beverages, 


use of false identification, O.C.G.A. § 3-3-23. 


- Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire department.


All premises licensed under this article shall be kept clean and in proper sanitary condition and in full 


compliance with the provisions and regulations governing the condition of premises used for the storage and 


sale of food for human consumption. 


It shall be unlawful to permit any disturbance of the peace or obscenity or any lewd, immoral or improper 


entertainment, conduct or practices on the premises. 


The fire department shall, upon request of the business license department, inspect such premises and 


report their findings to the county. All premises licensed hereunder shall conform at all times with all fire 


regulations of the county. 


(Code 1983, § 3-34) 


Cross reference— Fire prevention and protection, Ch. 9. 


- Consumption or opening on premises; posting of sign.


It shall be unlawful to consume any alcoholic beverages or to open any container of alcoholic beverages on 


the premises licensed under this article or any parking area associated or identified with the licensed 


premises. 


The license holder shall display at any entrances or exits to the licensed premises a sign which shall state 


that it is unlawful to consume any alcoholic beverages or to open any container of alcoholic beverages on the 


licensed premises or any parking area adjacent thereto. Further, such sign or signs which are necessary 


shall also be placed in such a manner as to be visible from any parking area adjacent to the licensed 


premises. 


It shall be unlawful for any license holder to permit, allow or acquiesce in the consumption of any alcoholic 


beverages or the opening of any container of alcoholic beverages on the licensed premises or any parking 


area associated or identified with the licensed premises. 


(Code 1983, § 3-35) 


Page 12 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-86.


Sec. 3-87.


Secs. 3-88—3-105.


ARTICLE III. - MALT BEVERAGES 


DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY


- Sales on certain premises; excepted.


It shall be unlawful to sell vinous liquor on any business-licensed premises wherein less than fifty (50) 


percent of the total gross revenue for any year is derived from staple foodstuffs, household supplies, meats, 


produce and dairy products. Specifically, gasoline and other petroleum products shall not be included in the term 


"household supplies." 


(Code 1983, § 3-36) 


- Drinking in public.


It shall be unlawful for any person to consume any vinous liquors or alcoholic beverages in or upon any 


street, alley, sidewalk, park or other public way or public place within the county or within any public building 


thereon. 


(Code 1983, § 3-37; Ord. No. 91-09, § 12, 9-18-91) 


- Reserved.


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE III. - MALT BEVERAGES >> 


[13] 


DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY


DIVISION 2. - LICENSE 


DIVISION 3. - OPERATING REGULATIONS


 


FOOTNOTE(S):


(13) 
State Law reference— Malt beverages, O.C.G.A. § 3-5-1 et seq. (Back)


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE III. - MALT BEVERAGES >> DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY >> 


Sec. 3-106. - Definitions.


Sec. 3-107. - Purpose of article.


Sec. 3-108. - Penalties for violation of article or application irregularities.


Sec. 3-109. - Retail licensee prohibited from having first direct financial interest in wholesale malt beverage business.


Sec. 3-110. - Personal restrictions on interest in retail license.


Sec. 3-111. - Distance requirements from churches, schools, etc.; distance requirements from private residences.


Sec. 3-112. - Reserved.


Sec. 3-113. - Zoning requirements for business location.


Sec. 3-114. - Possession of open containers of alcoholic beverages in vehicles prohibited; penalties.


Secs. 3-115—3-125. - Reserved.


 


Page 13 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-106.


Sec. 3-107.


Sec. 3-108.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-109.


- Definitions.


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them 


in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 


Alcoholic beverage means and includes all alcohol, distilled spirits, beer, malt beverage, wine, or 


fortified wine. 


Interest in a license shall be deemed to exist if the person involved is the outright owner of the license, 


a co-owner of the license, or a partner in a partnership which owns all or any part of a license. However, a 


stockholder shall not be deemed to have an interest in a retail malt beverage store where he owns stock in a 


motel or hotel having two hundred (200) or more rooms with a retail malt beverage store located on the 


premises of such motel or hotel and owned by such motel or hotel. 


Malt beverage means any alcoholic beverage obtained by the fermentation of any infusion or 


decoction of barley, malt, hops, or any other similar product, or any combination of such products in water, 


containing not more than fourteen (14) percent alcohol by volume and including ale, porter, brown, stout, 


lager beer, small beer, and strong beer. The term does not include sake, known as Japanese rice wine. 


(Code 1983, § 3-39; Ord. No. 91-11, §§ 1, 2, 9-18-91; Ord. No. 2004-19, § 4, 8-26-04) 


Cross reference— Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2. 


State law reference— Definitions relating to alcoholic beverages, O.C.G.A. § 3-1-2; definitions relating to malt beverages, O.C.G.A. § 


3-5-1. 


- Purpose of article.


This article has been enacted in accordance with a plan designed for the purposes, among others, of 


promoting the health and general welfare of the community, to establish reasonable standards for the regulation 


and control of the licensing and sales of malt beverages, to protect and preserve schools and churches, to give 


effect to existing land use and to preserve certain residential areas with reasonable considerations, among others, 


to the character of the areas and their peculiar suitability for particular uses, the congestion in the roads and streets, 


and with a general view of promoting desirable living conditions and sustaining stability of neighborhood and 


property values. 


(Code 1983, § 3-38) 


- Penalties for violation of article or application irregularities.


Any person who acquires a license or a renewal of same in violation of this article by any misrepresentation 


or fraudulent statement shall be deemed guilty of an offense and upon conviction thereof shall be punished in 


accordance with the laws, rules and regulations of the county. 


Any untrue or misleading information contained in, or material omission left out of, an original, renewal or 


transfer application for a retail malt beverage license shall be cause for the denial thereof. If any license has 


been granted under these circumstances, there shall be cause for the revocation of same. 


(Code 1983, § 3-40) 


State law reference— Violations of alcoholic beverage law, O.C.G.A. §§ 3-1-4, 3-3-9. 


- Retail licensee prohibited from having first direct financial interest in wholesale malt 


beverage business.


Page 14 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-110.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-111.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-112.


Sec. 3-113.


No person shall hold a retail license who also has any direct financial interest in any wholesale malt 


beverage business. 


(Code 1983, § 3-41; Ord. No. 91-11, § 3, 9-18-91) 


- Personal restrictions on interest in retail license.


For the purposes of this section, the word "family" shall be deemed to include any person related to the 


holder of such license within the first degree of consanguinity or affinity as computed according to the civil 


law. 


It shall be unlawful for any elected or appointed official, employee of the county, to have any whole, partial or 


beneficial interest in any license to operate retail malt beverage stores in the county. 


(Code 1983, § 3-42) 


- Distance requirements from churches, schools, etc.; distance requirements from 


private residences.


No license shall be issued under this article for any retail location which is within three hundred (300) feet of 


any church, school, library or alcoholic treatment center. Such distance shall be measured from the nearest 


building wall of the proposed retail malt beverage store to the nearest point of such church, school, library or 


alcoholic treatment center along the closest and most reasonable public access. The schools referred to 


herein shall include only such state, county, city, church or other schools as teach the subjects commonly 


taught in the common schools and colleges of this state, and shall not include private schools or colleges 


wherein only specialized subjects such as law, stenography, business, music, art, medicine, dentistry, 


vocational occupations or other special subjects are taught. 


No license shall be issued under this article for any retail location which is within three hundred (300) feet of 


any private residence. Such distance shall be measured from the nearest building wall of the proposed retail 


malt beverage store to the nearest point of the residential building along the closest and most reasonable 


public access. A "private residence," for the purposes of this section, is defined as a house, dwelling, 


condominium or duplex wherein not less than one (1) nor more than two (2) families reside and shall not 


include a mobile home court, an apartment house having facilities for housing more than two (2) families, nor 


a boarding or rooming house where there are five (5) or more boarders or roomers. Any building occupied as 


a residence located within an area zoned for business shall not be construed as a "private residence." 


(Code 1983, § 3-43; Ord. No. 92-13, § 4, 11-11-92) 


Cross reference— Recreation and parks, Ch. 14. 


State law reference— Sales of alcoholic beverages near churches, school buildings, etc., O.C.G.A. § 3-3-21. 


- Reserved.


Editor's note— Ordinance No. 92-13, § 5, adopted November 11, 1992, deleted section 3-112 in its entirety. Formerly, such section 


pertained to location near private residence; distance requirements; "private residence" defined and derived from § 3-44 of the 1983 


Code. 


- Zoning requirements for business location.


No license to engage in the sale of malt beverages shall be issued within the areas described in this article 


unless the location has been zoned in compliance with the zoning laws of the county. 


(Code 1983, § 3-45) 


Page 15 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-114.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


(e)


(1)


(2)


(3)


(f)


Secs. 3-115—3-125.


DIVISION 2. - LICENSE 


- Possession of open containers of alcoholic beverages in vehicles prohibited; 


penalties.


It shall be unlawful for any person to possess an open container of an alcoholic beverage while operating a 


vehicle in the county or while a passenger in or on a vehicle being operated in the county. 


As used in this section, the term "open container" means any container which is immediately capable of 


being consumed from, or the seal of which has been broken. 


An open container shall be considered to be in the possession of the operator of a vehicle if the container is 


not in the possession of a passenger and is not located in a locked glove compartment, locked trunk, or other 


locked nonpassenger area of the vehicle. 


An open container shall be considered to be in the possession of a passenger of a vehicle if the container is 


in the physical control of the passenger. 


This section shall not apply to:


A passenger of a vehicle in which the driver is operating the vehicle pursuant to a contract to provide 


transportation for passengers and such driver holds a valid chauffeur's license pursuant to the law of 


Georgia or any other state; 


A passenger of a bus in which the driver holds a valid chauffeur's license pursuant to the law of 


Georgia or any other state; or 


A passenger of a self-contained motor home which is in excess of twenty-one (21) feet in length.


Any person, operator of a vehicle, or passenger who violates this section shall be subject to the jurisdiction of 


the magistrate court of the county and subject to fines and/or imprisonment as provided by this Code and the 


laws of the state. 


(Ord. No. 89-14, 9-28-89) 


- Reserved.


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE III. - MALT BEVERAGES >> DIVISION 2. - LICENSE >> 


[14] 


Sec. 3-126. - Qualifications of applicant.


Sec. 3-127. - Application—Contents.


Sec. 3-128. - Surveyor's certificate required.


Sec. 3-129. - Physical requirements of applicant's premises.


Sec. 3-130. - Notice of application for license.


Sec. 3-131. - Investigation of applicant; cooperation by applicant.


Sec. 3-132. - Public hearing on application.


Sec. 3-133. - Grant of application.


Sec. 3-134. - Annual license fee schedule.


Sec. 3-135. - Issuance of license.


Sec. 3-136. - Procedure when license denied by state.


Sec. 3-137. - Terms of license.


Sec. 3-138. - Business to be opened within nine months from license issuance; effect of failure.


Sec. 3-139. - Effect of failure to operate business for nine consecutive months.


Sec. 3-140. - Transfer of license.


Page 16 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-126.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-127.


(a)


(1)


(2)


(3)


(4)


(5)


(b)


Sec. 3-128.


Sec. 3-141. - Suspension or revocation of license.


Sec. 3-142. - Renewal of license.


Secs. 3-143—3-155. - Reserved.


 


- Qualifications of applicant.


No retail license required by this article shall be granted to any applicant who is not a citizen of the United 


States or a permanent resident alien, as defined by the immigration and nationality laws of the United States, 


and who has not resided continuously in this state for one (1) year next preceding the year for which 


application is made. Where the applicant is a corporation, it must be licensed to conduct business in the state 


for a period of one (1) year, and the license shall be issued to the corporation. If the applicant is a 


partnership, the within requirements shall apply to all the partners. 


All applicants for licenses must attach to their application evidence of their good character. No original 


license shall be issued to any person, partnership or corporation organized for pecuniary gain where any 


individual having an interest either as owner, partner, stockholder, directly or indirectly beneficial or absolute, 


or his spouse, shall have been convicted or shall have taken a plea of nolo contendere within ten (10) years 


immediately prior to the filing of the application for any felony or misdemeanor of any state or of the United 


States or any county ordinance, except traffic violations. 


(Code 1983, § 3-46) 


- Application—Contents.


All applications for licenses, both original and renewal, must be accompanied by a full and complete 


statement under oath of information relative to any and all interests (as defined in section 3-106) in retail 


packaged malt beverage stores. This shall include: 


The names and addresses of all persons interested in the ownership of the business of selling at retail 


packaged malt beverages, together with any interest each person or any member of his immediate 


family has in any other retail packaged malt beverage store. 


The ownership of the land and building where such retail business is operated.


The amount of rental paid for the land and building and the manner in which the same is determined, 


and to whom and at what intervals it is paid. 


The names and addresses (by affidavit from the owner, lessor or sublessor of such land and building) 


of all persons having any whole, partial, beneficial or other interest in and to the land and building on 


and in which the retail packaged malt beverage store is located. 


Any other information called for by the board of commissioners.


Any change in any relationship herein declared must be filed with the business license department when 


such change is made, and failure to so file within a period of thirty (30) days after such change is made shall 


be grounds for cancellation by the board of commissioners. 


(Code 1983, § 3-47) 


- Surveyor's certificate required.


All original applications for new licenses shall include a certificate from a registered surveyor showing a scale 


drawing of the location of the proposed or existing premises, and stating both the straight line distance and the 


distance measured along the closest and most reasonable public access from the proposed or existing premises to 


the building and property line of the nearest church, school, library, alcoholic treatment center and private 


residence. 


(Code 1983, § 3-48; Ord. No. 92-13, § 6, 11-11-92) 


Page 17 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-129.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-130.


Sec. 3-131.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-132.


- Physical requirements of applicant's premises.


No license shall be granted to a retailer, under provisions of this division, unless the front entrance to the 


premises is clearly visible from a public street; however, this restriction shall not apply where the licensee is a 


hotel, motel, private club, location in a shopping center or multiple-story business building. 


Where a building in which a retailer intends to operate under the provisions of this article is, at the time of the 


application for such license, not in existence or not yet completed, a license may be issued for such location 


provided the plans for the proposed building clearly show a compliance with the other provisions of this 


article. No sales shall be made from such establishment until it has been completed in accordance with the 


plans and is in conformity with all the other provisions of this article. 


(Code 1983, § 3-49) 


- Notice of application for license.


All persons desiring to engage in the sale of malt beverages at retail in the county shall give notice of the 


purpose of making such application by advertisement, after a date for a public hearing is set pursuant to section 3-


132, in at least two (2) consecutive issues of the legal organ of the county, which notice shall contain a particular 


description of the location of the proposed malt beverage business and shall give the name of the applicant, and if a 


partnership, the names of the partners, and if a corporation, the names of the officers and all stockholders. The 


advertisement referred to herein shall be of type not smaller than ten-point capital and lower case and shall be at 


least a one-inch two-column advertisement. 


(Code 1983, § 3-50) 


- Investigation of applicant; cooperation by applicant.


All applications for new licenses for sale of packaged malt beverages at retail and all applications for renewal 


of such new licenses shall be investigated by the business license department. No such new or renewal 


license shall be acted upon by the board of commissioners or issued by the business license department 


until the county attorney has indicated in writing that in his opinion, upon the facts as stated and ascertained 


by the business license department, no violation exists as to any ordinance in effect as of the date of the 


rendering of such opinion. All applications for new or renewal licenses shall furnish to the business license 


department all data, information and records requested of them by the business license department. Failure 


of the applicant to furnish such data, information and records within thirty (30) days from the date of the 


request by the business license department shall automatically serve to dismiss with prejudice the 


application of any such applicant. 


Applicants, by filing for a license to sell package malt beverages at retail, agree to furnish the data, 


information and records as called for herein and also agree to submit under oath to interrogation by the 


business license department or the county attorney as to any facts considered pertinent to such application. 


Applicants, by filing such application, also agree to produce for oral interrogation by the business license 


department or the county attorney any person requested by the business license department and considered 


as being important in the ascertainment of the facts relative to the license. Failure to produce such persons 


within thirty (30) days after being requested to do so shall result in the automatic dismissal of any application 


for license. 


(Code 1983, § 3-51) 


- Public hearing on application.


Page 18 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-133.


Sec. 3-134.


(a)


(1)


(2)


(b)


(c)


Sec. 3-135.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-136.


All applications for licenses for the retail sale of malt beverages shall be acted upon by the board of 


commissioners after a public hearing after advertisement as required by law, such advertisement to be made as 


provided in section 3-130, and proof of same furnished to the board of commissioners prior to the hearing. 


(Code 1983, § 3-52) 


- Grant of application.


All applications to engage in the sale at retail of malt beverages meeting the standards of this division shall 


be granted unless some specific cause related to location, traffic condition or other environmental condition shall 


justify refusal. In such case, the applicant shall be entitled to file a new application for a license at an eligible 


location without loss of any part of his application or license fee. 


(Code 1983, § 3-53) 


- Annual license fee schedule.


The annual license fee for the privilege of engaging in the business of selling malt beverages at retail as 


described herein shall be as follows: 


The sum of five hundred dollars ($500.00) per annum. Should a license be originally applied for and 


granted during the course of a calendar year, the fee will be pro-rated based on the following formula: 


The total license fee shall be divided by twelve (12). The resulting number shall then be multiplied by 


the number of full months remaining in the calendar year, at the time the license is granted. 


The sum of one hundred dollars ($100.00) shall be paid at the time an original application is filed to 


cover investigative costs, which shall be credited against the first annual license fee upon grant of a 


license. This fee is not refundable. 


The annual license fee for the privilege of engaging in the wholesale malt beverage business within the 


county shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00) per annum. 


Retailer license fees shall be paid between January first and January Twentieth, without proration, each year; 


unless said fee accompanies an original application for a license when said application is made after January 


of the calendar year. In such case, the fee shall be paid when the license is granted. 


(Code 1983, § 3-54; Ord. No. 2004-19, §§ 5, 6, 8-26-04) 


State law reference— Restriction on amount of license fee, O.C.G.A. § 3-5-43. 


- Issuance of license.


All licenses must be obtained and fees paid not later than two (2) weeks from the date of the approval of the 


application by the board of commissioners; and, if not so obtained, the permit granted by the board of 


commissioners shall be void. 


When a license has been approved, the required fee shall be paid to the county and a license issued.


(Code 1983, § 3-55) 


State law reference— Issuance of county malt beverage license, O.C.G.A. § 3-5-41. 


- Procedure when license denied by state.


In the event the applicant for a license required by this division is denied a license by the state, upon the 


proof of such refusal he shall be entitled to a refund of the license fee, less the investigative fee as required in 


section 3-134(a)(2), plus an additional charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) to cover clerical cost of granting the 


license. Such refund may be made by the business license director without the necessity of any action by the board 


of commissioners. 


Page 19 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-137.


Sec. 3-138.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-139.


Sec. 3-140.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


(e)


(Code 1983, § 3-56) 


- Terms of license.


In case of the revocation or the surrender of a license before the expiration of the calendar year, the holder 


thereof shall not be entitled to receive any refund whatsoever. 


(Code 1983, § 3-57; Ord. No. 2004-19, § 7, 8-26-04) 


- Business to be opened within nine months from license issuance; effect of failure.


All holders of license for the retail sale of malt beverages must, within nine (9) months after the issuance of 


the license, open for business the establishment referred to in the license and begin the sale of the product 


or products authorized by the license. 


Failure to open the establishment and begin the sale as referred to above within the nine-month period shall 


serve as automatic forfeiture and cancellation of the unused license, and no refund of license fees shall be 


made to the license holder. 


(Code 1983, § 3-58) 


- Effect of failure to operate business for nine consecutive months.


Any holder of a license for the retail sale of malt beverages who shall begin the operation of the business and 


sale of the product or products as authorized in the license but who shall, for a period of nine (9) consecutive 


months thereafter, cease to operate the business and sale of the product or products authorized in the license shall, 


upon completion of the nine-month period, automatically forfeit his license, which license shall, by virtue of failure to 


operate, be cancelled without the necessity of any further action of the board of commissioners. 


(Code 1983, § 3-59) 


- Transfer of license.


Licenses issued under this division may be transferred as provided below; however, the prior approval of the 


board of commissioners shall be required. In case of the death of any person holding such a license, or any 


interest therein, the same may, in the discretion of the board of commissioners, be transferred to the 


administrator, executor, or lawful heirs of the deceased person. In all cases, a prospective transferee must 


meet all of the requirements as specified herein for a license. 


Nothing in this section, however, shall prohibit one (1) or more of the partners in a partnership holding a 


license to withdraw from the partnership in favor of one (1) or more of the partners who are partners at the 


time of the issuance of the license. Such a withdrawal shall not, however, serve to bring any new ownership 


into the partnership. 


A transfer of a location may be approved in the discretion of the board of commissioners; however, there 


shall be no pro rata return of any license fee and the new location shall be considered and meet the 


requirements of the new license hereunder. Where a transfer of an existing location is approved and there is 


no change in the ownership of the business, the license fee paid for the old location shall be applied to the 


new location. 


A licensee may take in partners or additional stockholders. Under this section, an additional partner or new 


principal stockholder must be approved by the board of commissioners. 


A transfer of ownership of the license may be approved in the discretion of the board of commissioners, 


provided that the new owner meets with the necessary requirements for a license. There shall be no pro rata 


return of any license fee and the business shall continue to operate at the same location. 


Page 20 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







(f)


Sec. 3-141.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


(e)


Sec. 3-142.


(a)


(b)


Secs. 3-143—3-155.


DIVISION 3. - OPERATING REGULATIONS


There shall be a fee of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) for the transfer of any license.


(Code 1983, § 3-60) 


- Suspension or revocation of license.


Whenever the state shall revoke any permit or license to sell at retail any malt beverages, the county license 


to deal in such products shall thereupon be automatically revoked without any action by the board of 


commissioners or any county officer. 


No license which has been issued or which may hereafter be issued by the county to any person as a retail 


dealer in malt beverages shall be suspended or revoked, except for due cause as hereinafter defined, and 


after a hearing and upon at least a three-day written notice to the holder of such. 


"Due cause" for the suspension or revocation of such license shall consist of the violation of any laws or 


ordinances regulating such businesses, or violation of regulations made pursuant to authority granted for the 


purpose of regulating such businesses, or for the violation of any state or federal law, or for the violation of 


any county ordinances, other than traffic ordinances, which the board of commissioners deems to render the 


licensee improper to hold such license. 


Such hearings shall be conducted by the board of commissioners.


In the event of revocation, no refund of any portion of the license shall be paid.


(Code 1983, § 3-61) 


- Renewal of license.


The renewal of an existing alcoholic beverage license at the expiration of the term of the license shall be 


dependent upon proof that the licensee meets all requirements upon which the original application for license 


was granted. 


Licensees must provide at the time of application for renewal of license an affidavit substantiating their 


compliance with the residency requirements set forth in this article. 


(Code 1983, § 3-62) 


- Reserved.


 


FOOTNOTE(S):


(14) 
State Law reference— Local powers as to alcoholic beverage licenses, O.C.G.A. § 3-3-2; local malt beverage license, O.C.G.A. § 


3-5-40 et seq. (Back)


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE III. - MALT BEVERAGES >> DIVISION 3. - OPERATING REGULATIONS >> 


Sec. 3-156. - Front window display.


Sec. 3-157. - Exterior advertisement of price of malt beverages prohibited.


Sec. 3-158. - Interior visibility required; license prohibited in restaurant, etc.


Sec. 3-159. - Business hours and days.


Sec. 3-160. - Wholesale deliveries of alcoholic beverages.


Sec. 3-161. - Price lists or tags.


Page 21 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-156.


Sec. 3-157.


Sec. 3-158.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-159.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-162. - Employees; reports to business license director; investigation; fees.


Sec. 3-163. - Sales to minors and certain other persons prohibited; minor misrepresenting age, drinking or possessing alcoholic 


beverages; posting of sign by licensee.


Sec. 3-164. - Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire department.


Sec. 3-165. - Consumption or opening on premises; posting of signs.


Sec. 3-166. - Sales on certain premises; excepted.


Sec. 3-167. - Drinking in public.


Secs. 3-168—3-180. - Reserved.


 


- Front window display.


Each person licensed to sell malt beverages at retail shall have printed on the front window of the licensed 


premises the inscription "County Retail License No. ____________" in uniform letters not less than four (4) inches 


in height; however, if a licensee so desires he may have his name displayed on the inside of the window in like 


manner or in neon or other electric lights. Such sign shall be parallel with the window and so constructed as not to 


extend more than six (6) inches from the window. 


(Code 1983, § 3-63) 


- Exterior advertisement of price of malt beverages prohibited.


No sign of any kind, painted or electric, advertising any price of malt beverages shall be permitted on the 


exterior of any licensed premises. No placard or sign of any kind which is visible from the exterior of the licensed 


premises shall make reference to the price of any malt beverages sold therein; however, tags showing the prices of 


individual bottles or containers may be affixed to each such bottle or container or to the edge of the shelf whereon 


such bottles or containers are located. 


(Code 1983, § 3-64) 


- Interior visibility required; license prohibited in restaurant, etc.


No screen, blind, curtain, partition, article or thing which shall prevent a clear view into the window or upon 


the doors of any retail malt beverage store, and no booth, screen, partition or other obstruction shall be 


permitted within the interior of any such store. Each such retail store shall be so lighted that the interior of the 


store is visible day and night. 


No retail malt beverage license shall be allowed in, or in connection with, any restaurant, cafe or eating 


place, nor in the same room where a bar or soda fountain is maintained for the dispensing and sale of soft 


drinks or other beverages. 


(Code 1983, § 3-65) 


- Business hours and days.


Retail dealers in malt beverages shall not engage in the sale of said beverages except between the hours of 


7:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. on weekdays and shall not permit their places of business to be opened for the 


sale of malt beverages on Sundays, Christmas Day or election days. 


An "election day", for the purposes of the sale of malt beverages, means that period of time beginning with 


the opening of the polls and ending with the closing of the polls. 


(Code 1983, § 3-66; Ord. No. 91-11, §§ 4, 5, 9-18-91) 


State law reference— Sale of alcoholic beverages on Sundays, election days and Christmas day, O.C.G.A. § 3-3-20. 


Page 22 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-160.


Sec. 3-161.


Sec. 3-162.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


Sec. 3-163.


(a)


- Wholesale deliveries of alcoholic beverages.


It shall be unlawful to make wholesale deliveries of malt beverages except in the store or department of the 


store in which such beverages are sold. Such deliveries may only be made between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 


7:00 p.m. 


(Code 1983, § 3-67; Ord. No. 91-11, § 6, 9-18-91) 


State law reference— Persons to whom malt beverages may be sold by wholesale dealers, O.C.G.A. § 3-5-26. 


- Price lists or tags.


Each retail licensee under this article shall have conspicuously displayed within the interior of the licensed 


premises not less than four (4) copies of a printed price list of the malt beverages offered for sale and one (1) 


printed copy of the penal sections of this article; however, a licensee, in lieu of having four (4) copies of a printed 


price list, may have the price placed on the bottles or on the bottom of the shelf where malt beverages are exhibited 


for sale. 


(Code 1983, § 3-68) 


- Employees; reports to business license director; investigation; fees.


No retail licensee shall employ any minor, except as provided by state law, in his store, or in the department 


of a store where malt beverages are sold. No retail licensee shall employ in any premises used for the sale of 


malt beverages any person in any capacity whatsoever who has been convicted within ten (10) years of the 


date of employment of a felony, or any violation of the laws of this state, any other state or of the United 


States relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages. 


It shall be the duty of all persons holding retail or wholesale licenses to sell malt beverages to file with the 


business license director the names of all employees, with their home addresses, home telephone numbers 


and places of employment. Changes in the list of employees, with the names of new employees, must be 


filed with the business license director within three (3) days from the date of any such change. All employees 


shall be subject to such investigative rules and regulations as may be deemed necessary from time to time 


by the business license department. A ten-dollar investigative fee shall be paid by all applicants. 


At the time of application or at the time a licensee hires a new employee, the licensee shall submit a current 


one-square-inch photograph of such employee for placement upon that employee's identification card. 


Photographs shall not be required for any licensed premises which employs fifteen (15) or more employees. 


No licensee shall allow any person to engage in the sale of malt beverages prior to the completion of a 


satisfactory investigation by the business license department. Licensees in violation of this section shall be 


liable for a fine of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) per employee engaged in such practice. Subsequent 


offenses may subject licensee to suspension or revocation of his license. 


(Code 1983, § 3-69; Ord. No. 91-11, §§ 7, 8, 9-18-91) 


State law reference— Dispensing, serving, selling, etc., of alcoholic beverages by persons under eighteen years of age, O.C.G.A. § 3-


3-24. 


- Sales to minors and certain other persons prohibited; minor misrepresenting age, 


drinking or possessing alcoholic beverages; posting of sign by licensee.


No retail licensee shall sell any malt beverages to any person under the age of twenty-one (21) years, or to 


any person believed to be in an intoxicated condition, or to any person known to such licensee or his 


employees to be an habitual drunkard or to any person known to such licensee or his employees to be of 


intemperate habits or of unsound mind. 


Page 23 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







(b)


(c)


(d)


Sec. 3-164.


(a)


(b)


(c)


Sec. 3-165.


(a)


(b)


(c)


Sec. 3-166.


Sec. 3-167.


It shall be unlawful for any minor to purchase or possess any malt beverages on any licensed premises.


It shall be unlawful for any minor to misrepresent his age in any manner whatsoever to a licensee hereunder.


The retail licensee shall post in a conspicuous place where the actual transaction takes place within the 


licensed premises a sign stating that no malt beverages shall be sold to or purchased by any person under 


twenty-one (21) years of age and that it shall be unlawful for any minor to misrepresent his or her age in any 


manner whatsoever to a licensee. Such sign shall be printed in uniform letters not less than one (1) inch in 


height. 


(Code 1983, § 3-70; Ord. No. 91-11, §§ 9, 10, 9-18-91) 


State law reference— Furnishing to, purchase of or possession by persons under twenty-one years of age of alcoholic beverages, 


use of false identification, O.C.G.A. § 3-3-23. 


- Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire 


department.


All premises licensed under this article shall be kept clean and in proper sanitary condition and in full 


compliance with the provisions and regulations governing the condition of premises used for the storage and 


sale of food for human consumption. 


It shall be unlawful to permit any disturbance of the peace or obscenity or any lewd, immoral or improper 


entertainment, conduct or practices on the premises. 


The fire department shall, upon request of the business license department, inspect such premises and 


report their findings to the county. All premises licensed hereunder shall conform at all times with all fire 


regulations of the county. 


(Code 1983, § 3-71) 


Cross reference— Fire prevention and protection, Ch. 9. 


- Consumption or opening on premises; posting of signs.


It shall be unlawful to consume any malt beverages or to open any container of malt beverages on the 


premises licensed under this article or any parking area associated or identified with the licensed premises. 


The license holder shall display at any entrances or exits to the licensed premises a sign which shall state 


that it is unlawful to consume any malt beverages or to open any container of malt beverages on the licensed 


premises or any parking area adjacent thereto. Further, such sign or signs which are necessary shall also be 


placed in such a manner as to be visible from any parking area adjacent to the licensed premises. 


It shall be unlawful for any license holder to permit, allow or acquiesce in the consumption of any malt 


beverages or the opening of any container of malt beverages on the licensed premises or any parking area 


associated or identified with the licensed premises. 


(Code 1983, § 3-72; Ord. No. 91-11, § 11, 9-18-91) 


- Sales on certain premises; excepted.


It shall be unlawful to sell malt beverages on any business-licensed premises wherein less than fifty (50) 


percent of the total gross revenue for any year is derived from staple foodstuffs, household supplies, meats, 


produce and dairy products. Specifically, gasoline and other petroleum products shall not be included in the term 


"household supplies." 


(Code 1983, § 3-73) 


- Drinking in public.


Page 24 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Secs. 3-168—3-180.


ARTICLE IV. - ON-PREMISES CONSUMPTION DEALERS


DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY


Sec. 3-180.1.


(a)


It shall be unlawful for any person to consume any malt or alcoholic beverages in or upon any street, alley, 


sidewalk, park or other public way or public place within the county or within any public building thereon. 


(Code 1983, § 3-74; Ord. No. 91-11, § 12, 9-18-91) 


- Reserved.


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE IV. - ON-PREMISES CONSUMPTION DEALERS >> 


DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY


DIVISION 2. - LICENSE


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE IV. - ON-PREMISES CONSUMPTION DEALERS >> DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY >> 


Sec. 3-180.1. - Authority and definitions.


Sec. 3-180.2. - Scope.


Sec. 3-180.3. - Penalty for violation.


Sec. 3-180.4. - Copy of article maintained on premises.


Sec. 3-180.5. - Excise tax.


Sec. 3-180.6. - Closing hours.


Sec. 3-180.7. - Holiday sales.


Sec. 3-180.8. - Reuse of bottles prohibited.


Sec. 3-180.9. - Prices and charges to be displayed; filed with business license department.


Sec. 3-180.10. - Drinks to be served by employees.


Sec. 3-180.11. - No sales outside building.


Sec. 3-180.12. - Employment of certain persons prohibited.


Sec. 3-180.13. - Employment of minors.


Sec. 3-180.14. - Maximum seating capacity of lounges.


Sec. 3-180.15. - Serving of standing customers at bars prohibited.


Sec. 3-180.16. - Disturbances, obscenity, etc., prohibited.


Sec. 3-180.17. - Conditions of premises.


Sec. 3-180.18. - Temporary or flashing signs to identify licensed premises prohibited; extinguishing lighted signs on Sundays.


Sec. 3-180.19. - Nudity prohibited.


Sec. 3-180.20. - Sale to incapacitated persons prohibited.


Sec. 3-180.21. - Minors prohibited on licensed premises unless accompanied by parent or guardian.


Sec. 3-180.22. - Service in back rooms prohibited; exceptions.


Sec. 3-180.23. - Reserved.


Sec. 3-180.24. - Leaving premises without payment.


Sec. 3-180.25. - Hotels-in room service.


Secs. 3-180.26—3-180.40. - Reserved.


 


- Authority and definitions.


Authority. 


Page 25 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







(1)


(2)


(3)


(b)


The provisions of this article pertaining to the sale of malt beverages by the drink for on-premises 


consumption are enacted pursuant to the authority granted to the Board of Commissioners of Fayette 


County by the State of Georgia. 


The provisions of this article pertaining to the sale of wine by the drink for on-premise consumption are 


enacted pursuant to the authority granted to the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County by the 


State of Georgia. 


The provisions of this article pertaining to the sale of distilled spirits, by the drink, for on-premise 


consumption are enacted pursuant to the authority granted to the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners through a special election held July 20, 2004 pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 3-4-92 in which 


the qualified voters of Fayette County elected to permit such sale of distilled spirits by the drink within 


the unincorporated boundaries of the County of Fayette and O.C.G.A. § 3-4-110 authorizing the board 


to adopt reasonable rules and regulations regarding licensing for such sales. 


Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 


ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 


Alcoholic beverage means all wines, malt beverages, beers, distilled spirits, and fortified wines as 


each is defined herein. 


Distilled spirit means any alcoholic beverage obtained by distillation or any alcoholic beverage 


containing more than twenty one (21) percent alcohol by volume, including but not limited to fortified wine. 


Fortified wine means any alcoholic beverage containing more than twenty-one (21) percent alcohol by 


volume and made from fruits, berries, or grapes either by natural fermentation or with brandy added. Fortified 


wine shall include but not be limited to the brandy. 


Golf course means a large tract of land laid out with a minimum of eighteen (18) holes over a distance 


of at least five thousand five hundred (5,500) yards, and used exclusively for playing golf. 


Hotel means every building or other structure kept, used, maintained, advertised and held out to the 


public to be a place where food is actually served and consumed and sleeping accommodations are offered 


for adequate pay to travelers and guests, whether transient, permanent or residential; and in which fifty (50) 


or more rooms are used for sleeping accommodations of such guests; and having one (1) or more public 


dining rooms, with an adequate and sanitary kitchen and a seating capacity of at least forty (40), where 


meals are served at least once a day to such guests; and where the sleeping accommodations and dining 


rooms are being conducted in the same building or in separate buildings or structures used in connection 


therewith that are in the same premises and are a part of the hotel operations. Motels meeting the 


qualifications set out herein for hotels shall be classified in the same category as hotels. Hotels shall have 


the privilege of granting franchises for the operation of a lounge or restaurant in their premises and the holder 


of such franchise shall be included in the definition of hotel hereunder. 


Intoxicating beverage means and includes any beverage containing any percentage of alcohol 


whatsoever. 


Licensee means an establishment holding a license to engage in the sale of distilled spirits, wines, or 


malt beverages by the drink, for consumption on the premises. 


Lounge means a separate room connected with, a part of and adjacent to a restaurant, or located in a 


hotel, as defined herein with all booths, stools and tables being unobstructed and open to view. All lounges 


shall be air conditioned and have a seating capacity of at least forty (40). 


Malt beverage means any alcoholic beverage obtained by the fermentation of any infusion or 


decoction of barley, malt, hops, or any other similar product, or any combination of such products in water, 


Page 26 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.2.


Sec. 3-180.3.


Sec. 3-180.4.


Sec. 3-180.5.


containing not more than fourteen (14) percent alcohol by volume and including ale, porter, brown, stout, 


lager beer, small beer, and strong beer. The term does not include sake, known as Japanese rice wine. 


Premises means the definite closed or partitioned-in locality, whether room, shop or building wherein 


alcoholic beverages are sold by the drink. For the purposes of this article only, premises shall also mean all 


real property upon which a golf course is constructed. 


Restaurant means any public place kept, used, maintained, advertised and held out to the public as a 


place where food is regularly served, and having no sleeping accommodations. Such place shall be provided 


with adequate and sanitary kitchen and dining room equipment and seating capacity of at least forty (40) 


people, and shall have employed therein a sufficient number and kind of employees to prepare, cook and 


serve suitable food for its guests. At least one (1) meal per day shall be served for each day the premises are 


open, with the exception of holidays, vacations, and periods of redecorating. The serving of such meals shall 


be the principal business conducted, with the serving of alcoholic beverages to be consumed on the 


premises as only incidental thereto; provided, however, at least sixty (60) percent of the annual gross income 


must be derived from the sale of such meals served for consumption on the premises. Such receipts shall be 


certified by the owner of the premises and reported to the business license department on a quarterly basis. 


Wine means any alcoholic beverage containing not more than twenty-one (21) percent alcohol by 


volume made from fruits, berries, or grapes either by natural fermentation or by natural fermentation with 


brandy added. The term includes, but is not limited to, all sparkling wines, champagnes, combinations of 


such beverages, vermouths, special natural wines, rectified wines, and like products. The term does not 


include cooking wine mixed with salt or other ingredients so as to render it unfit for human consumption as a 


beverage. A liquid shall first be deemed to be a wine at that point in the manufacturing process when it 


conforms to the definition of wine contained in this section. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-81, 9-18-91; Ord. No. 94-17, §§ 1, 2, 10-19-94; Ord. No. 2004-19, § 8, 8-26-04) 


- Scope.


Except as otherwise provided in this article, this article applies to the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-


premises consumption (sales by the drink). 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-82, 9-18-91) 


- Penalty for violation.


Violation of any of the provisions of this article by the holder of a license hereunder shall subject the holder of 


such license to revocation of the license. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-83, 9-18-91) 


- Copy of article maintained on premises.


It shall be the duty of the management of the premises licensed under this article to maintain a copy of this 


article on such premises and to instruct each and every employee of the terms thereof. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-84, 9-18-91) 


- Excise tax.


Page 27 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.6.


Sec. 3-180.7.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-180.8.


Sec. 3-180.9.


Sec. 3-180.10.


Sec. 3-180.11.


Any licensee shall be required to pay a county excise tax, in addition to the required state excise tax, to the 


county for the sale of all alcoholic beverages by the drink in the maximum amount as allowed or required by state 


law. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-85, 9-18-91) 


- Closing hours.


No licensee under this article shall sell, give away or otherwise dispense alcoholic beverages between the 


hours of 11:55 p.m. Saturday and 9:00 a.m. Monday and between the hours of 11:55 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. on other 


days. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-86, 9-18-91) 


- Holiday sales.


Sales on Christmas Day prohibited. Licensees under this article shall not permit the sale of any alcoholic 


beverages on Christmas Day. 


Sales on Sunday following New Year's Day. In years in which New Year's Eve falls on Saturday, sales may 


continue through 1:00 a.m. on Sunday, New Year's Day. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-87, 9-18-91; Ord. No. 2004-19, § 9, 8-26-04) 


- Reuse of bottles prohibited.


It shall be illegal for any licensee under this article to add the contents of a bottle or to refill empty bottles or 


in any other manner to misrepresent the quantity, quality or brand name of any alcoholic beverages. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-88, 9-18-91) 


- Prices and charges to be displayed; filed with business license department.


Any licensee under this article, except private clubs, shall display in prominent places the current prices of 


alcoholic beverages by the drink; the volume of alcohol to be served from each alcoholic beverage container; 


admission and cover charges. The licensee shall file a copy of such prices with the investigating office of the 


business license department and shall furnish to any customer that so desires an itemized bill of charges which 


shall not exceed the price list furnished to the business license department. Upon any increase or decrease of 


prices, a new list must be filed with the business license department. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-89, 9-18-91; Ord. No. 2004-19, § 10, 8-26-04) 


- Drinks to be served by employees.


Drinks sold under this article shall only be served by the employees of the establishment. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-90, 9-18-91) 


- No sales outside building.


It shall be unlawful for any sales to be made outside of the building, premises or place of business licensed 


for such sale except as permitted in this article. Such sales shall only be allowed on an attached deck or patio, 


provided such deck or patio is located on the ground floor and located in the side or rear yard of such premises. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-91, 9-18-91) 


Page 28 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.12.


Sec. 3-180.13.


Sec. 3-180.14.


Sec. 3-180.15.


Sec. 3-180.16.


Sec. 3-180.17.


- Employment of certain persons prohibited.


It shall be unlawful for any premises in which alcoholic beverages are served by the drink under this article to 


employ any person in any capacity whatsoever, including performers, entertainers and musicians, who has been 


convicted, by this or any other state or by the United States or any other country, of soliciting for prostitution, 


pandering, letting premises for prostitution, keeping a disorderly place, illegally dealing in narcotics, sex offenses, or 


any charge relating to the manufacture or sale of intoxicating liquors. This section shall not apply to private clubs. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-92, 9-18-91) 


- Employment of minors.


No licensee under this division shall employ any minor in his establishment; provided, however, that this 


section shall not apply to private clubs, nor to minor musicians and other entertainers who may provide professional 


entertainment on the premises with permission of the board of commissioners. In restaurants and hotels, minors 


may be employed provided their duties are not in any way involved with the preparation of or the sale or service of 


any alcoholic beverages by the drink. Furthermore, any persons delivering alcoholic beverages to customers shall 


be at least eighteen (18) years of age. Any person dispensing such beverages shall be at least twenty-one (21) 


years of age. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-93, 9-18-91) 


- Maximum seating capacity of lounges.


No establishment holding a license under this article as a lounge shall have a seating capacity in excess of 


two hundred fifty (250) persons irrespective of any other provisions of this Code. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-94, 9-18-91) 


- Serving of standing customers at bars prohibited.


No licensee for the sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises may serve any customer 


who is not seated, it being the purpose of this section to prohibit being served while standing at a bar or while 


standing in any area of the establishment. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-95, 9-18-91) 


- Disturbances, obscenity, etc., prohibited.


It shall be unlawful for any person to permit any disturbances of the peace, obscenity, or any lewd, immoral 


or improper entertainment, conduct or practices on or about the premises of establishments regulated by this article. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-96, 9-18-91) 


- Conditions of premises.


All premises licensed under this article shall be kept clean and in proper sanitary condition and in full 


compliance with the provisions and regulations governing the conditions of premises used for the storage and sale 


of food for human consumption. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-97, 9-18-91) 


Page 29 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.18.


Sec. 3-180.19.


Sec. 3-180.20.


Sec. 3-180.21.


Sec. 3-180.22.


Sec. 3-180.23.


- Temporary or flashing signs to identify licensed premises prohibited; 


extinguishing lighted signs on Sundays.


No temporary sign, mobile sign, including window signs, or flashing sign shall be permitted to identify the 


premises of a licensee, and any lighted sign identifying such premises must be fully extinguished on Sunday. 


Further, no sign advertising alcoholic beverages of any kind shall be permitted. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-98, 9-18-91) 


- Nudity prohibited.


No person or establishment engaged in entertaining at licensed premises nor any employees of an 


establishment holding a license for consumption of alcoholic beverages on the premises shall appear on the 


premises at any time in clothing where the display of the human mammary glands or buttocks occurs or is thinly 


disguised, nor shall any pasties or "g-strings" be permitted. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-99, 9-18-91) 


- Sale to incapacitated persons prohibited.


No person or establishment that holds a license to sell alcoholic beverages by the drink shall sell or give any 


such beverages to, or permit the sale, gift or procurement of any such beverages for, any person who is physically 


or mentally incapacitated due to the consumption of intoxicating beverages. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-100, 9-18-91) 


- Minors prohibited on licensed premises unless accompanied by parent or 


guardian.


No person who holds a license to sell alcoholic beverages by the drink shall allow any minor to be in, 


frequent or loiter about the licensed premises of a lounge unless such minors are accompanied by a parent or legal 


guardian; provided, however, that such minors shall be permitted in restaurants or private clubs without being 


accompanied by a parent or legal guardian. This section shall not apply to minors who are employees under the 


terms of this article. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-101, 9-18-91) 


- Service in back rooms prohibited; exceptions.


The sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption by persons in any back room or side room which is not 


open to general public use is prohibited, except that private parties or conventions, which have been scheduled in 


advance, may be served in public or private dining rooms or meeting rooms. This prohibition shall not apply to the 


sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption hereunder to the registered guests of any hotel or motel in their 


designated rooms. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-102, 9-18-91) 


- Reserved.


Editor's note— Ordinance No. 94-17, § 3, adopted October 19, 1994, repealed section 3-180.23 in its entirety. Formerly, such section 


pertained to opened original packages on licensed premises prohibited and derived from Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-103, 9-18-91. 


Page 30 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.24.


Sec. 3-180.25.


Secs. 3-180.26—3-180.40.


DIVISION 2. - LICENSE


Sec. 3-180.41.


- Leaving premises without payment.


Any person leaving the premises of a licensee under this article without paying his charges shall be in 


violation of the law. This section shall not apply to private clubs or restaurants as defined herein. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-104, 9-18-91) 


- Hotels-in room service.


Any hotel licensed to sell malt beverages and/or wine by the package; and/or distilled spirits, malt beverages, 


and/or wine by the drink for on-premise consumption; may provide in-room service in accordance with the 


provisions of O.C.G.A. §§ 3-9-10, 3-9-11, 3-9-12, (including licensure by the state revenue commissioner) in 


unbroken packages. 


(Ord. No. 2004-19, § 11, 8-26-04) 


- Reserved.


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE IV. - ON-PREMISES CONSUMPTION DEALERS >> DIVISION 2. - LICENSE >> 


Sec. 3-180.41. - Required.


Sec. 3-180.42. - Surveyor's certificate required.


Sec. 3-180.43. - Application by hotels, motels.


Sec. 3-180.44. - Privilege.


Sec. 3-180.45. - Renewal of license.


Sec. 3-180.46. - Factors considered in issuing.


Sec. 3-180.47. - Conviction of felony or misdemeanor.


Sec. 3-180.48. - Required citizenship.


Sec. 3-180.49. - Wholesalers holding licenses prohibited.


Sec. 3-180.50. - Eligibility.


Sec. 3-180.51. - Distance requirements from churches, schools, etc.; distance requirements from private residences.


Sec. 3-180.52. - Compliance with zoning regulations.


Sec. 3-180.53. - Compliance with fire regulations.


Sec. 3-180.54. - Time limit on obtaining license and paying fees after approval.


Sec. 3-180.55. - Fee.


Sec. 3-180.56. - Issued for calendar year.


Sec. 3-180.57. - Nontransferable; application to decedent's estate and partnerships.


Sec. 3-180.58. - Business to be opened within six months of receiving license.


Sec. 3-180.59. - Discontinuation of operation for six months automatic forfeiture.


Sec. 3-180.60. - Form; data requested.


Sec. 3-180.61. - Misleading or omitted information.


Sec. 3-180.62. - Revocation of license; due cause.


 


- Required.


Page 31 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.42.


Sec. 3-180.43.


Sec. 3-180.44.


Sec. 3-180.45.


(a)


(b)


It shall be unlawful for any person to sell alcoholic beverages for use or consumption on the premises without 


a license required in this division. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-105, 9-18-91) 


- Surveyor's certificate required.


All original applications for new licenses shall include a certificate from a registered surveyor showing a scale 


drawing of the location of the proposed or existing premises, and stating both the straight line distance and the 


distance measured along the closest and most reasonable public access from the proposed or existing premises to 


the building and property line of the nearest church, school, library, alcoholic treatment center and private 


residence. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-106, 9-18-91; Ord. No. 92-13, § 7, 11-11-92) 


- Application by hotels, motels.


Hotel and motel corporations and their franchise restaurant corporations operating as contemplated by the 


definition of hotel are authorized to apply for and to hold a license under this division in their corporate names, and 


shall name on such application an agent and/or manager actively employed in the operation of such hotel, motel or 


franchise restaurant who shall be responsible for operation under such license as is provided for in this article, and 


who shall qualify in all respects as to character and moral fitness under the provisions of this article. Should the 


manger and/or agent leave the employment of the hotel or motel corporation or its franchise restaurant corporation 


in the county, a new agent and/or manager will be named by the license holder within ten (10) days thereafter. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-107, 9-18-91) 


- Privilege.


Licenses under this division shall be mere grants or privileges, and the board of commissioners shall have 


the discretion to approve or deny any application for a license to sell alcoholic beverages by the drink subject to the 


requirements of due process of law. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-108, 9-18-91) 


- Renewal of license.


All licensees under this division shall be required to renew their licenses annually, by January 1 of each year, 


on forms prescribed by the board of commissioners. Renewals shall be permitted from July 20, 2004 through 


December 31, 2004 to permit licensees as of July 20, 2004 (the date that the sale of distilled spirits by the 


drink was authorized in Fayette County) to expand their licenses to include distilled spirits sales. Renewals 


from July 20, 2004 to December 31, 2004 shall require submission of only the licensee's current application 


on file accompanied by a notarized letter of intent to expand licensure to include distilled spirits sales, a 


survey or surveyor's letter as described in subpart (b) below and the appropriate fee. 


Any licensee submitting an application for annual renewal of a license for the sale of alcoholic beverages by 


the drink whom is in good standing as a licensee at the time of renewal shall be permitted to apply for an 


expansion of that license to include an additional license for sales by the drink of distilled spirits, beer, or 


wine (whichever is not permitted under the license(s) being renewed). The renewal application shall include a 


notarized letter from the licensee expressing intent to receive said expansion and shall be marked on its face 


to indicate intent to expand current licensing to include additional licenses and shall include the fee for said 


additional license(s) as stated in section 3-180.55 hereof. Licensee's application will be reviewed for 


conformity with all conditions required for the expansion to the additional license, to determine eligibility for 


Page 32 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.46.


(1)


(2)


(3)


(4)


(5)


(6)


Sec. 3-180.47.


the receipt of the requested expansion to include the additional license. The licensed premises shall be 


specifically reviewed for conformity with section 3-180.51 hereof. As such, a survey (performed within the 


past year and as described in section 3-180.42 hereof) or a letter signed and sealed by a registered surveyor 


which indicates the name, address, and distance (as measured in accordance with [section] 3-180.51 hereof) 


of the closest school and any school within six hundred (600) feet of the place where distilled spirits are 


proposed to be sold, shall be submitted with the request for expansion to include an additional license, if said 


addition is of a distilled spirits license. Otherwise, all information obtained from licensee's original license 


application and renewal application is hereby deemed sufficient for the grant of expansion to include the 


additional license, however, further information may be requested and shall be provided where needed. An 


original application and the procedure for licensing thereunder is not required to receive expansion of a 


license to include additional licenses for on-premise alcohol sales. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-109, 9-18-91; Ord. No. 2004-19, § 12, 8-26-04) 


- Factors considered in issuing.


In determining whether or not any license applied for under this division shall be granted, the following shall 


be considered in the public interest and welfare: 


If applicant is a previous holder of a license to sell alcoholic beverages, whether or not he has violated 


any law, regulation or ordinance relating to such business. 


If applicant is a previous holder of a license to sell alcoholic beverages, the manner in which he 


conducted the business thereunder, as to the necessity for unusual law enforcement observation and 


inspection in order to prevent the violation of any law, regulation or ordinance relating to such 


business. 


The location for which the license is sought as to traffic congestion, general character of the 


neighborhood, and the effect such an establishment would have on the adjacent and surrounding 


property values. When the number of alcoholic beverage on-premises consumption licenses issued 


and in effect shall number more than one (1) for each five thousand (5,000) persons residing in the 


county, no further licenses of such nature shall be permitted. If a licensee shall go out of business and 


the number of such licenses in effect shall exceed one (1) for each five thousand (5,000) persons 


residing in the county, such license may not continue. 


The number of licenses already granted for similar businesses in the trading area of the place for 


which the license is sought.


If dancing is to be permitted upon the premises for which the license is sought, and applicant has 


previously permitted dancing upon any premises controlled or supervised by him, the manner in which 


he controlled or supervised such dancing to prevent any violation of law, regulation or ordinance. 


Whether a licensee has had a license issued under the police powers of the county suspended or 


revoked.


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-110, 9-18-91) 


- Conviction of felony or misdemeanor.


No original license shall be issued to any person or entity organized for pecuniary gain where any individual 


or his spouse having an interest therein, either as owner, partner or principal stockholder, whether directly or 


indirectly beneficial, shall have been convicted or shall have taken a plea of nolo contendere within ten (10) years 


immediately prior to the filing of the application for any felony or misdemeanor of any state or of the United States or 


for any municipal ordinance except traffic violations. The term "conviction" shall include and adjudication of guilt, a 


plea of guilty or nolo contendere or the forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime. Where the violation is for a 


Page 33 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.48.


Sec. 3-180.49.


Sec. 3-180.50.


Sec. 3-180.51.


(a)


(b)


misdemeanor, resulting in a forfeiture of a bond required by a county ordinance, the board of commissioners may, 


after investigation, waive same as a disqualification. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-111, 9-18-91) 


- Required citizenship.


No license under this division shall be granted to any applicant who is not a citizen of the United States or a 


permanent resident alien. If the applicant is a partnership, the requirements of this section shall apply to all the 


partners. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-112, 9-18-91) 


- Wholesalers holding licenses prohibited.


No person shall hold a license under this division who also has any direct financial interest in any wholesale 


intoxicating beverage business. No financial aid or assistance to any licensee hereunder from any wholesaler or 


manufacturer of intoxicating beverages shall be permitted; provided, however, that this section shall not be 


applicable to private clubs. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-113, 9-18-91) 


- Eligibility.


No license shall be issued under this division to any applicant whose establishment does not meet the 


requirements of a restaurant, hotel or lounge. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-114, 9-18-91) 


- Distance requirements from churches, schools, etc.; distance requirements from 


private residences.


No license shall be issued under this article for any location which is within three hundred (300) feet of any 


church, school, library or alcoholic treatment center, if distilled spirits are to be sold, said distance from any 


school building, educational building, school grounds or college campus shall be at least six hundred (600) 


feet. Such distance shall be measured from the nearest building wall of the proposed location to the nearest 


point of such church, school, library or alcoholic treatment center along the closest and most reasonable 


public access. The schools referred to herein shall include only such state, county, city, church or other 


schools as teach the subjects commonly taught in the common schools and colleges of this state, and shall 


not include private schools or colleges wherein any specialized subjects such as law, stenography, business, 


music, art, medicine, dentistry, vocational occupations or other special subjects are taught. 


No license shall be issued under this article for any location which is within three hundred (300) feet of any 


private residence. Such distance shall be measured from the nearest building wall of the proposed location to 


the nearest point of the residential building along the closest and most reasonable public access. A "private 


residence," for the purposes of the section is defined as a house, dwelling, condominium or duplex wherein 


not less than one (1) nor more than two (2) families reside and shall not include a mobile home court, an 


apartment house having facilities for housing more than two (2) families, nor a boarding or rooming house 


where there are five (5) or more boarders or roomers. Any building occupied as a residence located within an 


area zoned for business shall not be construed as a "private residence." 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-115, 9-18-91; Ord. No. 92-13, § 8, 11-11-92; Ord. No. 2004-19, § 13, 8-26-04) 


Page 34 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.52.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-180.53.


Sec. 3-180.54.


Sec. 3-180.55.


Sec. 3-180.56.


Sec. 3-180.57.


(a)


(b)


- Compliance with zoning regulations.


No license shall be issued under this division unless the location is located in the C-C or C-H zoning districts 


pursuant to the provisions of the zoning ordinance of the county. 


Regulation eighteen-hole golf courses shall also be permitted locations regardless of zoning district, provided 


they comply with all other requirements of this article. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-116, 9-18-91) 


- Compliance with fire regulations.


Where minimum sleeping or seating capacity is prescribed in this article, the same shall be judged by 


reasonable standards. The fire department shall, upon request of the board of commissioners, inspect such 


premises and report its findings to the committee. All premises licensed hereunder shall conform at all times with all 


fire regulations of the county. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-117, 9-18-91) 


- Time limit on obtaining license and paying fees after approval.


All licenses under this article must be obtained and fees therefor paid not later than four (4) weeks from the 


date of the approval of the application by the board of commissioners. If not so obtained, the license shall be void. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-118, 9-18-91) 


- Fee.


A beer, wine and distilled spirits on-premises consumption license fee shall be one thousand five hundred 


dollars ($1,500.00) annually. Should an applicant desire only a license for sales of beer by the drink, on premises, 


or wine by the drink on-premises, the fee shall be seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00) for both or three hundred 


seventy five dollars ($375.00) for either beer or wine. A fee of seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00) shall be charged 


to obtain only a distilled spirits license. All license fees hereunder shall be paid in advance on or before January 1 of 


each year, and for any license granted hereunder during a calendar year, the licensee shall pay a prorated portion 


of the fee(s) based upon the following formula: The total license fee due shall be divided by twelve (12). This 


number shall be multiplied by the number of months remaining in the year at the time the license(s) are granted. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-119, 9-18-91; Ord. No. 2004-19, § 14, 8-26-04) 


- Issued for calendar year.


No license shall issue for less than a calendar year period, or the remainder thereof, and in case of the 


revocation or surrender of such license before the expiration of such calendar year period, the holder thereof shall 


not be entitled to receive any refund whatsoever. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-120, 9-18-91) 


- Nontransferable; application to decedent's estate and partnerships.


Licenses under this division shall not be transferable, except as otherwise provided herein. In case of the 


death of any person holding such a license, or any interest therein, the same may, in the discretion of the 


board of commissioners, be transferred to the administrator, executor or the lawful heirs of the deceased 


person. 


Page 35 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







(c)


Sec. 3-180.58.


Sec. 3-180.59.


Sec. 3-180.60.


Sec. 3-180.61.


Nothing in this section, however, shall prohibit one (1) or more of the partners in a partnership holding a 


license to withdraw from the partnership in favor of one (1) or more of the partners who were partners at the 


time of the issuance of the license. Such a withdrawal shall not, however, serve to bring any new ownership 


into the partnership. 


A licensee may take in partners or additional stockholders where it is determined that the additional capital 


furnished is to be used exclusively for additional inventory or expanding the facilities and where it appears 


that the licensee himself received directly none of the additional capital invested. Under this section an 


additional partner or new principal stockholder must be approved by the board of commissioners. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-121, 9-18-91) 


- Business to be opened within six months of receiving license.


All holders of licenses under this division must, within a six-month period after the issuance of the license, 


open for business the establishment referred to in the license and begin the sale of the product or products 


authorized by the license. Failure to open the establishment and begin the sale as referred to above within the six-


month period shall serve as automatic forfeiture and cancellation of the unused license and no refund of license 


fees shall be made to the license holder. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-122, 9-18-91) 


- Discontinuation of operation for six months automatic forfeiture.


Any holder of a license under this division who shall begin the operation of the business and sale of the 


product or products as authorized in the license, but who shall, for a period of six (6) consecutive months thereafter, 


cease to operate the business and sale of the product or products authorized in the license shall, upon completion 


of the six-month period, automatically forfeit his license, which license shall, by virtue of the failure to operate, be 


canceled without the necessity of any further action by the board of commissioners. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-123, 9-18-91) 


- Form; data requested.


The board of commissioners shall have authority to prescribe forms for new or renewal applications under 


this division. All applicants shall furnish all data, information and records requested of them by the board of 


commissioners or the business license department, and failure to furnish such data, information and records within 


thirty (30) days from the date of such request shall automatically serve to dismiss, with prejudice, the application. 


Applicants, by filing an application, agree to produce for oral interrogation any person requested by the board of 


commissioners, sheriff's department or the county attorney and considered as being important in the ascertainment 


of the facts relative to such license. The failure to produce such person within thirty (30) days after being requested 


to do so shall result in the automatic dismissal of such application. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-124, 9-18-91) 


- Misleading or omitted information.


Any untrue or misleading information contained in or material omission left out of an original, renewal or 


transfer application for a license under this division shall be cause for the denial thereof. If any license has been 


granted under these circumstances, there shall be cause for revocation of same. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-125, 9-18-91) 


Page 36 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-180.62.


ARTICLE V. - EXCISE TAXES 


Sec. 3-181.


(1)


(2)


Sec. 3-182.


- Revocation of license; due cause.


No license which has been or which may be issued by the county under this division shall be suspended or 


revoked, except for due cause as hereinafter defined, and only after a hearing and upon the prior three-day written 


notice to the holder of such license of the time, place and purpose of such hearing and a statement of the charge 


upon which such hearing shall be held. "Due cause" for the suspension or revocation of such license shall consist of 


the violation of any laws or ordinances regulating such businesses, or violation of regulations made pursuant to 


authority granted for the purpose of regulating such businesses, or for the violation of any county ordinance other 


than the traffic ordinances. 


(Ord. No. 91-12, § 3-126, 9-18-91) 


 


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 3 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES >> 
ARTICLE V. - EXCISE TAXES >> 


[15] 


Sec. 3-181. - Tax on sales of malt beverages.


Sec. 3-182. - Tax on wholesale sales of vinous liquors.


Sec. 3-183. - Payment of taxes by wholesale dealers.


Sec. 3-184. - Wholesale dealers required to collect taxes from retail dealers; monthly reports.


Sec. 3-185. - Wholesale dealers and distributors—Records and reports.


Sec. 3-186. - Same—Failure to make reports.


Sec. 3-187. - Tax on sales of distilled spirits by the drink.


Sec. 3-188. - Collection of tax on sales of distilled spirits by the drink.


Sec. 3-189. - Payment of tax by licensee; collection fee.


Sec. 3-190. - Deficiency determinations.


Sec. 3-191. - Determination if no return made.


Sec. 3-192. - Penalties and interest for failure to pay tax.


Sec. 3-193. - Administration; enforcement; rules; records; confidentiality of reports.


Sec. 3-194. - Penalties.


 


- Tax on sales of malt beverages.


In addition to all other taxes or license fees heretofore imposed upon dealers in the county engaged in the 


business of selling malt beverages under state law, there is imposed and levied upon all such dealers within the 


county an excise tax to be based, computed and collected as follows: 


Where malt beverages, commonly known as tap or draft beer, are sold in or from a barrel or bulk 


container, a tax of six dollars ($6.00) on each container sold containing not more than fifteen and one-


half (15½) gallons and a proportionate tax at the same rate on all fractional parts of fifteen and one-


half (15½) gallons; 


Where malt beverages are sold in bottles, cans, or other containers, except barrel or bulk containers, 


a tax of five cents ($0.05) per twelve (12) ounces and a proportionate tax at the same rate on all 


fractional parts of twelve (12) ounces. 


(Code 1983, § 3-75) 


- Tax on wholesale sales of vinous liquors.


Page 37 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-183.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-184.


Sec. 3-185.


(a)


(b)


Sec. 3-186.


(a)


(b)


In addition to all other taxes or excise fees, there is hereby imposed and levied a special or excise tax upon 


the wholesale sales of vinous liquors, the amount of such special or excise tax to be computed on the following 


basis: 


Wholesale dealers in vinous liquors, per liter, $0.22. 


(Code 1983, § 3-76) 


- Payment of taxes by wholesale dealers.


The special or excise tax imposed upon sales under this article shall be paid by the wholesale dealer to the 


business license director by the tenth of each month, based upon volume sold or distributed in the county 


limits during the previous month. 


The wholesale dealer herein referred to shall be subject to all the conditions set forth in this article and shall 


in all respects comply with this article, particularly with reference to the keeping of true and correct records of 


all sales and shipments and the rendering of a sworn statement of the same as is provided. 


(Code 1983, § 3-77) 


State law reference— Payment of local malt beverage tax by wholesale dealers, O.C.G.A. § 3-5-81. 


- Wholesale dealers required to collect taxes from retail dealers; monthly reports.


Wholesale dealers and distributors of products regulated by this article shall make a report to the business 


license department within ten (10) days following the end of each calendar month of the total of such products sold 


or distributed within the county limits during the previous month, and shall accompany such report with the payment 


of the tax due at the above rate based upon the quantities of such products so sold the previous month. Each 


monthly report shall be accompanied by a sworn statement that the report is a true and correct report of all sales 


and shipments made within the county. 


(Code 1983, § 3-78) 


- Wholesale dealers and distributors—Records and reports.


The license tax imposed in this article shall be computable and payable monthly.


Each wholesale dealer or distributor selling, shipping or delivering malt beverages, wines or spirituous liquor 


to any retail dealer in the county, whether delivered to the retail dealer's place of business in the county, or 


elsewhere for resale in the county, shall, as a condition to the privilege of carrying on such business in the 


county, make a true and correct record of all sales, shipments or deliveries of such products to each retail 


dealer in the county and immediately transmit a true and correct copy of such record to the business license 


department. Such record shall show the name of each retail dealer to whom a sale, shipment or delivery is 


made, the quantity, and such other information as may be called for by the county. 


(Code 1983, § 3-79) 


- Same—Failure to make reports.


If any wholesale dealer or distributor fails or refuses to make the reports provided for in this article, the 


county shall notify the party in writing; and, if the report is not made within five (5) days from the date of said 


notice, the county may withdraw from the wholesale dealer or distributor the privilege of doing business in the 


county by revoking his license. 


It shall be a violation of this article for any wholesale dealer or distributor to deliver any vinous liquor and/or 


malt beverages to any retail dealer in the county without making a report to the county as provided herein. 


(Code 1983, § 3-80) 


Page 38 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-187.


Sec. 3-188.


Sec. 3-189.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


Sec. 3-190.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


- Tax on sales of distilled spirits by the drink.


In addition to all other taxes or excise fees heretofore imposed, there is hereby imposed and levied an excise 


tax upon the sale of distilled spirits by the drink of three (3) percent of the charge to the public for said drinks. Said 


tax shall not apply to the sale of fermented beverages made in whole or in part from malt or any similar fermented 


beverage. 


(Ord. No. 2004-19, § 15, 8-26-04) 


- Collection of tax on sales of distilled spirits by the drink.


Every holder of a license for the sale of distilled spirits by the drink for on-premise consumption is authorized 


and directed to collect the tax imposed under section 3-186 hereof, from the purchasers of said distilled spirits by 


the drink where said sale occurs under the authority granted to licensee by said license. Licensee shall furnish such 


information as may be requested by the county to facilitate collection of this tax. 


(Ord. No. 2004-19, § 16, 8-26-04) 


- Payment of tax by licensee; collection fee.


Due date of taxes. All taxes collected by any licensee or agent under this article shall be due and payable to 


the county finance department on or before the 10th day of every month next succeeding each respective 


monthly period as set forth in this article. 


Return; time of filing; persons required to file; execution. On or before the 10th day of the month following 


each monthly period, a return for the preceding monthly period shall be filed with the county finance 


department in such form as the county finance department may prescribe, by every licensee or agent liable 


for the payment of tax under this article. 


Delivery of return and remittance. The person required to file the return shall deliver the return, together with 


the remittance of the net amount of tax due, to the county finance department. 


Collection fee allowed licensees or agents. Licensees or agents collecting the tax shall be allowed a 


percentage of the tax due and accounted for and shall be reimbursed in the form of a deduction in 


submitting, reporting and paying the amount due, if the amount is not delinquent at the time of payment. The 


rate of reduction shall be the same rate authorized by O.C.G.A. § 3-4-133. 


(Ord. No. 2004-19, § 17, 8-26-04) 


- Deficiency determinations.


Recomputation of tax; authority to make; basis of recomputation. If the county is not satisfied with the return 


or returns of the tax or the amount of the tax required to be paid to the County by any person, the county 


finance department may compute and determine the amount required to be paid upon the basis of any 


information within his possession or that may come into his possession. One (1) or more than one (1) 


deficiency determinations may be made of the amount due for one (1) or more than one (1) monthly period. 


Interest on deficiency. The amount of the determination, exclusive of penalties, shall bear interest at the rate 


of one (1) percent per month, or fraction of a month, from the 10th day after the close of the monthly period 


for which the amount or any portion should have been returned, until the date of payment. 


Offsetting of overpayments. In making a determination, the county finance department may offset 


overpayments; for a period or periods, against underpayments; for another period or periods, against 


penalties; and against the interest on underpayments. The interest on overpayments shall be computed in 


the manner set forth in subsection 3-190(c). 


Page 39 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







(e)


(f)


(g)


Sec. 3-191.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


(e)


Sec. 3-192.


Penalty; negligence or disregard of rules and regulations. If any part of the deficiency for which a deficiency 


determination has been made is due to gross negligence or disregard of rules and regulations, a penalty of 


fifteen (15) percent of the amount of such deficiency shall be added. 


Penalty for fraud or intent to evade. If any part of the deficiency for which a deficiency determination has 


been made is due to fraud or an intent to evade any provision of this article or other authorized rules and 


regulations, a penalty of twenty-five (25) percent of the deficiency shall be added, in addition to the fifteen 


(15) percent penalty provided in subsection (d) of this section. 


Notice of county finance department determination; service of. The county finance department or his 


designated representative shall give to the licensee written notice of his determination. The notice may be 


served personally or by mail; if by mail, such service shall be addressed to the licensee at his address as it 


appears in the records of the county finance department. In the case of service by mail of any notice required 


by this article, the service is complete at the time of deposit in the United States Post Office. 


Time within notice of deficiency determination to be mailed. Except in the case of fraud, intent to evade this 


article or authorized rules or regulations, or failure to make a return, every notice of a deficiency 


determination shall be mailed within three (3) years after the 10th day of the calendar month following the 


monthly period for which the amount is proposed to be determined, or within three (3) years after the return is 


filed, whichever period should last expire. 


(Ord. No. 2004-19, § 18, 8-26-04) 


- Determination if no return made.


Estimate of gross receipts. If any licensee fails to make a return, the county finance department shall make 


an estimate of the amount of the gross receipts of the license, or as the case may be, of the amount of the 


total sales in the county which are subject to the tax. The estimate shall be made for the periods in respect to 


which the licensee failed to make the return and shall be based upon any information which is or may come 


into the possession of the county finance department. Upon the basis of this estimate, the county finance 


department shall compute and determine the amount required to be paid to the county, adding to the sum 


thus determined a penalty equal to fifteen (15) percent. One (1) or more determinations may be made for one 


(1) or more than one (1) period. 


Manner of computation; offsets; interest. In making a determination, the county finance department may 


offset overpayments for periods against the interest, penalties or underpayments. The interest on 


underpayments shall be computed in the manner set forth in subsection (c) of this section. 


Interest on amount found due. The amount of the determination, exclusive of penalties, shall bear interest at 


the rate of one (1) percent per month, or fraction of a month, from the 10th day of the month following the 


monthly period, for which the amount or any portion should have been returned, until the date of payment. 


Penalty for fraud or intent to evade. If the failure of any person to file a return is due to fraud or an intent to 


evade this article or rules and regulations, a penalty of twenty-five (25) percent of the amount required to be 


paid by the person, exclusive of penalties, shall be added in addition to the fifteen (15) percent penalty 


provided in section 3-191. 


Giving of notice; manner of service. Promptly after making his/her determination, the county finance 


department shall give to the person written notice to be served personally or by mail in the manner 


prescribed for service of notice of a deficiency determination. 


(Ord. No. 2004-19, § 19, 8-26-04) 


- Penalties and interest for failure to pay tax.


Any person who fails to pay the tax imposed in this article to the county or fails to pay any amount of such tax 


required to be collected and paid to the county within the time required shall pay a penalty in the amount of fifteen 


(15) percent of the tax plus interest on the unpaid tax or any portion of the tax as set forth in subsection 3-190(c). 


Page 40 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...







Sec. 3-193.


(a)


(b)


(c)


(d)


(e)


Sec. 3-194.


(Ord. No. 2004-19, § 20, 8-26-04) 


- Administration; enforcement; rules; records; confidentiality of reports.


Authority of the county finance department. The county finance department shall administer and enforce the 


provisions of this article for the levy and collection of the tax imposed by this article. 


Rules and regulations. The county finance department shall have the power and authority to make and 


publish reasonable rules and regulations not inconsistent with this article or other laws of the county finance 


department and the state, or the constitution of this state or the United States for the administration and 


enforcement of the provisions of this article and the collection of the taxes under this article. 


Records required from licensee; form. Every licensee for the sale of alcoholic beverages by the drink in the 


county shall keep such records, receipts, invoices and other pertinent papers in such form as the county 


finance department may require. 


Examination of records; audits. The county finance department or any person authorized in writing by the 


county may examine the books, papers, records, financial reports, equipment and other facilities of any 


licensee liable for the tax in order to verify the accuracy of any return made, or if no return is made by the 


licensee, to ascertain and determine the amount required to be paid. 


Authority to require reports; contents. In the administration of the provisions of this article, the county finance 


department may require the filing of reports by any person or class of persons having in such person's 


possession or custody information relating to the sales of alcoholic beverages which are subject to the tax. 


The reports shall be filed with the county finance department and shall set forth the price charged for each 


sale, the dates of such sales, and such other information as the county finance department may require. 


(Ord. No. 2004-19, § 21, 8-26-04) 


- Penalties.


Any person found guilty of violating any of the provisions of this article shall be deemed guilty of a 


misdemeanor offense and upon conviction in the State Court of Fayette County shall be punished as provided in 


section 1-8. Each such person shall be guilty of a separate offense for each and every day during any portion of 


which any violation of any provision of this article is committed, continued or permitted by such person, and shall be 


punished accordingly. 


(Ord. No. 2004-19, § 22, 8-26-04) 


 


FOOTNOTE(S):


(15) 
State Law reference— Local malt beverage excise tax, O.C.G.A. § 3-5-80 et seq.; local wine excise tax, O.C.G.A. § 3-6-60. (Back)


 


Page 41 of 41Municode


8/15/2012http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=http%3a%2f%2flibrary.muni...

























































		Planning and Zoning- Sunday A...Sales Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Sunday Alcohol Sales Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Sunday Alcohol Sales Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Sunday Alcohol Sales Backup-2

		Municode-Alcohol

		Ordinance 2009-05 Alcoho lUse County Property

		Ordinance 2011-02 Alcoholic Beverages-Daycare Facility

		Ordinance 2012-08










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2012 Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by 
$992.78 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office- Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2012 Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division 
(10030321-511300) by $992.78 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.  This would revise the 
Overtime Budgeting Category to $178,074.97.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2013 Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by 
$2,603.79 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office- Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from federal 
programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with those agencies.


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Fiscal Year 2013 Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division 
(10030321-511300) by $2,603.79 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.  This would revise 
the Overtime Budgeting Category to $118,439.68.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, August 23, 2012





